WHERE HISTORY & FROGRESS MEET

CITY COUNCIL MEETING
MONDAY, DECEMBER 7, 2020 - 7:00 P.M.
475 MAIN STREET, WEST CHICAGO, ILLINOIS

AGENDA
Call to Order

Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag
Invocation
Roll Call and Establishment of a Quorum

Public Participation

The opportunity to speak to the City Council is provided for those who have a
question or comment on an agenda item or a City of West Chicago issue. The City
Council appreciates hearing from our residents and your thoughts and questions
are valued. The City Council strives to make the best decisions for the City and
public input is very helpful.

Respect for the duties of the City Council and for the democratic process will be
adhered to — in this regard, civility and a sense of decorum will be strictly followed.
All speakers must address their comments to the Mayor. Comments that are
personally condescending will not be permitted. Speakers shall be courteous and
should not make statements that are personally disrespectful to members of the City
Council or City staff.

Please use the podium in the center aisle. Please announce your name and address
(if acceptable) before commencing — all public comments are limited to three (3)
minutes and each citizen will be permitted to speak only once. It is the City
Council’s policy not to engage in dialogue during Public Comment. Any questions
raised will be addressed by City staff or an elected official outside of the City
Council meeting.

During the COVID-19 Pandemic, those wishing to attend public meetings of the City
Council are welcome to do so at City Hall. You may attend in person to listen to the
audio of the meeting, or via teleconference from home or another location on the
Zoom app. Downloading Zoom from zoom.us will provide the audio link to the
meeting. Anyone wishing to provide comment on a topic or an agenda item, may
address the City Council by 4:00 p.m. the day of the meeting. You may do so either by
an online form on the City’s website, email to the Deputy City Clerk at
aadm@westchicago.org or voicemail message at (630) 293-2205 x135. Your comment

to the City Council will be read during the Public Participation portion of the agenda.
475 Main Street | T (630) 293-2200 Ruben Pineda

West Chicago, lllinois F (630) 293-3028 i
60185 www.westchicago.org

Nancy M. Smith Michael L. Guttman
CITY CLERK CITY ADMINISTRATOR




City Council Meeting

December 7, 2020

Page 2 of 3

6. City Council Meeting Minutes of November 16, 2020

Ta Corporate Disbursement Report
- December 7, 2020 ($906,404.11)

8. Consent Agenda

Infrastructure Committee:

A.

Authorize the Purchase and Delivery of up to 47,000 Gallons of Organic
Enhanced Salt Brine Blend Liquid from Gasaway Distributors, Inc. for the
2020-2021 Winter Season (for an amount not to exceed $40,000.00).

Approved Change Order No. 1 and Final to the Contract with Emerald
Tree Care, LLC for 2020 Emerald Ash Borer Insecticidal Treatment
Program (in the amount of $2,272.50) Resulting in an Overall Contract
Total of $22,222.50).

Resolution No. 20-R-0074 — A Resolution Authorizing the Mayor to
Execute Contract Amendment No. 1 with Viking Brothers, Inc. for the
Procurement of Coarse and Fine Aggregate Material Delivered for Fiscal
Year 2021 (for an amount not to exceed $47,390.00).

Resolution No. 20-R-0076 — A Resolution Authorizing the Mayor to
Execute a Professional Engineering Services Agreement with Donohue &
Associates, Inc. for Services Related to a Phosphorous Removal Pilot Study
for the West Chicago/Winfield Wastewater Authority Regional Wastewater
Treatment Plant (for an amount not to exceed $53,700.00).

Public Affairs Committee:

E.

Approve Final Report Submitted by the Mexican Cultural Center for the
Mexican Independence Day 2020 Event.

Items Not Sent to Committee:

F.

Resolution No. 20-R-0075 — A Resolution Authorizing the Mayor to
Execute a Certain Labor Agreement Between the City of West Chicago and
the Fraternal Order of Police.




City Council Meeting
December 7, 2020
Page 3 of 3

10.

11.

12.

1%

14.

15,

16.

G. Resolution No. 20-R-0057 — A Resolution Approving an Intergovernmental
Agreement Between the City of West Chicago, DuPage Airport Authority,
West Chicago Library District, West Chicago Fire Protection District, West
Chicago Elementary School District 33, Community High School District
94 and Scannell Properties #371, LLC in Regard to a Property Tax
Abatement Relative to the Development of the Scannell Property.

Reports by Committees
Unfinished Business

A. Resolution No. 20-R-0056 — A Resolution Authorizing the Adoption of an
Elected Official Conduct Policy.

New Business
Correspondence and Announcements

Upcoming Meetings

December 10, 2020 Finance Committee
December 14, 2020 Development Committee
December 15, 2020 Plan Commission/ZBA

Mayor’s Comments

Executive Session

A. Land Acquisition — 5 ILCS 120/2 (C) (5) (6)

B. Litigation — 5 ILCS 120/2 (C) (11)

C. Personnel Matters — 5 ILCS 120/2 (C) (1)

D. Review of Official Record — 5 ILCS 120/2 (C) (21)

Items to be Referred for Final Action from Executive Session.

Adjournment




CITY OF WEST CHICAGO — 475 Main Street
CITY COUNCIL MINUTES
Regular Meeting
November 18, 2020

The City Council meeting of November 16, 2020, was held partly remote (via Zoom) and partly
on site due to the coronavirus pandemic.

1. Call to Order, Mayor Ruben Pineda (on site) called the meeting to order at 7:00 pm. The
Mayor said it was determined that in person meetings are not practical and prudent at this time.

2. Pledge of Allegiance. Alderman Dimas led all in the pledge of allegiance.
3. Invocation. The City Clerk gave the invocation.
4. Roll Call and Establishment of a Quorum.

Roll call found Aldermen Lori J. Chassee, James E. Beifuss, Jr., Heather Brown, Jayme
Sheahan, Alton Hallett, Michael D. Ferguson, Melissa Birch-Ferguson, Sandy Dimas, Matthew
Garling, Christopher Swiatek, Jeanne Short, Rebecca Stout, John E. Jakabcsin, and Noreen
Ligino-Kubinski present remotely. The Mayor announced a quorum.

Also in attendance was City Administrator Michael Guttman (remotely), and on site were Chief
of Police Mike Uplegger and Deputy Chief of Police Chris Shackelford. City Attorney Patrick
Bond attended remotely.

City Clerk Nancy M. Smith was also attending on site arriving at 7:02 pm,
5. Public Participation. There was no public participation.

6. City Council Meeting Minutes of November 2, 2020. Alderman Chassee made a motion,
seconded by Alderman Ligino-Kubinski, to approve the minutes of November 2, 2020, with no
changes.

Voting Aye: Alderman Chassee, Beifuss, Brown, Sheahan, Ferguson, Hallett, Birch-Ferguson,
Dimas, Garling, Swiatek, Short, Stout, Jakabcsin, and Ligino-Kubinski. Motion carried.

7. Corporate Disbhursement Report. Alderman Dimas made a motion, seconded by Alderman
Chassee, to accept the November 16, 2020, Corporate Disbursement Report in the amount of
$,802,122.75. Voting Aye: Aldermen Chassee, Beifuss, Brown, Sheahan, Hallett, Ferguson,
Birch-Ferguson, Dimas, Garling, Swiatek, Short, Stout, Jakabesin, and Ligino-Kubinski. Voting
Nay: 0. Motion carried.

8. Consent Agenda.
* Development Committee: Alderman Stout read and explained the following items:

A. Ordinance 20-0-0024 — An Ordinance Amending the Code of Ordinances of the City
of West Chicago — Appendix A, Article VIII of the Zoning Code Relating to Legal Noenconforming
Uses

B. Ordinance 20-0-0025 - An Ordinance Granting an Extension to the Special Use for
the Final Planned Unit Development for Renaissance Square

C. Resolution 20-R-0068 — A Resolution Approving the Final Development Plan for
Greco DeRoss Investment Group, 2575 Enterprise Circle — DuPage Business Center

Alderman Stout made a motion, seconded by Alderman Birch-Ferguson, to adopt the above
items. Voting Aye: Aldermen Chassee, Beifuss, Brown, Sheahan, Hallett, Ferguson, Dimas,
Birch-Ferguson, Garling, Swiatek, Short, Stout, Jakabcsin, and Ligino-Kubinski. Voting Nay: 0.
Motion carried.

* Infrastructure Committee: Alderman Beifuss read and explained the following items:
D. Approve — The Rejection of Bids for the 2021 Forestry Maintenance Program

E. Ordinance 20-0-0023 - An Ordinance Autharizing the Disposal or Sale of Surplus
Equipment, Stock Inventory, and/or Property Owned by the City of West Chicago

F. Resolution 20-R-0058 — A Resolution Authorizing the Mayor to Execute a Contract
Agreement with Cemetery Management Inc., for Professional Services Related to Cemetery



City of West Chicago
Regular City Council Meeting
November 16, 2020

Page 2

Sexton at the City's Glen Oak and Oakwood Cemeteries for Fiscal Years 2021, 2022, and 2023
(for an amount not to exceed $80,000.00) (removed and voted upon separately)

G. Resolution 20-R-0059 — A Resolution of the City of West Chicago, DuPage County,
lllinois, Authorizing the Execution of a Plat of Dedication to Transfer Ownership of Certain Right
of Way Deemed Surplus to the County of DuPage

H Resolution 20-R-0060 — A Resolution Authorizing the Mayor to Execute a Contract
Agreement with Kramer Tree Specialists, Inc. for Professional Services Related to the 2021 thru
2023 Citywide Monthly Brush Collection Program (for an amount not to exceed $96,775.00)

|. Resolution 20-R-0061 — A Resolution Authorizing the Mayor to Execute a Contract
Agreement with Acres Group for Professional Services Related to the 2021 Parkway Tree
Planting Program (for an amount not to exceed $40,430.00)

J. Resolution 20-R-0062 — A Resolution Authorizing the Mayor to Execute a Contract
with Polydyne, Inc. for the Procurement of Dry Anionic Polymer for Fiscal Year 2021 (for an
amaount not to exceed $20,640.00)

K. Resolution 20-R-0063 — A Resolution Autharizing the Mayor to Execute a Contract
with MacCARB, Inc. for the Procurement of Liquid Carbon Dioxide for Fiscal Year 2021 (for an
amount not to exceed $37,500.00)

L. Resolution 20-R-0064 - A Resolution Authorizing the Mayor to Execute a Contract
with Mississippi Lime Company for the Procurement of Rotary Hydrated Lime for Fiscal Year
2021 (for an amount not to exceed $378,100.00)

M. Resolution 20-R-0065 — A Resolution Authorizing the Mayor to Execute a Contract
with Olin Chlor-Alkali Products & Vinyls for the Procurement of Liquid Sodium Hypochlorite for
FY 2021 (for an amount not to exceed $54,965.00)

N. Resolution 20-R-0066 — A Resolution Authorizing the Mayor to Execute a Contract
Agreement with Atalian US Midwest, LLC for 2021 Janitorial Services for Municipal Buildings
(for an amount not to exceed $67,181.00)

0. Resolution 20-R-0067 — A Resolution Authorizing the Mayor to Execute a
Construction Engineering Services Contract for Federal Participation with Thomas Engineering
Group, LLC, for the Phase Il Construction Engineering Services for the Prince Crossing Road
LAFO Project (for an amount not to exceed $48,927.00)

Alderman Beifuss made a motion, seconded by Alderman Garling, to adopt the above items
(except Item 8.F). Voting Aye: Aldermen Chassee, Beifuss, Brown, Sheahan, Hallett,
Ferguson, Dimas, Birch-Ferguson, Garling, Swiatek, Short, Stout, Jakabcsin, and Ligino-
Kubinski. Voting Nay: 0. Motion carried.

* Items Not Sent to Committee: The Mayor read and explained the following items:

P. Resolution 20-R-0073 - A Resolution Authorizing the Execution of an
Intergovernmental Agreement Between the City of West Chicago and the West Chicago Fire
Protection District Regarding the Sale of 2015 Smith Road

Q. Resolution 20-R-0070 — A Resolution of the City of West Chicago, DuPage County,
lllinois, Authorizing the Sale of Surplus Municipally Owned Real Estate — 308 West Stimmel
Street, Lot 1

R. Resolution 20-R-0071 — A Resolution of the City of West Chicago, DuPage County,
lllinois, Authorizing the Sale of Surplus Municipally Owned Real Estate — 2015 Smith Road

5. Resolution 20-R-0072 - A Resolution of the City of West Chicago, DuPage County,
lllinois, Authorizing the Sale of Surplus Municipally Owned Real Estate — Two Vacant Lots on
Ann Street

Alderman Jakabcsin made a motion, seconded by Alderman Dimas, to approve the above
items. Voting Aye: Aldermen Chassee, Beifuss, Brown, Sheahan, Hallett, Ferguson, Dimas,
Birch-Ferguson, Garling, Swiatek, Short, Stout, Jakabcsin, and Ligino-Kubinski. Voting Nay: 0.
Motion carried.

9. Reports by Committee: None



CITY OF WEST CHICAGO

CORPORATE DISBURSEMENT REPORT
December 7, 2020

OPERATING ACCOUNT

FUNDED BY:

GENERAL FUND

CAPITAL EQUIPMENT REPLACMENT FUND

SEWER FUND

WATER FUND

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

DOWNTOWN TIF SPECIAL PROJECTS FUND

MISCELLANEOUS DEPOSITS

COMMUTER PARKING FUND

APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL ON:

DATE:

SIGNATURE:

906,404.11

326,335.09
19,482.00
212,683.56
283,611.17
54,486.50
3,867.20
4,500.00

1,438.59












PENTAMATION - FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT SYSTEM
DATE: 12/03/20

TIME: 16:05:

SELECTION CRITERIA:
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:

52

transact.batch='G403"
12/20

FUND - 40 - OPERATING FUND

CASH ACCT CHECK NO ISSUE DT

105100
105100
TOTAL CHECK

105100
105100
105100
105100
105100
105100
105100
105100
105100
105100
105100
105100
105100
105100
TOTAL CHECK

105100
105100

105100
105100
105100
105100
TOTAL CHECK

105100
105100
105100
105100
TOTAL CHECK

105100

105100
105100
105100
105100
105100
105100
105100
105100
105100
105100
105100
105100
105100

88913
88913

88914
B8914
88914
88914
88914
88914
88914
88914
88914
88914
88914
88914
BB914
88914

88915
8891e

88917
BB8917
88917
88917

88918
88918
88918
Basls

88919

88920
88920
BBS20
88920
88920
883920
88920
88920
BBS920
BB920
BB920
BBI920
BB920

12/07/20
12/07/20

12/07/20
12/07/20
12/07/20
12/07/20
12/07/20
12/07/20
12/07/20
12/07/20
12/07/20
12/07/20
12/07/20
12/07/20
12/07/20
12/07/20

12/07/20
12/07/20

12/07/20
12/07/20
12/07/20
12/07/20

12/07/20
12/07/20
12/07/20
12/07/20

12/07/20

12/07/20
12/07/20
12/07/20
12/07/20
12/07/20
12/07/20
12/07/20
12/07/20
12/07/20
12/07/20
12/07/20
12/07/20
12/07/20

151
151

152
152
152
152
152
152
152
152
152
152
152
152
152
152

13783
5504

2810
2810
2810
2810

9719
9719
9719
9719

14103

5166
5166
5166
5166
5166
5166
5166
5166
5166
5166
5166
5166
5166

CITY OF WEST CHICAGO

CHECK REGISTER - DISBURSEMENT FUND

COMMONWEALTH
COMMONWEALTH
COMMONWEALTH
COMMONWEALTH
COMMONWEALTH
COMMONWEALTH
COMMONWEALTH
COMMONWEALTH
COMMONWEALTH
COMMONWEALTH
COMMONWEALTH
COMMONWEALTH
COMMONWEALTH
COMMONWEALTH

CONRAD POLYGRAPH,

COOLING EQUIPMENT SERVIC

CORE & MAIN,
CORE & MAIN,
CORE & MAIN,
CORE & MAIN,

CRYSTAL MAINTENANCE SVCS
CRYSTAL MAINTENANCE SVCS
CRYSTAL MAINTENANCE SVCS
CRYSTAL MAINTENANCE SVCS

CTC MACHINE SERVICE,

and transact

EDISON
EDISON
EDISON
EDISON
EDISON
EDISON
EDISON
EDISON
EDISON
EDISON
EDISON
EDISON
EDISON
EDISON

LP
LP
LP
LP

DETECTION SYSTEMS
DETECTION SYSTEMS
DETECTION SYSTEMS
DETECTION SYSTEMS
DETECTION SYSTEMS
DETECTION SYSTEMS
DETECTION SYSTEMS
DETECTION SYSTEMS
DETECTION SYSTEMS
DETECTION SYSTEMS
DETECTION SYSTEMS
DETECTION SYSTEMS
DETECTION SYSTEMS

INC

DEPT-DIV

010926
010926

010926
010926
010208
010926
010926
433476
433476
010926
053443
053443
010921
010921
0109821
053443

010501
063448

063447
063447
063447
063447

010921
010921
063448
010219

010925

010921
010921
010921
010921
010921
010921
010921
010921
010921
010921
010921
010921
010921

.ck_date='20201207 00:00:00.000"

10/15-11/16/20
10/15-11/16/20

10/12-11/11/20
10/12-11/11/20
10/13-11/12/20
10/13-11/12/20
10/13-11/12/20
10/13-11/12/20
10/13-11/12/20
10/12-11/11/20
10/13-11/12/20
10/12-11/11/20
10/12-11/11/20
10/13-11/12/20
10/13-11/12/20
10/12-11/11/20

INVOICE 4150 POLY EXAM

INVOICE #75841

GASKET

DATED 1

INVOICE #N339515 DATED
INVOICE #N297257 DATED
INVOICE #NMN281543 DATED

RESOLUTION NO.
RESOLUTION NO.
RESOLUTION NO.
INVOICE #27028

INVOICE #25094

19~R-00
19-R-00
19-R-00
DATED 0

DATED 1

2020 ANNUAL FIRE ALARM
2020 ANNUAL FIRE ALARM
2020 ANNUAL FIRE ALARM
2020 ANNUAL FIRE ALARM
2020 ANNUAL FIRE ALARM
2020 ANNUAL FIRE ALARM
2020 ANNUAL FIRE ALARM
2020 ANNUAL FIRE ALARM
2020 ANNUAL FIRE ALARM
2020 ANNUAL FIRE ALARM
2020 ANNUAL FIRE ALARM
2020 ANNUAL FIRE ALARM
2020 ANNUAL FIRE ALARM

[=R=jl=N=l=l=l=lalslals gl g] ocooo

(=1

coCcoo0oo0o (s N=Nolale] (=]

(=]

OO0 0O00O0O0O000O00O

SALES TAX

.00
.00
.00

.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00

.00
.00

.00
.00
.00
.00
.00

.00
.00
.00
.00
.00

.00

.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00

PAGE NUMBER:

AMOUNT

198.
2,287.
2,485.

89.
94.
67.
69.
25.
5232.
550.
341.
19,
251.
32.
14.
64 .
106.
2,249,

320.

1110,

26
1,314

4,333

3,300.

281.
1,739,
1,272.
6,593.

6,295,

422,
126.
.00
.00
.00
126.
1286.
422,
126.
.00
.00
.00
.00

126
126
126

126
126
126
126

53
43
86

67
01
34
21
42
42
L7
64
84
33
12
29
91
10
L%

00

00

.92
.68

730.
2,261.
.04

44
0o

75
25
16
38
54

0o

0o
00

00
00
00



PENTAMATION - FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT SYSTEM
DATE: 12/03/20 CITY OF WEST CHICAGO
TIME: 16:05:52 CHECK REGISTER - DISBURSEMENT FUND

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.batch='G403' and transact.ck_date='20201207 00:00:00.000'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD: 12/20

FUND - 40 - OPERATING FUND

CASH ACCT CHECK NO ISSUE DT ——---———ee—e——e VENDOR——=~ ——m=—————— DEPT-DIV == DESCRIPTION-~—=~~
105100 88920 12/07/20 5166 DETECTION SYSTEMS 010921 2020 ANNUAL FIRE ALARM
105100 88920 12/07/20 5166 DETECTION SYSTEMS 010921 2020 ANNUAL FIRE ALARM
105100 88920 12/07/20 5166 DETECTION SYSTEMS 010921 2020 ANNUAL FIRE ALARM
105100 B8920 12/07/20 5166 DETECTION SYSTEMS 063448 2020 ANNUAL FIRE ALARM
105100 88920 12/07/20 5166 DETECTION SYSTEMS 063448 2020 ANNUAL FIRE ALARM
105100 BB9z20 12/07/20 5166 DETECTION SYSTEMS 063448 2020 ANNUAL FIRE ALARM
105100 BB8920 12/07/20 5166 DETECTION SYSTEMS 063448 2020 ANNUAL FIRE ALARM
105100 B8B920 12/07/20 5166 DETECTION SYSTEMS 433476 2020 ANNUAL FIRE ALARM
TOTAL CHECK

105100 BBo21 12/07/20 10714 DUPAGE CTY DIV OF TRANSP 083453 INVOICE #4595 DATED 10
105100 88922 12/07/20 11433 DUPAGE TOPSOIL, INC,. 053443 PULVERIZED TOPSOQOIL TO
105100 88923 12/07/20 13958 ELITE DOCUMENT SOLUTIONS 010613 INVOICE #7125

105100 88924 12/07/20 11041 EMERGENCY MEDICAL PRODUC 010613 INVOICE #2213949
105100 88925 12/07/20 15089 EZ MAIL, LLC 010613 INVOICE #572

105100 BB926 12/07/20 15276 FEDERAL EASTERN INTERNAT 010613 INVOICE #5139777

105100 88927 12/07/20 4554 FLEET SAFETY SUPPLY 010925 INVOICE #75984 DATED 1
105100 BB928 12/07/20 15084 GAS DEPOT 01 4,502 GALS 89 RFG & 3,
105100 BE928 12/07/20 15084 GAS DEPOT 01 4,502 GALS B9 RFG & 3,
TOTAL CHECK

105100 BB929 12/07/20 12853 GOLDSTINE, SKRODZKI, RUS 010501 INVOICE 153522 SERVICE
105100 8gga29 12/07/20 12853 GOLDSTINE, SKRODZKI, RUS 010613 INVOICE 153522 SERVICE
105100 BB929 12/07/20 12853 GOLDSTINE, SKRODZKI, RUS 010501 INVOICE 153520 SERVICE
105100 88929 12/07/20 12853 GOLDSTINE, SKRODZKI, RUS 010501 INVOICE 153521 SERVICE
105100 88929 12/07/20 12853 GOLDSTINE, SKRODZKI, RUS 053443 INVOICE 153521 SERVICE
105100 88929 12/07/20 12853 GOLDSTINE, SKRODZKI, RUS 063447 INVOICE 153521 SERVICE
TOTAL CHECK

105100 88931 12/07/20 2013 GRAINGER 010219 COovVID

105100 88931 12/07/20 2013 GRAINGER 083453 CREDIT MEMO

105100 88931 12/07/20 2013 GRAINGER 083453 CREDIT MEMO

105100 B8931 12/07/20 2013 GRAINGER 083453 PVC NUTS WASHER

105100 BB931 12/07/20 2013 GRAINGER 083453 PVC SCREWS NUTS

105100 BB931 12/07/20 2013 GRAINGER 053443 STRUT CHANNEL

105100 BB931 12/07/20 2013 GRAINGER 083453 PVC

105100 BB931 12/07/20 2013 GRAINGER 063447 CHARGER EXT CORD
105100 885931 12/07/20 2013 GRAINGER 010924 WHEELS CLAMP BRUSH
105100 88931 12/07/20 2013 GRAINGER 010219 FLOOR SIGN

105100 88931 12/07/20 2013 GRAINGER 010524 EYE WASH BOTTLE

105100 88931 12/07/20 2013 GRAINGER 083453 1350 TANKS

105100 88931 12/07/20 2013 GRAINGER 083453 1350 TANKS

105100 88931 12/07/20 2013 GRAINGER 053443 FUSE

105100 88931 12/07/20 2013 GRAINGER 053443 WEDGE BASE

105100 88931 12/07/20 2013 GRAINGER 063447 INVOICE #9702216335 DA

SALES TAX

(=R=j=l=RalalsNels]

o

oo

ocoocoocoo

CO0O00000000000000

.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00

.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00

.00
.00
.00

.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00

.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00

PAGE NUMBER:
ACCTFA21

AMOUNT

126,
126.

38.

88.
230.
620.
104.
.00
.00

126
3,688

669.
1,715,
449,
299,
149,
3,8B42.
382.

7,560.
.09

6,465

14,025.

235;
235.
1,175,
646 .
646 .
646.
.75

3,583

382

-225.
-225.
170.
l64.
149.
60.
.45

149

106.
.88

74

9.
43.
.44

91

62.
98.
2999,

00
00
00
00
00
00
00

24
0o
96
98
00
63
30
79
88
0o
0o
00
25

25
25

.20

00
00
81
67
56
96

20

76
05

55
72
45



PENTAMATION - FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT SYSTEM
DATE: 12/03/20

TIME: 16:05:

52

CITY OF WEST CHICAGO

CHECK REGISTER - DISBURSEMENT FUND

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.batch='G403' and transact.ck date='20201207 00:00:00.000"

ACCOUNTING PERIOD:

12/20

FUND - 40 - OPERATING FUND

CASH ACCT CHECK NO

105100
105100
105100
105100
105100
105100
105100
105100
105100
105100
105100
TOTAL CHECK

105100
105100
105100

105100
105100
TOTAL CHECK

105100
105100
105100

105100
105100
TOTAL CHECK

105100

105100
105100
TOTAL CHECK

105100
105100
105100
105100
105100
105100
105100
105100
105100
TOTAL CHECK

105100

88931
88931
88931
BB931
B8B931
88931
88931
88931
88931
BB931
88931

Bg93z2
88933
88934
88935
88935
88936
88937
BB938
B8939
88939
88940
BB941

BB941

88942
88942
88942
88942
88942
88942
B8942
88942
88942

88943

ISSUE DT

12/07/20
12/07/20
12/07/20
12/07/20
12/07/20
12/07/20
12/07/20
12/07/20
12/07/20
12/07/20
12/07/20

12/07/20
12/07/20
12/07/20
12/07/20
12/07/20
12/07/20
12/07/20
12/07/20
12/07/20
12/07/20
12/07/20
12/07/20

12/07/20

12/07/20
12/07/20
12/07/20
12/07/20
12/07/20
12/07/20
12/07/20
12/07/20
12/07/20

12/07/20

2013
2013
2013
2013
2013
2013
2013
2013
2013
2013
2013

14556
11333
12985
12432
12432
14818
5320

11307
14970
14870
5861

9904

2904

2184
2184
2184
2184
2184
2184
2184
2184
2184

6162

GRAINGER
GRAINGER
GRAINGER
GRAINGER
GRAINGER
GRAINGER
GRAINGER
GRAINGER
GRAINGER
GRAINGER
GRAINGER

GRANDVIEW CAPITAL
GRAYBAR ELECTRIC CO., IN
GREAT AMERICA LEASING CO
GREEN T TREE & PEST SERV
GREEN T TREE & PEST SERV
HAWK FORD

HBK WATER METER SERVICE,
HEALTHSMART

HEARTLAND RECYCLING-AURO
HEARTLAND RECYCLING-AURO
HINCKLEY SPRING WATER CO
VICTORIA HYNES

VICTORIA HYNES

STATE TREASURER
STATE TREASURER
STATE TREASURER
STATE TREASURER
STATE TREASURER
STATE TREASURER
STATE TREASURER
STATE TREASURER
STATE TREASURER

OFFICE OF THE STATE FIRE

DEPT-DIV

010219
083453
063447
053443
053443
083453
010925
083453
010921
063448
083453

05

083453
010613
010924
010924
010925
063447
010501
063448
063448
010110
010504

010504

083453
083453
083453
083453
083453
083453
083453
083453
083453

010921

COVID 19 SUPPLIES

HHCS PLAIN

WELL 3

FUSES

FILTERS

QUOTE #2045324687 DATE
AIR GUN

SCREW BOLT

AEROSOL

INVOICE #9706893253 DA
INVOICE #9709834593 DA

REFUND OF OVERPAYMENT
INVOICE #9318535571 DA
INVOICE #28206533
INVOICE #1836755 DATED
INVOICE #1836580 DATED
INVOICE #32106 DATED 1
2020 WEST CHICAGO RAW
ANNUAL FLEX ADMIN FEES
RESOLUTION NO. 20-R-00
RESOLUTION NO. 20-R-00
BOTTLED WATER

WEB CAM

IFAD CHARGING CORD AND

T/S #12020 - IL 59 @ J
T/S #12373 - IL 64/NOR
T/S #12375 - IL 64/NOR
T/S #22110 - IL 59 @ I
T/S #6180 - IL 38/R0O0S
T/S #6390 - IL 59 @ FO
T/S #8853 - IL 59 @ HA
T/S #8860 - IL 59 @ MA
T/S #FLSR88 - IL 59 @

INVOICE #9637689 DATED

SALES TAX

[=RalleBelaleReleNelelala]

o

[=R=Ne) (=] coo

o000 OoODOoOO0O

(=]

.00
-00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00

.00
.00
.00

.00
.00
.00

.00
.00
.00

.00
.00
.00

.00

.00
.00
.00

.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00

.00

PAGE NUMBER:
ACCTPA21

AMOUNT

30.
59.
39,
111.
290.
2,078.
.28
.40
83.
323.
369.
7,703,

121

25,
400.
79.
45,
45,
90.
b g7
1,200.

100.

137,884

80, 065.
217,949,

176.
49,

.95
.94

1ls
€66

341.
1,366.
L
25

341.

683.

683.

683.

683.
6,149.

683
683

95.

10
24
50
78
96
72

28
12
61
69
02
44
85
00
00
00
77
0o

00

.45

15
60

62

99

64
50

64

25
25
25
28

00



PENTAMATION - FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT SYSTEM
DATE: 12/03/20

TIME: 16:05:

52

CITY OF WEST CHICAGO

CHECK REGISTER - DISBURSEMENT FUND

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.batch='G403’ and transact.ck_date='20201207 00:00:00.000’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD: 12/20

FUND - 40 - OPERATING FUND

CASH ACCT CHECK NO

105100
105100
105100

105100
105100
105100
105100
TOTAL CHECK

105100
105100
105100
TOTAL CHECK

105100
105100
TOTAL CHECK

105100
105100

105100
105100
TOTAL CHECK

105100

105100
105100
TOTAL CHECK

105100

105100
105100
105100
105100
105100
105100
105100
105100
105100
105100
105100
105100
105100
105100
105100

88944
BB945
BB9o46

88947
88947
88947
88947

88948
88948
88948

88949
88949

BESS50
88951

88952
88952

889532

88954
88954

BBIO95S

88956
88956
88956
B8B956
BB956
88956
BB956
BB956
BBI95S6
BBI956
BB956
BB9S6
B8B956
88956
889586

ISSUE DT
12/07/20
12/07/20
12/07/20

12/07/20
12/07/20
12/07/20
12/07/20

12/07/20
12/07/20
12/07/20

12/07/20
12/07/20

12/07/20
12/07/20

12/07/20
12/07/20

12/07/20

12/07/20
12/07/20

12/07/20

12/07/20
12/07/20
12/07/20
12/07/20
12/07/20
12/07/20
12/07/20
12/07/20
12/07/20
12/07/20
12/07/20
12/07/20
12/07/20
12/07/20
12/07/20

14865
15005
2084

11134
11134
11134
11134

13555
13555
13555

14376
14376

665
11273

12332
12332

15316

231
231

5000

6601
6601
6601
6601
6601
6601
6601
6601
6601
6601
6601
6601
6601
6601
6601

INTERSTATE POWER SYSTEMS

JERRY’S WELDING
JEWEL-0SCO

JUST SAFETY, LTD.
JUST SAFETY, LTD.
JUST SAFETY, LTD.
JUST SAFETY, LTD.

JX ENTERPRISES, INC
JX ENTERPRISES, INC
JX ENTERPRISES, INC

KLEIN, THORPE & JENKINS,
KLEIN, THORPE & JENKINS,

KRAMER TREE SPECIALISTS
LIFT WORKS INC.

LINDA MARTIN

LINDA MARTIN

MC LELAND, D. PAUL

MC MASTER-CARR SUPPLY CO
MC MASTER-CARR SUPPLY CO

MEADE, INC

MENARDS
MENARDS
MENARDS
MENARDS
MENARDS
MENARDS
MENARDS
MENARDS
MENARDS
MENARDS
MENARDS
MENARDS
MENARDS
MENARDS
MENARDS

DEPT-DIV

010925
010925
010501

083453
063448
063448
010924

010925
010925
010925

010110
010110

010922
063448

010510
010510

05

083453
010924

083453

010924
063447
063447
083453
083453
010613
063448
083453
083453
010613
053443
010825
010924
0109821
053443

INVOICE #R042029006:01
INVOICE #22053 DATED 1
110 GIFT CARDS - (ORDE

SCREWS NUTS WASHER
FIRST AID SUPPLIES
FIRST AID SUPPLIES
FIRST AID SUPPLIES

INVOICE #25134556P DAT
INVOICE #1895921P DATE
INVOICE #25134984P DAT

4766-011
4999-002

DISPOSAL OF LOGS FROM
INVOICE #149195A-1 DAT

ORDER #0697478710 12
SHIFPING

REFUND OF DUPLICATE PA

CLAMP
FOAM AND TOTE

INVOICE #694093 DATED

OCT 2020
OCT 2020
OCT 2020
OCT 2020
OCT 2020
OCT 2020
OCT 2020
INVOICE #15102 DATED 1
INVOICE #15902 DATED 1
OCT 2020
OCT 2020
OCT 2020
OCT 2020
OCT 2020
OCT 2020

o [=R=la] oo ocCooo

oo

o

CO0C00O000000000DO0O

[=N=N=lele]

.00

.00
.00
.00

.00
.00
.00
.00

.00
.00
.00

.00
.00

.00
.00
.00

.00

.00
.00
.00

.00

.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00

PAGE NUMBER:

AMOUNT

5,537.
380.

3,657.

64

123

1,240

780.
1,621.
2,401.

50.
150.
68.

1L
795

93

75..
29.
104.

367

3115,
31
26,
39,

i B
19.
59.

44

.42

45.

15,

.69

323.

-
49.

328
403

87

65
00

50

.38
270,
.45

34.
491.

00

05
88

.44
680.
.99
21,977

11
54
00
20
20
00
00
00

75
75

59

52
35
87

.50

67
22
97
27
94
80
75

41
54

96
43
88






PENTAMATION - FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT SYSTEM
DATE: 12/03/20 CITY OF WEST CHICAGO
TIME: 16:05:52 CHECK REGISTER - DISBURSEMENT FUND

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.batch='G403' and transact.ck_date='20201207 00:00:00.000’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD: 12/20

FUND - 40 - OPERATING FUND

CASH ACCT CHECK NO ISSUE DT ——-—e————mmme VENDOR~=—= ===mm———— DEPT-DIV @~ ————- DESCRIPTION-=—==— SALES TAX
105100 88963 12/07/20 14044 OZINGA READY MIX CONCRET 063447 INVOICE #1543517 DATED 0.00
TOTAL CHECK 0.00
105100 BB8964 12/07/20 15112 PACE SUBURBAN BUS 010207 AUG 2020 LOCAL SHARE; 0.00
105100 BBI965 12/07/20 15318 PATEL, PARTHIV 28 LETTER OF INTENT FOR 3 0.00
105100 B8966 12/07/20 12671 PEOPLE MADE VISIBLE, INC 010219 OPERATIONAL COSTS DUE 0.00
105100 BB966 12/07/20 12671 PEOPLE MADE VISIBLE, INC 010219 FOOD DISTRIBUTION FOR 0.00
TOTAL CHECK 0.00
105100 88967 12/07/20 15077 PETROCHOICE 010925 INVOICE #50385889 DATE 0.00
105100 88967 12/07/20 15077 PETROCHOICE 010925 INVOICE #50369380 DATE 0.00
TOTAL CHECK 0.00
105100 BB968 12/07/20 2487 PITNEY BOWES 010510 RED INK CARTRIDGE (60 0.00
105100 88968 12/07/20 2487 PITNEY BOWES 053443 RED INK CARTRIDGE (60 0.00
105100 BB9E8 12/07/20 2487 PITNEY BOWES 063447 RED INK CARTRIDGE (60 0.00
105100 BB968 12/07/20 2487 PITNEY BOWES 010510 EZ SEAL 1 BOX 0.00
105100 BBYE8 12/07/20 2487 PITNEY BOWES 053443 EZ SEAL 1 BOX 0.00
105100 88968 12/07/20 2487 PITNEY BOWES 063447 EZ SEAL 1 BOX 0.00
105100 88968 12/07/20 2487 PITNEY BOWES 010510 POSTAGE TAPE ROLLS (2 0.00
105100 BB968 12/07/20 2487 PITNEY BOWES 053443 POSTAGE TAPE ROLLS (2 0.00
105100 88968 12/07/20 2487 PITNEY BOWES 063447 POSTAGE TAPE ROLLS (2 0.00
TOTAL CHECK 0.00
105100 BB969 12/07/20 14172 PLANET DEPOS, LLC 011028 EXPEDITED HEARING TRAN 0.00
105100 88970 12/07/20 3714 POMP’'S TIRE SERVICE, INC 010925 INVOICE #640086112 DAT 0.00
105100 BB970 12/07/20 3714 POMP’S TIRE SERVICE, INC 010925 INVOICE #640086112 DAT 0.00
TOTAL CHECK 0.00
105100 88971 12/07/20 7404 MICHAEL POTAPCZAK 010613 REIMBURSEMENT DET POTA 0.00
105100 BB972 12/07/20 492 RAY O'HERRON, INC. 010613 INVOICE #2064985-IN 0.00
105100 88973 12/07/20 13908 RUSH TRUCK CENTERS OF IL 010825 INVOICE #3021296779 DA 0.00
105100 88973 12/07/20 13908 RUSH TRUCK CENTERS OF IL 010925 INVOICE #3021330518 DA 0.00
105100 88973 12/07/20 13908 RUSH TRUCK CENTERS OF IL 010925 INVOICE #3021395866 DA 0.00
105100 88973 12/07/20 13908 RUSH TRUCK CENTERS OF IL 010925 INVOICE #3021406394 DA 0.00
105100 BB8973 12/07/20 13908 RUSH TRUCK CENTERS OF IL 010925 INVOICE #3021426386 DA 0.00
105100 BB8973 12/07/20 13908 RUSH TRUCK CENTERS OF IL 063447 INVOICE #3021380447 DA 0.00
105100 B8973 12/07/20 13908 RUSH TRUCK CENTERS OF IL 010925 INVOICE #3021393318 DA 0.00
105100 B8973 12/07/20 13908 RUSH TRUCK CENTERS OF IL 010925 INVOICE #3021457254 DA 0.00
105100 B8973 12/07/20 13908 RUSH TRUCK CENTERS OF IL 063447 INVOICE #3021459855 DA 0.00
105100 B8B973 12/07/20 13908 RUSH TRUCK CENTERS OF IL 063447 INVOICE #3021500122 DA 0.00
105100 88973 12/07/20 13908 RUSH TRUCK CENTERS OF IL 063447 INVOICE #3021567513 DA 0.00
105100 88973 12/07/20 13908 RUSH TRUCK CENTERS OF IL 010925 CREDIT MEMO 0.00
105100 88973 12/07/20 13908 RUSH TRUCK CENTERS OF IL 010925 CREDIT 0.00
105100 BB973 12/07/20 13908 RUSH TRUCK CENTERS OF IL 010925 INVOICE #3021426387 DA 0.00
105100 885973 12/07/20 13908 RUSH TRUCK CENTERS OF IL 063447 3021441307 0.00
TOTAL CHECK 0.00

PAGE NUMBER:
ACCTPA21

AMOUNT

25
2,957,

27
1,500.

50,000.
10,000.
60,000.

964,
483.
1,447,

322,
322.
3232
25
25.
26.
5%
.53
BO.
1,283.

78
78

675.

817.
120.
937.

273.
108.

909,
-1]
39,
38.
159,
174
56.

373

20
83

00
00

90
0o

00
00
00

40
14
54

98
98
98
24
24
01

82
41
84
az
00
32
36
00
70
18
17
67

24
39

.73
.17
85,
160.
-631.
-56.
2,117,
500.
4,030.

26
30
75
39
38
00
63






PENTAMATION - FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT SYSTEM PAGE NUMBER: 11
DATE: 12/03/20 CITY OF WEST CHICAGO ACCTPA21
TIME: 16:05:52 CHECK REGISTER - DISBURSEMENT FUND

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.batch='G403’ and transact.ck _date='20201207 00:00:00.000"
ACCOUNTING PERIOD: 12/20

FUND - 40 - OPERATING FUND

CASH ACCT CHECK NO ISSUE DT --———————————- VENDOR==—== ———————e DEPT-DIV @~ = ————= DESCRIPTION-=—=~- SALES TAX AMOUNT
105100 Bg8988 12/07/20 15321 TOPNOTCH SILKSCREENING I 093454 FROSTY 5K SHIRTS; INV# 0.00 1,566.00
105100 88989 12/07/20 15072 TOSCAS LAW GROUP 010613 STATEMENT DATE: 11 30 0.00 150.00
105100 88989 12/07/20 15072 TOSCAS LAW GROUP 011029 CONDUCT ADMINISTRATIVE 0.00 675.00
105100 88989 12/07/20 15072 TOSCAS LAW GROUP 010613 STATEMENT DATE: 11 16 0.00 150.00
105100 88989 12/07/20 15072 TOSCAS LAW GROUP 010613 STATEMENT DATE: 11 18 0.00 675.00
105100 88989 12/07/20 15072 TOSCAS LAW GROUP 010613 STATEMENT DATE: 11 19 0.00 600.00
TOTAL CHECK 0.00 2,250.00
105100 889390 12/07/20 286 TS SPECIALTIES, INC. 010925 WORK ORDER #20887 DATE 0.00 438.95
105100 B8990 12/07/20 286 TS SPECIALTIES, INC. 010925 WORK ORDER #21045 DATE 0.00 14.95
TOTAL CHECK 0.00 453.90
105100 88991 12/07/20 4985 THE UPS STORE 010613 AXON RETURN 0.00 20.20
105100 Bgss2 12/07/20 4322 US POSTMASTER 010208 POSTAGE FOR WINDOW TO 0.00 2,100.00
105100 BB993 12/07/20 4406 U.S5.A. BLUEBOOK 063448 INVOICE #417549 DATED 0.00 344.72
105100 8B993 12/07/20 4406 U.S.A. BLUEBOOK 063447 SILICONE 0.00 98.31
105100 BB993 12/07/20 4406 U.S.A. BLUEBOCK 063448 MESH 0.00 B5.18
TOTAL CHECK 0.00 528.21
105100 BB994 12/07/20 4207 VERIZON WIRELESS 053443 11/24-12/23/20 0.00 19.00
105100 88994 12/07/20 4207 VERIZON WIRELESS 063447 11/24-12/23/20 0.00 19.01
105100 88994 12/07/20 4207 VERIZON WIRELESS 011029 11/24-12/23/20 0.00 114.03
105100 88994 12/07/20 4207 VERIZON WIRELESS 010510 11/24-12/23/20 0.00 38.01
105100 88994 12/07/20 4207 VERIZON WIRELESS 010613 11/24-12/23/20 0.00 76.02
105100 88994 12/07/20 4207 VERIZON WIRELESS 010210 11/24-12/23/20 0.00 38.01
105100 88994 12/07/20 4207 VERIZON WIRELESS 010613 11/7-12/6/20 0.00 1,778.43
105100 88994 12/07/20 4207 VERIZON WIRELESS 010614 11/7-12/6/20 0.00 76.02
105100 88994 12/07/20 4207 VERIZON WIRELESS 010210 11/7-12/6/20 0.00 38.01
105100 88994 12/07/20 4207 VERIZON WIRELESS 010504 11/7-12/6/20 0.00 38.01
105100 88994 12/07/20 4207 VERIZON WIRELESS 010502 11/7-12/6/20 0.00 38.01
105100 BB994 12/07/20 4207 VERIZON WIRELESS 010510 11/7-12/6/20 0.00 38.01
105100 BB994 12/07/20 4207 VERIZON WIRELESS 010110 11/7-12/6/20 0.00 38.01
105100 B8994 12/07/20 4207 VERIZON WIRELESS 053443 11/10-12/9/20 0.00 832.23
TOTAL CHECK 0.00 2,880.81
105100 B899S 12/07/20 4207 VERIZON WIRELESS 010210 11/24-12/23/20 0.00 42 .41
105100 B8B995 12/07/20 4207 VERIZON WIRELESS 010613 11/24-12/23/20 0.00 1,060.50
105100 88995 12/07/20 4207 VERIZON WIRELESS 010501 11/24-12/23/20 0.00 42.41
105100 88995 12/07/20 4207 VERIZON WIRELESS 010510 11/24-12/23/20 0.00 42.41
105100 88955 12/07/20 4207 VERIZON WIRELESS 011029 11/24-12/23/20 0.00 48.55
105100 88935 12/07/20 4207 VERIZON WIRELESS 010208 11/24-12/23/20 0.00 42.41
TOTAL CHECK 0.00 1,278.69
105100 BB996 12/07/20 4823 WATER PRODUCTS AURORA 063447 INVOICE #0299440 DATED 0.00 525.10
105100 BB996 12/07/20 4823 WATER PRODUCTS AURORA 063447 HAWTHORNE REPAIR 0.00 146.56
TOTAL CHECK 0.00 671.66

105100 88997 12/07/20 13109 WATER RESOURCES, INC 063447 INVOICE #34364 DATED 1 0.00 1,335.00









PENTAMATION - FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

DATE:

12/03/20
TIME: 15:

20:01

CITY OF WEST CHICAGO

SELECTION CRITERIA: payable.due date='20201207 00:00:00.000°'
PAYMENT TYPE: ALL

FUND - 01 - GENERAL FUND

DEPT-DIV

010501
010501
010501
010501
010501
010501
010501
010501
010501

ACCOUNT

4053
4100
4100
4100
4108
4202
4680
4680
4680

TOTAL ADMIN SERVICES-HR

010502

4202

TOTAL ADMIN SERVICES-ACCTG

010503
010503
010503
010503
010503
010503

4105
4105
4109
4109
4125
4225

TOTAL ADMIN SERVICES-IT

010504
010504
010504

4202
4600
4600

TOTAL ADMIN SERVICES-GIS

010510
010510
010510
010510
010510
010510
010510
010510
010510

4202
4202
4202
4501
4501
4501
4600
4600
4600

TOTAL ADMIN SERVICES-ADMIN

010613
010613
010613
010613
010613

4100
4100
4100
4100
4100

TITLE VENDOR
HEALTH/DENTAL/LI 11307 HEALTHSMART
LEGAL FEES 12853 GOLDSTINE, SKRODZKI,
LEGAL FEES 12853 GOLDSTINE, SKRODZKI,
LEGAL FEES 12853 GOLDSTINE, SKRODZKI,
EMPLOYMENT EXAMS 13783 CONRAD POLYGRAPH, INC
TELEPHONE & ALAR 4207 VERIZON WIRELESS
SPECIAL EVENTS 12370 CENTRAL DUPAGE HOSPIT
SPECIAL EVENTS 15315 ST. SEBASTIAN PARISH
SPECIAL EVENTS 2084 JEWEL-0SCO
TELEPHONE & ALAR 4207 VERIZON WIRELESS
CONSULTANTS 14400 7 LAYER SOLUTIONS, IN
CONSULTANTS 14400 7 LAYER SOLUTIONS, IN
NETWORK CHARGES 13068 AT & T
NETWORK CHARGES 13089 COMCAST
SOFTWARE MAINTEN 14400 7 LAYER SOLUTIONS, IN
OTHER CONTRACTUA 14400 7 LAYER SOLUTIONS, IN
TELEPHCONE & ALAR 4207 VERIZON WIRELESS
COMPUTER/OFFICE 9904 VICTORIA HYNES
COMPUTER/OFFICE 9904 VICTORIA HYNES
TELEPHONE & ALAR 4207 VERIZON WIRELESS
TELEPHONE & ALAR 4207 VERIZON WIRELESS
TELEPHONE & ALAR 4207 VERIZON WIRELESS
POSTAL METER REN 2487 PITNEY BOWES
POSTAL METER REN 2487 PITNEY BOWES
POSTAL METER REN 2487 PITNEY BOWES
COMPUTER/OFFICE 12332 LINDA MARTIN
COMPUTER/OFFICE 12332 LINDA MARTIN
COMPUTER/OFFICE 12617 ACCURATE OFFICE SUPPL
LEGAL FEES 12853 GOLDSTINE, SKRODZKI,
LEGAL FEES 15072 TOSCAS LAW GROUP
LEGAL FEES 15072 TOSCAS LAW GROUP
LEGAL FEES 15072 TOSCAS LAW GROUP
LEGAL FEES 15072 TOSCAS LAW GROUP

RUN DATE 12/03/2020 TIME 15:20:02

CASH REQUIREMENTS BILL LIST

P.O.'S

00094472-01
00095114-01
00095115-01
00095116-01
00095182-01

00095084-01
00095083-01
00095171-01

00093205-01
00095189-01

00093602-01

00095139-01
00095139-02

00095127-01
00095127-02
00095127-03
00095190-01
00095190-02

00095114-01
00095113-01
00095126-01
00095126-02
00095147-01

PENTAMATION - FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

INVOICE BATCH
F1020032 G403
153522 G403
153521 G403
153520 G403
4150 G403
585742141-00G403
1422 G403
JAKABCSIN G403
635331 G403

980505522-00G403

5377 G403
5449 G403
111338329 G403
500006701 G403
5369 G403
5376 G403

980505522-00G403
REIMBURSEMENG403
REIMBURSEMENG403

980505522-00G403
585040673-00G403
585742141-00G403

1016771326 G403
1016771326 G403
1016771326 G403
0697478710 G403
0697478710 G403
OCT 2020 G403
153522 G403

11/20 RED LIG403
ADMIN HEARING403
ADMIN HEARING403
NOV 2020 REDG403

(= e e I e B o B e o e B

[=] o o

[=N=NaNaloRal

(=]

PAGE NUMBER:
ACCTPAY1
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:

SALES TARX

.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00

.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00

.00

0.00

.00

0.00

CoocoooCOoOoo o

(=]

o000

.00

.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00

.00

.00
.00
.00
.00
.00

2

12/20

AMOUNT

100.
235.
.25
1175.
320.
42.
1449.
140.
3657.

646

7765.

38.

38

53589.
650.
72.
572,
3345.
925,

10924

38.
16.
49,

104

38.
38
.41
322.
25.
T8
68.
e iz S
.35

42

210

835.

235.
150.
675.
600.
150.

00
00

00
oo
41
00
00
50

16

01

.01

16
00
69
33
00
00

.18

01
95
29

.95

01
01

98
24
53
00
75

28

00
0o
00
00
00


















PENTAMATION - FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT SYSTEM
DATE: 12/03/20
TIME: 15:20:01

CITY OF WEST CHICAGO
CASH REQUIREMENTS BILL LIST

SELECTION CRITERIA: payable.due_date='20201207 00:00:00.000’
PAYMENT TYPE: ALL

FUND - 04 - CAPITAL EQUIF. REPLACE

PAGE NUMBER:
ACCTPAY1

8

ACCOUNTING PERIOD: 12/20

DEPT-DIV ACCOUNT —====- TITLE VENDOR: ---= P.0.'S INVOICE BATCH SALES TAX
043439 4804 VEHICLES 546 WEST SIDE TRACTOR SAL 00094540-01 CO01553 G403 0.00
TOTAL CAPITAL EQUIPMENT REPLACE 0.00

0.00

TOTAL FUND

RUN DATE 12/03/2020 TIME 15:20:02

PENTAMATION - FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

AMOUNT
19482.00
19482.00

19482.00






PENTAMATION - FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT SYSTEM PAGE NUMBER: 10

DATE: 12/03/20 CITY OF WEST CHICAGO ACCTPAY1

TIME: 15:20:01 CASH REQUIREMENTS BILL LIST ACCOUNTING PERIOD: 12/20
SELECTION CRITERIA: payable.due date='20201207 00:00:00.000'

PAYMENT TYPE: ALL

FUND - 06 - WATER FUND

DEPT-DIV ACCOUNT TITLE VENDOR P.O.’'S INVOICE BATCH SALES TAX AMOUNT
06 140000 PREPAID EXPENDIT 11129 MOE FUNDS JAN 2021 G403 0.00 10113 .44
TOTAL WATER FUND 0.00 10113 .44
063447 4100 LEGAL FEES 12853 GOLDSTINE, SKRODZKI, 00095115-01 153521 G403 0.00 646.25
063447 4100 LEGAL FEES 7994 BOND, DICKSON & ASSOC 00095129-01 OCT 2020 G403 0.00 80.00
063447 4105 CONSULTANTS 14400 7 LAYER SOLUTIONS, IN 00093205-01 5377 G403 0.00 5359.17
063447 4105 CONSULTANTS 14400 7 LAYER SOLUTIONS, IN 00095189-01 5449 G403 0.00 650.00
063447 4110 TRAINING & TUITI 15317 WILLIAMS, NICK 00095096-01 CDL G403 0.00 60.00
063447 4202 TELEPHONE & ALAR 12709 SPRINT 539996026 G403 0.00 180.96
063447 4202 TELEPHONE & ALAR 13107 AT & T MOBILITY 287240545187G403 0.00 189.92
063447 4202 TELEPHONE & ALAR 4207 VERIZON WIRELESS 585040673-00G403 0.00 19.01
063447 4216 GROUNDS MAINTENA 12131 CLASSIC LANDSCAPE, LT 00094017-01 142128 G403 0.00 380.00
063447 4225 OTHER CONTRACTUA 14400 7 LAYER SOLUTIONS, IN 5376 G403 0.00 462.50
063447 4400 VEHICLE REPAIR 13908 RUSH TRUCK CENTERS OF 00095178-01 3021380447 G403 0.00 174.24
063447 4400 VEHICLE REPAIR 12908 RUSH TRUCK CENTERS OF 00055178-08 3021441307 G403 0.00 500.00
063447 4420 PUMF STATION REP 5320 HBK WATER METER SERVI 00094659-01 200563 G403 0.00 1200.00
063447 4501 POSTAL METER REN 2487 PITNEY BOWES 00095127-01 1016771326 G403 0.00 322.98
063447 4501 POSTAL METER REN 2487 PITNEY BOWES 00095127-02 1016771326 G403 0.00 26.01
063447 4501 POSTAL METER REN 2487 PITNEY BOWES 00095127-03 1016771326 G403 0.00 B0.92
063447 4600 COMPUTER/OFFICE 12617 ACCURATE OFFICE SUPPL OCT 2020 G403 0.00 39.81
063447 4600 COMPUTER/OFFICE 12617 ACCURATE OFFICE SUPPL OCT 2020 G403 0.00 210.35
063447 4603 PARTS FOR VEHICL 13908 RUSH TRUCK CENTERS OF 00095178-04 3021459855 G403 0.00 83.17
063447 4603 PARTS FOR VEHICL 13908 RUSH TRUCK CENTERS OF 00095178-05 3021500122 G403 0.00 85.26
063447 4603 PARTS FOR VEHICL 13908 RUSH TRUCK CENTERS OF 00095178-06 3021567513 G403 0.00 160.30
063447 4603 PARTS FOR VEHICL 2013 GRAINGER 9714985166 G403 0.00 149.45
063447 4603 PARTS FOR VEHICL 3829 ATLAS BOBCAT, INC. 00095154-01 BT2236 G403 0.00 92.55
063447 4603 PARTS FOR VEHICL 4735 NAPA AUTO PARTS 3627-246943 G403 0.00 49.42
063447 4603 PARTS FOR VEHICL 4735 NAPA AUTC PARTS 4496-119029 G403 0.00 115.93
063447 4603 PARTS FOR VEHICL 4735 NAPA AUTO PARTS 4496-119998 G403 0.00 44 .87
063447 4603 PARTS FOR VEHICL 4735 NAPA AUTO PARTS 4496-119311 G403 0.00 45.65
063447 4604 TOOLS & EQUIPMEN 2013 GRAINGER 00095102-01 9702216335 G403 0.00 2999.45
063447 4620 PARTS & EQUIPMEN 2013 GRAINGER 9721559863 G403 0.00 39.50
063447 4621 PARTS & EQUIPMEN 14044 OZINGA READY MIX CONC 00095059-01 1538947 G403 0.00 959.00
063447 4621 PARTS & EQUIPMEN 14044 OZINGA READY MIX CONC 00095124-02 1543517 G403 0.00 725.00
063447 4621 PARTS & EQUIPMEN 2810 CORE & MAIN, LP N339545 G403 0.00 26.92
063447 4621 PARTS & EQUIPMEN 2810 CORE & MAIN, LP 00095134-01 N297257 G403 0.00 730.44
063447 4621 PARTS & EQUIPMEN 2810 CORE & MAIN, LP 00095134-02 N281543 G403 0.00 2261.00
063447 4621 PARTS & EQUIPMEN 2810 CORE & MAIN, LP 00095179-01 N339515 G403 0.00 1314 .68
063447 4621 PARTS & EQUIPMEN 4406 U.S.A. BLUEBCOK 414105 G403 0.00 98.31
063447 4621 PARTS & EQUIPMEN 4823 WATER PRODUCTS AURORA 0299504 G403 0.00 146.56
063447 4621 PARTS & EQUIPMEN 4823 WATER PRODUCTS AURCRA 00095108-01 0299440 G403 0.00 525.10
063447 4621 PARTS & EQUIPMEN 6601 MENARDS OCT 2020 G403 0.00 810.09
063447 4622 PARTS & EQUIP-PU 6601 MENARDS OCT 2020 G403 0.00 26.97
063447 4641 WATER METERS/PAR 13109 WATER RESOURCES, INC 00095133-01 34364 G403 0.00 1335.00
063447 4650 MISCELLANEOUS CO 6601 MENARDS OCT 2020 G403 0.00 31.22
TOTAL WATER-PRODUCTION/DIST 0.00 23437.96

RUN DATE 12/03/2020 TIME 15:20:03

PENTAMATION -~ FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT SYSTEM












PENTAMATION - FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT SYSTEM
DATE: 12/03/20
TIME: 15:20:01

CITY OF WEST CHICAGO
CASH REQUIREMENTS BILL LIST

SELECTION CRITERIA: payable.due_ date='20201207 00:00:00.000'

PAYMENT TYPE: ALL

FUND - 09 - DOWNTOWN TIF SPEC PROJ

PAGE NUMBER:
ACCTPAY1

DEPT-DIV ACCOUNT -TITLE

09 140000 PREPAID EXPENDIT 11129
TOTAL DOWNTOWN TIF SPEC PROJ

093454 4216 GROUNDS MAINTEMA 12131
093454 4680 SPECIAL EVENTS 15321

TOTAL DOWNTOWN TIF

TOTAL FUND

RUN DATE 12/03/2020 TIME 15:20:03

VENDOR. P.O0.'S INVOICE BATCH SALES TAX
MOE FUNDS JAN 2021 G403 0.00
0.00

CLASSIC LANDSCAPE, LT 00094017-01 142128 G403 0.00
TOPNOTCH SILKSCREENIN 00095166-01 20-57070 G403 0.00
0.00

0.00

PENTAMATION - FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

ACCOUNTING PERIOD:

14

12/20

AMOUNT

1631.
1631

670.
1566.

2236

3867

20

20

00
00

.00

.20









City of West Chicago
Regular City Council Meeting
November 16, 2020

Page 3

10. Unfinished Business: From Item 8.F. Resolution 20-R-0058 — A Resolution Authorizing
the Mayor to Execute a Contract Agreement with Cemetery Management Inc., for Professional
Services Related to Cemetery Sexton at the City’s Glen Oak and Oakwood Cemeteries for
Fiscal Years 2021, 2022, and 2023 (for an amount not to exceed $80,000.00)

Alderman Chassee made a motion, seconded by Alderman Birch-Ferguson, to approve
Resolution 20-R-0058. During discussion, Alderman Ferguson remarked that the salary is
$7,200.00 per year, but it went to $80,000.00 annually. City Administrator Guttman said the
salary is $7,200.00 per year, but increases due to the number of internments, but cannot go
beyond $80,000.00. Voting Aye: Aldermen Chassee, Beifuss, Brown, Sheahan, Hallett,
Ferguson, Dimas, Birch-Ferguson, Garling, Swiatek, Short, Stout, Jakabesin, and Ligina-
Kubinski. Voting Nay: 0. Motion carried.

11. New Business: Alderman Swiatek inquired about discussion on the Chamber program for
next year. Atthe Mayor's request, City Administrator Guttman said this item would be going to
the Public Affairs Committee meeting later this month.

12. Correspondence and Announcements

Upcoming Meetings

November 17, 2020 Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals (cancelled)
November 23, 2020 Public Affairs Committee

November 24, 2020 Historical Preservation Commission

November 26, 2020 Finance Committee (cancelled)

December 1, 2020  Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals

December 3, 2020  Infrastructure Committee

13. Mayor's Comments. The Mayor acknowledged that everyone has seen the numbers
regarding COVID-19, which are for real. He said everyone must be careful or the Governor will
reissue a stay-at-home order, COVID-19 is three times more than three weeks ago. The
hospitals are getting full again. Schools were expected to open tomorrow. Two vaccines came
out today, but we do not know when they will be available to the public. There will be a testing
station this Saturday at the Metra station from 10:00 am to 4:00 pm. And St. Andrew Church is
still a testing site.

The Mayor wished for people to re-think their Thanksgiving plans. Only the immediate family
should be present, and if someone comes from another place, everyone should wear their mask
and keep a social distance. The Mayor wished everyone a great Thanksgiving.

14. Executive Session. There was no executive session.
15. Items to be Referred for Final Action from Executive Session. Not applicable.

16. Adjournment. At 7:28 pm, Alderman Chassee made a motion, seconded by Alderman
Stout, to adjourn. Voting Aye: Aldermen Chassee, Beifuss, Brown, Sheahan, Hallett,
Ferguson, Dimas, Birch-Ferguson, Garling, Swiatek, Short, Stout, Jakabesin, and Ligino-
Kubinski. Voting Nay: 0. Motion carried.

Respectfully submitted,

1 anen, TN /g'rmuﬁq

Nancy M. Smith
City Clerk



CITY OF WEST CHICAGO

INFRASTRUCTURE COMMITTEE
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

ITEM TITLE:

AGENDA ITEM NUMBER: B.A.
Procurement of Organic Enhanced Salt Brine Blend Liquid for
Roadway Anti-lcing and Road Salt Pre-Wetting from Gasaway

Distributors, Inc. COMMITTEE AGENDA DATE: December 3, 2020

COUNCIL AGENDA DATE: December 7, 2020

STAFF REVIEW: Robert E. Flatter, P.E., Director of Public Works SIGNATUR%

APPROVED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR: Michael L. Guttman
SIGNATURE

ITEM SUMMARY:

Annually, since circa 2010, the City purchases and utilizes an organic enhanced salt brine blend liquid which is
sprayed on City streets in advance of a snow storm event (i.e., anti-icing) and sprayed onto road salt as it is
dispensed from trucks (i.e., pre-wetting) to enhance the snow and ice melting effects and minimize salt bounce.
Typically the blend utilized is a 70/20/10 mixture consisting of 70% salt brine, 20% organic substance (e.g., beet
juice, etc.), and 10% calcium chloride.

Associated with construction of the new salt barn at 1350 W. Hawthorne Lane, the City recently installed three
10,000-gallon poly-tanks for storage of the organic enhanced salt brine blend liquid. These three tanks, combined
with the two existing 4,500-gallon tanks at the Street Division Garage, located at 135 W. Grandlake Boulevard,
give the City a storage capacity of 39,000 gallons. Use of the organic enhanced salt brine blend liquid helps to
minimize the use of road salt and, for small snow events (i.e., dustings of %" or less), helps to minimize the need
for snow response.

Use of the organic enhanced salt brine blend liquid is directly dependent on winter weather conditions, roadway
temperatures, and number of snow or icing events. During the heart of winter, 5,400 gallons of liquid may be used
per event (i.e., approximately 3,400 gallons to spray/anti-ice all roads in advance of the snow event and
approximately 2,000 gallons to pre-wet road salt during the event).

Annually staff seeks comparable pricing for the 70/20/10 mixture delivered. For the 2020-2021 winter season, the
lowest pricing received was from Gasaway Distributors, Inc. of Oak Brook lllinois, at $0.85 per gallon. Pricing was
also received from Industrial Systems, Ltd. of Lakemoor, lllinois, at $1.12 per gallon, and SNI Solutions of
Geneseo, lllinois, at $1.20 per gallon.

Staff seeks authorization to purchase, and have delivered, up to 47,000 gallons of organic enhanced salt brine
blend liquid from Gasaway Distributors, Inc. of Oak Brook, lllinois, for an amount not to exceed $40,000.00, for the

2020-2021 winter season.

Purchase of the organic enhanced salt brine blend liquid will be paid from the Capital Projects Funds (08-34-53-
4611) where adequate funds are budgeted for the 2020-2021 winter season.

ACTIONS PROPOSED:

Authorize the purchase and delivery of up to 47,000 gallons of organic enhanced salt brine blend liquid from
Gasaway Distributors, Inc. of Oak Brook, lllinois, for an amount not to exceed $40,000.00, for the 2020-2021
winter season.




CITY OF WEST CHICAGO

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION:

Pending recommendation from the Infrastructure Committee at its meeting on December 3, 2020. If not approved
by Committee on December 3, 2020, this ltem will go to the December 21, 2020, City Council Meeting.




CITY OF WEST CHICAGO

INFRASTRUCTURE COMMITTEE
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

ITEM TITLE:
AGENDA ITEM NUMBER: 3.6,

Change Order No.1 & Final - 2020 Emerald Ash Borer
Insecticidal Treatment Program COMMITTEE AGENDA DATE: December 3, 2020
COUNCIL AGENDA DATE: December 7, 2020

STAFF REVIEW: Robert E. Flatter, P.E., Director of Public Works SIGNATUZ%
APPROVED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR: Michael L. Guttman SIGNATU

ITEM SUMMARY:

On Friday, August 28, 2020, the City Administrator executed a Contract with Emerald Tree Care, LLC of
Roselle, lllinois, to provide Basil System Soil injections as part of the on-going Citywide Emerald Ash
Borer (EAB) Insecticidal Treatment Program. Treatment consists of Basil System Soil injections with an
insecticide known as Imidacloprid and balanced with fertilizers, micronutrients, and organic bio-stimulants
to support plant functions, promote root growth, improve overall plant health, and to manage the spread
and negative impact of the EAB for Ash trees in various parkway and other City owned property
locations. The Fiscal Year 2020 contract was executed for an amount not to exceed $19,950.00, which
was based on treatment for an estimated 15,960 diameter inches at a treatment cost of $1.25 per inch
diameter. However, the final cost of services is to be based on actual field measurements taken at the
time of treatment.

The actual treated Ash tree total for Fiscal Year 2020 was 1,242 trees with a measured overall total of
17,778 diameter inches (1,818 diameter inch increase over the estimated amount), resulting in an overall
contract amount of $22,222.50 for services rendered. The additional cost of $2,272.50 for the 2020
Emerald Ash Borer Insecticidal Treatment Program results in a final contract value that exceeds the
spending authority of the City Administrator.

Therefore, staff recommends approval of Change Order No. 1 and Final, in the amount of $2,272.50, to
the Contract with Emerald Tree Care, LLC of Roselle, lllinois, for 2020 Emerald Ash Borer Insecticidal
Treatment Program, resulting in an overall contract total of $22,222.50.

ACTIONS PROPOSED:

Approve Change Order No. 1 and Final, in the amount of $2,272.50, to the Contract with Emerald Tree
Care, LLC of Roselle, lllinois, for 2020 Emerald Ash Borer Insecticidal Treatment Program, resulting in an

overall contract total of $22,222.50.

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION:

Pending recommendation from the Infrastructure Committee at its meeting on December 3, 2020. If not
approved by Committee on December 3, 2020, this Item will go to the December 21, 2020, City Council

Meeting.




CITY OF WEST CHICAGO

INFRASTRUCTURE COMMITTEE

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

ITEM TITLE:
AGENDA ITEM NUMBER: 3.C.

Resolution No. 20-R-0074 — Contract Amendment No. 1 -

Procurement of Coarse and Fine Aggregate Material Delivered

For Fiscal Year 2021 COUNCIL AGENDA DATE: December ?, 2020
_.-Fﬁ

COMMITTEE AGENDA DATE: December 3, 2020

STAFF REVIEW: Robert E. Flatter, P.E., Director of Public Works s:anuu%-

APPROVED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR: Michael L. Guttman SIGNATURE

ITEM SUMMARY:

Aggregate Material, such as gravel, rock and sand, is used in numerous maintenance and repair activities
performed by staff in the Public Works Department, including shoulder work on unimproved roads and alleys, sand
bags, and underground utility repairs in or near streets and sidewalks. Aggregate material is ordered and
delivered on an as needed basis and total quantities vary each year, mostly dependent on the number of utility
repairs (i.e., watermain breaks, sanitary sewer blockages and repairs, etc.). Aggregate material purchase is
budgeted and paid for from the Sewer Fund, Water Fund and General Fund. The specifications allow for
variations in total unit quantities ordered based on the needs for each item, provided the total contract amount is
not exceeded. Estimated quantities are used for bidding for the purpose of establishing unit prices.

The current 2020 Coarse and Fine Aggregate Materials Delivered contract, which was awarded to Viking Brothers,
Inc. of Aurora, lllinois, in the amount of $47,390.00, contains a clause the reads “The contract may be extended for
two (2) additional years through mutual agreement between the Successful Bidder and the City of West Chicago
for the same unit prices.” On November 16, 2020, staff received a letter from Mr. Craig Melby, President of Viking
Brothers, Inc., which indicated a willingness to hold its 2020 unit prices for Fiscal Year 2021 (letter attached).

Viking Brothers, Inc. performed very well during 2020. Therefore, it is staff's recommendation that a Contract
extension be awarded for procurement of coarse and fine aggregate material delivered for Fiscal Year 2021 to
Viking Brothers, Inc. of Aurora, lllinois, for an amount not to exceed $47,390.00 (identical to contract/bid amount
awarded for Fiscal Year 2020).

ACTIONS PROPOSED:

Approve Resolution No. 20-R-0074 authorizing the Mayor to execute Contract Amendment No. 1 with Viking
Brothers, Inc. of Aurora, lllinois, for the procurement of coarse and fine aggregate material delivered for Fiscal
Year 2021, for an amount not to exceed $47,390.00.

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION:

Pending recommendation from the Infrastructure Committee at its meeting on December 3, 2020. If not approved
by Committee on December 3, 2020, this Item will go to the December 21, 2020, City Council Meeting.




CITY OF WEST CHICAGO

INFRASTRUCTURE COMMITTEE
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

ITEM TITLE:
AGENDA ITEM NUMBER: __&.0.

Resolution No. 20-R-0076 — Contract Award — Donohue &
Associates, Inc. — Phosphorous Removal Pilot Study for
the West Chicago/Winfield Wastewater Authority Regional
Wastewater Treatment Plant.

COMMITTEE AGENDA DATE: December 3, 2020
COUNCIL AGENDA DATE: December 7, 2020

STAFF REVIEW: Robert E. Flatter, P.E., Director of Public Works SIGNATUR

APPROVED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR: Michael L. Guttman
SIGNATURE

ITEM SUMMARY:

On June 1, 2015, authorized by Resolution No. 15-R-0030, the Mayor executed an Agreement with the DuPage
River Salt Creek Workgroup for participation in its local funding program to complete alternate stream restoration
projects required as a special condition of the City's National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES)
Permit for its then Regional Wastewater Treatment Plant; known today as the West Chicago/Winfield Wastewater
Authority (WCWWA) Regional Wastewater Treatment Plant.

The WCWWA Regional Wastewater Treatment Plant (WWTP) operates under an NPDES permit regulated by the
lllinois Environmental Protection Agency (IEPA); Permit No. IL0024369. As authorized by the Clean Water Act, the
NPDES permit program controls water pollution by regulating point sources that discharge pollutants into waters of
the United States. Water pollution degrades surface waters making them unsafe for drinking, fishing, swimming,
and other activities. Industrial, municipal, and other facilities must obtain permits from the IEPA if their discharges
go directly to surface waters and must renew its permit every five years. For years, the USEPA has pressured the
IEPA to impose new and stricter nutrient removal limitations on wastewater treatment plants consistent with

national policy.

One local environmental group, the DuPage River Salt Creek Workgroup (DRSCW), formed in 2005 in response
to concerns about Total Maximum Daily Loads (TMDLs) being set for the East & West Branches of the DuPage
River and Salt Creek, is made up of local communities, Publically Owned Treatment Works (POTWs) or WWTPs,
and private environmental organizations. The DRSCW has been working to produce comprehensive data sets for
local watersheds to determine and resolve priority stressors to local aquatic systems. The organization continues
to implement targeted watershed activities that resolve priority waterway problems efficiently and cost effectively.
Working directly with the other environmental groups and the IEPA, the DRSCW has created, submitted, and
received support for the implementation of special permit conditions and stream restoration projects. It is
DRSCW's plan that implementation of its stream restoration projects will produce the greatest improvement in
water quality and habitat for less money than individual POTW projects. As a result of being a member of the
DRSCW and paying Project Funding Assessments, participating POTWs received a temporary reprieve from the
IEPA to upgrade its own POTW and comply with strict phosphorus limits likely to be imposed by the IEPA.

With participation in the DRSCW watershed activities and planning projects, the WCWWA is committed to paying
for DRSCW's planning projects thru DRSCW'’s Fiscal Year 2022-2023 (ending February 28, 2023). Most of the
projects are not in the West Branch of the DuPage River, which is West Chicago’s watershed. The following
provides an overview of the annual WCWWA Project Funding Assessments per the current Agreement:




CITY OF WEST CHICAGO

Fiscal Year: Project Assessment:

18-19 $ 76,056.00
19-20 $126,081.00
20-21 $129,863.00
21-22 $133,759.00
22-23 $137,772.00

Renewal of the WCWWA'’s NPDES permit is currently under review by the IEPA. As a likely condition of the
permit renewal, the IEPA will require continued participation in the DRSCW and paying Project Funding
Assessments to continue to receive a temporary reprieve from the IEPA to comply with strict phosphorus limits
inevitably to be imposed at some future date. The DRSCW has been negotiating with the IEPA on permit
language. DRSCW's draft language includes an extension of the implementation of Phosphorus limits of 1 mg/L
monthly average for an additional three years along with an additional three years of Project Funding Assessments
(anticipated to be approximately $125,000.00 annually for the WCWWA). Alternately, we could elect to remain
members of the DRSCW but stop paying Project Funding Assessments, which in turn, the IEPA will impose a
phosphorus limit(s) with specific compliance dates as a condition of our renewed permit. The unknown factor is at
what limit the IEPA will restrict phosphorus (i.e., 1.0 mg/l, 0.5 mg/I, or 0.1 mg/l) and how long it will give the
WCWWA to comply with said limit.

The |EPA has not stated when it will begin issuing new NPDES permits to those POTWs currently seeking
renewal; with either phosphorus limits with which the POTW must comply, or with special conditions requiring the
permittee to participate in the DRSCW watershed activities and planning projects. The DRSCW anticipates that
permit language will be resolved in mid-December 2020 with permits being issued by the IEPA shortly thereafter.

To help determine the best course of action for the WCWWA, in anticipation of the pending nitrogen and
phosphorus limits inevitably to be imposed on future NPDES permits, the City needs to gain an understanding of
the improvements and costs that will be required at the WWTP if strict phosphorus limits were to be imposed as a
new NPDES permit condition. This will help determine which is more cost effective: 1) participation in the DRSCW
and continued payment of Project Funding Assessment (estimated at $125,000 per year for Fiscal Year 23-24 thru
27-28) or, 2) make necessary compliance upgrades to the WWTP. Staff believes that with recent improvements
at the WWTP, most notably the replacement of the antiquated tertiary sand filters with rotation disk membrane
filters, compliance with a 1.0 mg/I limit could be easily achieved with chemical addition.

As a result, the City desires to hire Donohue & Associates, Inc. (Donohue) to review and evaluate the WWTP
current facilities and operations, conduct a chemical dosing phosphorus removal study, to determine potential
improvements required, and associated costs for nitrogen and phosphorus removal compliance (e.g., for 1.0 mg/l,
0.5 mg/l, and 0.1 mg/l limit). At staff's request, Donohue has provided a proposal, and is willing to perform a
phosphorus removal study, for an amount not to exceed $53,700.00 (see attached proposal for additional
clarification).

The phosphorus removal study will be paid for by the WCWWA.

ACTIONS PROPOSED:

Approve Resolution No. 20-R-0076 authorizing the Mayor to execute an Agreement with Donohue & Associates,
Inc., for an amount not to exceed $53,700.00, for professional engineering services related to a Phosphorous
Removal Pilot Study for the West Chicago/Winfield Wastewater Authority Regional Wastewater Treatment Plant.

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION:

Pending recommendation from the Infrastructure Committee at its meeting on December 3, 2020. If not approved
by Committee on December 3, 2020, this Item will go to the December 21, 2020, City Council Meeting.




CITY OF WEST CHICAGO

PUBLIC AFFAIRS COMMITTEE
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

ITEM TITLE:
AGENDA ITEM NUMBER: g.E.

Mexican Independence Day 2020
Final Report FILE NUMBER:

Mexican Cultural Center

COMMITTEE AGENDA DATE: November 23, 2020
COUNCIL AGENDA DATE: December 7, 2020

=
/
STAFF REVIEW: Tom Dabareiner smmwm%éf}k/

APPROVED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:
Michael Guttman SIGNATURE

ITEM SUMMARY:

The Mexican Cultural Center (MCC) submitted the attached documentation of expenses for the Mexican
Independence Day Festival that was scheduled to take place September 12-13, 2020. Per the Executive
Proclamation from August 12, 2020, the Festival was cancelled. The MCC hosted a virtual event with
videos online as well as murals displayed in the Downtown.

The City provided the MCC with $11,500 per the Funding Agreement (20-R-0017). The final report shows
that $10,551.62 was spent, and $948.38 unspent.

MCC purchased projecting equipment for $1,646.43. Renting may have been more economical and City
Staff recommends that in the future renting be explored before purchasing expensive equipment.

ACTIONS PROPOSED:

Recommend approval of the final report submitted by the MCC for MID 2020, with $948.38 of unspent
funds to be returned.

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION:

At its November 23, 2020 meeting, the Committee Members recommended approval of the final report submitted
by the MCC for MID 2020.




CITY OF WEST CHICAGO

CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

ITEM TITLE:
AGENDA ITEM NUMBER: _ 3.¥.

Resolution No. 20-R-0075 — Collective Bargaining
Agreement Between the City of West Chicago and the FILE NUMBER:
Fraternal Order of Police

COMMITTEE AGENDA DATE: N/A
COUNCIL AGENDA DATE: 12/7/2020

STAFF REVIEW: SIGNATURE

APPROVED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR: SIGNATURE

ITEM SUMMARY:

The attached Collective Bargaining Agreement matches the recommended direction provided to the City
Council. It is a two-year contract with only wages being changed.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. 20-R-0075

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION:

Collective Bargaining Agreements are submitted directly to the City Council for approval.




RESOLUTION NO. 20-R-0075

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE A CERTAIN LABOR
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF WEST CHICAGO AND THE
FRATERNAL ORDER OF POLICE

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of West Chicago, in regular session
assembled, that Mayor is hereby authorized to execute and the City Clerk is authorized to attest a

certain Labor Agreement between the City of West Chicago and the Fraternal Order of Police, in

substantially the form attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit “A”.

APPROVED this 7" day of December, 2020.

AYES:

NAYS:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

Mayor

ATTEST:

City Clerk



COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT

BETWEEN

CITY OF WEST CHICAGO

AND

FRATERNAL ORDER OF POLICE

2021-2022



PREAMBLE .ooveusisesssssesmsrsenenss A NS RA RS R B A AR SRR T

ARTICLE 1 RECOGNITION ....oocevveevienrersnnnne S — 1
SECTION 1.1 RECOGNITION ..oviuieetiteeeeeeeeseeeeeeesesseseeeseses e sseseesssmsesssseesessessssenssssssesassessesasasensessseesssmssesens 1
SECTION 1.2 PROBATIONARY PERIOD i i it tessisssstinsissse s atsmnsnonsasssnnsaonstasssatadstastosssesssasrantommasassirsbanscns 1
BELTION' 1.3 BAIR REDR B BN TATION s i s s s i s i o S e s 1
SECTION 1.4 LABOR COUNCIL EMPLOYEES .. ...t evieeeeeeseeetssesssssssssssesssssssessssssssssessssasssssesssssssesssssssssssssssnes 1
SECTION LS O BNDER . i issisrirmenssnsseons sesarsss ses s snssssasassansessensssns e shes kot Am AAbRRRSSF o8 AKRAREAASES SELRSAR T RES SRR RS SES 1
SECTION 1.6 SEMIOBITY i aiia e iy is s e e s s b i i s 2

ARTICLE 2 LABOR COUNCIL SECURITY AND RIGHTS....cccccceiniemseseesessesersnessssassssssssssssasssssnns 2
R T e B IR R R R B v vavisid s A AN A R SRR R R A 2
SECTION 2.2 LABOR COUNCIL INDEMNIFICATION .. vveeeeeeeeeeaeeeeeeeseesessessssessesssssssssessassseseasesssssssessessassens 2
SECTION 2.3 COUNOIL USE OF BULLETIN BOARDE s v isr i s siisssoss e 2

ARTICLE 3 LABOR MANAGEMENT MEETINGS.....ccoieceeirersesisssassssssssssssssssssesssssnseses Py P Lirhy 4
2 i L ) S S OO 2
SECTION 3.2 CONTENT «.evevvetviessesseesssssssssssssssstessesessessssesasenssasensesessasssnsesssssssssssssasssessssnsensesenssnssersssseneasss 3
BECTION 3.3 AT TENMDANEE v i i S s s o s e i 3

ARTICLE 4 MANAGEMENT RIGHTS...... S S B N R s s s s 3

ARTICLE 5 SUBCONTRACTING --------- LR e e e T T P LY Y 4

ARTICLE 6 HOURS OF WORK AND OVERTIME.......cccceeurssssassssssassassassassissansansasassassessassssssressnsonse &
SECTION 6.1 APPLICATION OF ARTICLE ©veeveviestertesseeeseseseeessesessanssasensaserassssssssssssessssssssssesssmssessesassenssesns 4
SECTION 6.2 NORMAL WORKDAY AND PAY PERIOD 1..e e eeeeeeeeeeseeeeeeeeseeseeeessssssseesssssesesesessesesessssessess 4
SECTION 6.3 CHANGES IN NORMAL WORKWEEK AND WORKDAY .....coveeviveiuesesseessesssssssssssssssesesassssassesean 4
SECTION 6.4 OVERTIME PAY AND REQUIRED OVERTIME ......cvoetieeeiescmsesceeesesseseseens s emssmsnsesseessonsssnans 4
SECTION 6.5 WORK DURING VACATION, FLOATING HOLIDAY OR PERSONAL DAY.....cooevcecmereciinianes 6
SECTION 6.6 COMPENSATORY. TIME s e issmom i v st oavsivveieaanan 6
SECTION 6.7 COURT TIME ...vevivtsmiesssessssssssassessessessassesssssesssmsssaasssassssassssseesmssssssnesssasssasassnsesesessssasassassen 6
SECTION 6.8 CALL-BACK PAY ..ot s et eese s sessemssssste s e e s assessessssesnseseessmesemeeeeseesesemsesessssnssn 6
SECTION 6.9 NO PVRANIDING i as s m i i e s v evaiviv i sk i 6
SECTION 6.10 DETECTIVE ON-CALL PAY ¢ttt et eeeeee et s eaeee st et eaeseeesaaeeeeneeas et s enenaesessseensen 6

ARTICLE 7 SHIFT ASSIGNMENT AND SCHEDULING ....cccovvverviseenssrsssssesssssessossessssasssssssessssssssass 7
IO L | S G D NI i e h e i S AL St bt W miomns B A ARt TR soraa s e 7
SECTION 7.2 POSTING OF ANNUAL SCHEDULE ..cviiviteraseressrssssassssssssssbasiessnsssibasstnsestosssrasnsssat soeessnsssassssione 7
SECTION 7.3 BASIC REQUIREMENTS FOR EACH SCHEDULE ..c..veveetteeeeeeeeeeeet et seae et eeeeeesensesaessessseseseeenens 7
SECTION 7.4 LESS EXPERIENCED OFFICERS .vveeevvseesssssssssssssssssasesessasssssssessssessnsssssssssnssamsssssssssssessrsssesssees 7
SECTION 7.5 CONCLUSION OF BIDDING PROGCESS vveeveereveesstresesesesessessssssserssesssassssossesssasssmssasssssssesssessssass 7
SECTION 7.6 CHANGES IF SYSTEM UNWORIABLE ....c.veeneivteeteeeseesesssesssessnsessssssssssssessanssssssssmssansossssssssns 8
SECTION 7.7 SPECIALIZED WORI TUNITS ..o eeeeeeeteeeeeeeseeeesseeeseemseeesesssmssasseesmesssanssansesssesnseenesnnessseseseesans 8
SELTION 7.8 CaBINE UIIT i s i iisii b st i e i s e s S v bid

1

10-29-20



SECTION 7.9 SCHOOL RESOURCE OFEBICERE i rosmsssotiis s iy st b i vt st sih i vseiios 8

ARTICLE 8 GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE ..eovveeseeesssssessssssssrsssssssssssssssasssssssasesssssssssassessssassssssssssssassassss 8
SECTION 8.1 DEFINITION ....eeevt et evvereeeesssessessesesesssssssssssssesmssesseasesssssssessstesnssessesssesssansersesasssnsareseseassasreeses 8
SECTION 8.2 PROCEDURE i o rersmatsssrassstresensdhasssermenensnsbtiaetrasennsa b ot i P i e o 9
SECTION 8.3 ABBIRATION s i i ahismiie 10
SECTION 8.4 LIMITATIONS ON AUTHORITY OF ARBITRATOR ...ucvvsuieserssssssirsiesessnsesssssessesossssssssssrsssassesens 10
SECTION 8.5 TIME LIMIT FOR FILING ....eeeeeteeet oot e e e e e eseeeeaeseeeaeeemtesemtaeentesanessnsmeeassssmssanantennsnes 11
L g o 1 ) e T 11
SECTION BT DIBOIPLIN, uvsioisusineesssn sumssts oo st v o s s o s v es i S v s 11

ARTICLE 9 NO STRIKE NO LOCKOUT ......cccoiiiaismsrsssnsssssnsssasssssssssssssssssssssssassassass S ;.
SECTION 9.1 INO STRIKE ...ttt teeeeeeee e eeeeee s eaenteeamsesssmsannsnssanssasanesssssssnsaesnsesansessassssnnssasessninsssssssersns 12
S TION O 2 N O L OO O U T st b e o o T s e o e S s s i s 12
BECTION 9.3 PENALTY wouumimssismmbii s i s s i oo oot s s s e oy vt s 12
SECTION 9.4 JUDICIAL RESTRAINT ... oeeeeetieereesessssssssssssesssesassssassessssesassesasssesassssssessasassassessssssssanessasaans 12

ARTICLE 10 HOLIDAYS ....cccceitesesssssssssasssisssesssssssssssssssnssssssssssssasssssssasassassassassssassnssrsnss i K e 13
SECTION 10:1 HOLIDAYS: :ivviivnmiianvimiiimnindanies r s s st e e S 13
SECTION 10.2 HOLIDAY PAY AND WORK: BB QUIREMENTE  iusssssiisisss s istssassss desssons vrsisavisin 13
SECTION 10.3 FLOATING HOLIDAY oot eeteeeeeeeees e eaeetseestassssessnsasassasssmssansaennsssanssssnseasessasannsrsansen 14

ARTICLE 11 LAYOFF AND RECALL.............. F R 14
BT ON L T LA OFE o s s e e B e e B e 14
b U o I o 14

ARTICLE 12 VACATIONS.......... S — N OSSR U  S—— 15
SECTION 12.1 ELIGIBILITY AND ACCRUAL.....uteeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeaaeeaameeeaseaasssassasesanseesssssnssssssntentossssssssssenss 15
BB CTION b VA A T IO A Y e s vt o s v s S v o R e e e D D A SRt S 15
SECTION 12.3 SCHEDULING AND ACCRUIAL : ..cocisuvsvess i sssssisssssssiaiss s s souss i s sy oo nis b s miss oo e csisnes 15
SECTION 12.4 EMPLOYEE EMERGENCY ....veeeeiitsieosssesessesassissassssssassssssssssssssssessssssssssssssssnsassssssnsssssiasses 16
SECTION 1245 A OO MU A TIOMN o s s by i s i i e P T A S v 16
OB CTION |2 G I E B R GBI s s 5o i SR SH b B E AT e R MR b8 16

ARTICLE 13 PERSONAL DAYS AND SICK LEAVE.............. e e e B e M .
SECTION 13.] PURPOSE OF SICK LEAVE ..oeeuvteeeeeeeeeessersssessesssssesssessssansennssesmaeasesassssasssssnsessseasssensensssaeens 16
SECTION 13.2 PROBATIONARY PERSONNEL.....ccoviiiioiiciiieisssssinssssssssssssssssassssrassessasessssssssses smsemsssesasasssssns 16
SECTION 13.3 TUSE OF SICK LEAVE ... ooeee i eiee e et eeeesseessassemssasaaesesessessaessarasssaneeeseaassnmsmsamessssessrsesns 16
SECTION 13.4 DAYS EARNED IN ACCUMULATION ......cossssessesssmsesssssesssssnssssasssnssssssnssssssssssrsssasssrssessessens 16
SECTION 135 IO TIRIC A TION vt e e ey S i o LTV s D R P iR S Tar e 17
SECTION 13.6 MEDICAL EXAMINATION .oevievevetiiererosssesassssssressssssssesssssessssesanmasssssessssasesassassssmsesasssssesmss 7
SECTION 13.7 ABUSE OF SICK. LBAVE: it i s s it 17
SECTION 13.8 SICE LEAVE VT IZATION ciciiiausivm i ot iiis st e e s b s oaes s saeias b s s 17
SECTION 13.9 SICK LEAVE BUY BACK ..o et eeeeeeeeeee e e e eeueaaaeansesassmsssassnnsassssssassssssnssasssnrannns 17
SECTION 13.10 PERSONAL IIANS . i isisviss et s vie o s i s s s o vissssian 17
SECTION 13.11 PERSONAL DAY EARNING AND USE ...cciceceiiiniairiisiiassrsssssssssrasassesssssesessasasssssssrssrrasissons 17
SECTION 13.12 PERSONAL DAY ACCUMULATION ..veoveeeeseeeemeeeseeessesesssontanssssssesnasesssssassssassnnessssssesssmnesens 18

ARTICLE 14 ADDITIONAL LEAVES OF ABSENCE ....... w“ - - ST e 18

10-29-20



SECTION 14.2 BENEFITS WHILE ON AN UNPAID LEAVE OF ABSENCE ..veveveeeee oo eeeeeeeeeee e e s erensens 18
SECTION 14.3 LEAVE FOR AN OFF-DUTY ILLNESS, INJURY OR DISABILITY ...ovoveeeeeeeeeceeveveeesssesssessens @ 19
SECTION 14.4 LEAVE FOR AN ON-DUTY ILLNESS, INJURY OR DISABILITY .....ovvuereesereesesereseesssasenserenes 19
SECTION 14.5 MILITARY LEAVE ..ouioeceeeeeeeeeeeeteesees st sesssesasssssessssssssses et esees s eseseesssessassmsesessessesansesssss 20
SECTION 14.6 JURY OR WITNESS DUTY LEAVE... o ceceieeeiiereeeeeesseeseessessssssesssssssssessessesnsessmsssssssnsesssassssses 20
SECTION 14.7 BEREAVEMENT LEAVE. vt it 20
SECTION 14.8 LIGHT DUTY 1veieseveeeeseeseuesesssssessesessssssssasesssssessssssesssssessssesssessessssssssssasssesessssassssssssnssess 20
ARTICLE 15 WAGES.......0coveimrsessessesesssssssssnsssssssessessssssssssssassssssssssssssssenssssnssnsessssnsssnssssssssssssassasssessses 20
DECTION 1001 WGBS .. sncrianoarssrasnssnssas e smemystatssanschacsstnmsiss s ssesssommo i s as b e fadnsesmtsl o dog fis s oot nibnim 20
SECTION 15.2 OFFICER IN CHARGE [OIC) PAY i i s o s s s mossnmis 21
SECTION 15.3 FIELD TRAINING OFFICER BENEFITS ..veteiveiteseesseeeeeeeesssesssssesssssessssessessesssesassensssssessnese 21
SECTION 15.4 PLACEMENT ON WAGE SCHEDULE ....v vttt ees et eess s s esessessessensess st enssessssasseseseses 21
SECTION 15.5 MOVEMENT THROUGH WAGE SCHEDULE ......000iueresesssssesosisssasssesssossssassnas soasoisinssssnesassarass 21
ST U i e 108 2. 22
SECTION 15.7 LONGEVITY PAY ¢.ocveiveitierisissesssesisssssssssissessssssssessssssnsasssssssesssnsssessesensssnesssssssssssnsssmssssases 22
ARTICLE 16 QUARTERMASTER ALLOWANCE AND CLOTHING REIMBURSEMENT .... 22
SECTIEN 161 A R TR M A S TR A O A I s R e e BT 22
S ECTION 15,2 C L OO AT OTWARIOR wuvni sosssoas s 55530 s g ek 22
ARTICLE 17 INSURAINC E......cccesveraesesssserssssrsssssssssssssassssasssssasssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssassessossnssssssssensons 23
SECTION 1 7.1 COVERAGE. ...ors o snnssasnssncssssssasmsnsmsmssmessssnsrassssss s easss sanseassassss snsanssss sessss s erasoessassnrsssssssnons 23
N 0 7 R 0 L 23
g BB Koy R T 23
SECTION 17.4 LIFE INSURANCE ....cvveveeteeeetseteetstessesessesaeseessessesemssessssesssesssassnsessessnsessenesensasseeesaesmnessaens 24
SECTION 17. 5 KILLED IN THE LINE OF DI Ty cciiciis it i s b s v e v s avivasanin 24
ARTICLE 18 DRYIGIALCOTIOL, TESNIING i s s oo s s s sssvans 24
ARTICLE 19 MISCELLANEOUS PROVISTONS .. ccisiissscisiisasiisossssnsssississsssssossnisssssisrsssuississsososs 24
SECTION 19.1 MAINTENANCE OF ECONOMIC BENEFITS .. eeoeieeieieieeeeeteeesseeesserssstssessssesesssssasessnessnsans 24
SECTION 19.2 AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT 1. vevteeeeeeeeeeseemsesnsssseeessesssesssssasesesssesesessessssesasssens 24
SRCTION 1953 SRMOIING - coiisasnis i o b i o e S B e e et 25
SECTION 19.4 FAMILY AND MEDICAL LEAVE ACT cuvveiviieveeeiieesesseeeesesssesmssssasssessesssssssessresssessesssssssssesns 25
SECTION 19.5 BILL OF RIGHTS ..ecccvevveree. el el mevll, ey S e el S, p——— 25
SECTION 106 BTN ES S AL L W AN G E v st s L ey oo s oy s BT s s s S i 25
ARTICLE 20 TMPASSE RESOL XTI . oiooisiisesnisisssimiaisoiims i isasiisssmsssimhssiissi 25

ARTICLE 21 CIVIL SERVICE COMMIBSTON cuunusissssisussssussossssissinsisssasiasssnssasisssssmirsssssissiasns 2

ARTICLE 22 OUTSIDE EMPLOYMIENT ooovousvinsianssssssnnssssionssin st niosmmmosss i 25
ARTICLE 23 SAVINGS CLAUSE........... ARSI, R T S S 26
ARTICLE 24 ENTIRE AGREEM-ENT LD TR E S L LI R R P LA Ll eI L R L L R Lttt L I el R Lt LR L el TP P T ) 26
ARTICLIE 28 TR IVEIIN AITIONT ivuiionsonsivssiiissssssosias e casinssiassmeasoisuaowhs s vk vaioadonmionaiinss 26

10-29-20



SECTION 25.1 TERMINATION IN 2022........covvvveiirinenne

APPENDIX A DUES AUTHORIZATION FORM

.............................................................................

-----------------------------------------------------------------------------

APPENDIX B STEP PLACEMENT AS OF JANUARY 1, 2021 ...ccccvuvireercncusesssisensaresssensssssssssssnsens

10-29-20




PREAMBLE

THIS AGREEMENT entered into by the CITY OF WEST CHICAGO, ILLINOIS (hereinafter referred
to as "City" or "Employer") and the WEST CHICAGO FRATERNAL ORDER OF POLICE, LODGE
NO. 85/ILLINOIS FOP LABOR COUNCIL (hereinafter referred to as "Labor Council" or "Union"), is
in recognition of the Labor Council's status as the representative of the Employer's non-supervisory
sworn peace Employees and has as its basic purpose the promotion of harmonious relations between the
Employer and the Labor Council; the establishment of an equitable and peaceful procedure for the
resolution of differences; and the establishment of an entire agreement covering all rates of pay, hours of
worlc and conditions of employment applicable to bargaining unit employees. Therefore, in
consideration of the mutual promises and agreements contained in this Agreement, the Employer and the
Labor Council do mutually promise and agree as follows:

ARTICLE 1 RECOGNITION

The Employer recognizes the Labor Council as the sole and exclusive collective bargaining
representative for all full-time sworn peace employees (hereinafter referred to as "Officers" or
"Employees"), but excluding all supervisory employees (this includes all Officers of the rank of Sergeant

and above) and all other supervisory and non-supervisory employees of the Department and Employer.

ecti R ionary Period

The probationary period shall be a period of sixteen (16) months from date of hire. Time absent from
duty or not served for any reason shall not apply towards satisfaction of the probationary period. During
the probationary period, an Employee is subject to discipline, including discharge, without cause and
with no recourse to the grievance procedure. During the probationary period, Employees are not entitled
to use any accrued leave during their first twelve (12) months of employment with the City, except for
sick leave as detailed in Section 13.2. Employees may use compensatory time after completion of their
field training program.

Section 1.3 Fair Representation
The Labor Council recognizes its responsibility as bargaining agent and agrees to fairly represent all
Employees in the bargaining unit, whether or not they are members of the Labor Council.

Section 1.4 Labor Council Emplovees

For purposes of this Agreement, the term "Labor Council Employees" shall refer to the Labor Council's
duly elected President, Vice President, Secretary, Treasurer and Sergeant at Arms.

ti

Wherever the male gender is used in this Agreement, it shall be construed to include both males and
females equally.

10-29-20



Section 1.6 Seniori

Seniority for the purpose of this Agreement shall be defined as an Officer’s length of continuous
full-time service with the Employer since the Officer’s last date of hire. Seniority shall not include
periods of unpaid leave time, except military leave.

E 2 LABOR COU EC IGHTS

ues Che
While this Agreement is in effect, the Employer will deduct from each Employee's paycheck twice per
month the uniform, regular monthly Labor Council dues for each Employee in the bargaining unit who
has filed with the Employer a voluntary, effective Checkoff authorization in the form set forth in
Appendix A of this Agreement. If a conflict exists between that form and this Article, the terms of this
Article and Agreement control. A Labor Council member desiring to revoke the dues checkoff may do
so by written notice to the Employer at any time within thirty (30) days of the expiration date of this
Agreement. The actual dues amount deducted, as determined by the Labor Council, shall be uniform in
nature for each Employee in order to ease the Employer's burden of administering this provision. Each
Employee’s signed checkoff authorization form shall be kept in his Personnel File. If the Employee has
no earnings due for that period, the Labor Council shall be responsible for collection of dues. The Labor
Council agrees to refund to the Employee any amounts paid to the Labor Council in error on account of
this due's deduction provision. The Labor Council may change the fixed uniform dollar amount which
will be considered the regular monthly dues once each year during the life of this Agreement. The Labor
Council will give the Employer sixty (60) days’ notice of any such change in the amount of uniform

dues to be deducted.

Section 2.2 Labor Council Indemnificati

The Labor Council shall indemnify, defend and save the Employer harmless against any and all claims,
demands, suits or other forms of liability (monetary or otherwise) and for all legal costs that shall arise
out of or by reason of action taken or not taken by the Employer in complying with the provisions of this
Article. If an improper deduction is made, the Labor Council shall refund directly to the Employee any

such amount.

ecti i i ard
The Employer will make available space on a bulletin board for the posting of official Labor Council
notices or minutes of a nonpolitical, non-inflammatory nature. The Labor Council will limit the posting
of Labor Council notices to such bulletin board, with prior approval of the Chief of Police or City

Administrator,

ANAGEME EETING

A t
The Labor Council and the Employer agree that in the interest of efficient management and harmonious
employee relations, that meetings be held if mutually agreed between Labor Council Employees and
senior administrative representatives of the Employer. Such meetings shall be held not less than quarterly
and shall be requested by either Party at least five (5) days in advance by placing in writing a request
to the other for a labor management meeting and expressly providing the agenda for such meeting.
Such meetings, times, and locations, as mutually agreed upon, shall be limited to:

2
10-29-20



(1)  discussion on the implementation and general administration of this Agreement.
(2)  asharing of general information of interest to the Parties; and

(3)  notifying the Labor Council of changes in conditions of employment contemplated by the
Employer which may affect Employees.

A quarterly meeting can be waived upon written agreement of both Parties

Section 3.2 Content

It is expressly understood and agreed that such meetings shall be exclusive of the grievance procedure.
Specific grievances being processed under the grievance procedure shall neither be considered at "labor
management meetings" nor shall negotiations for the purpose of altering any or all of the terms of this
Agreement be carried on at such meetings.

Section 3.3 Attendance

Attendance at labor management meetings shall be voluntary on the Employee's part, and attendance
during such meetings shall not be considered time worked for compensation purposes. Normally, three
(3) representatives from each Party shall attend these meetings, schedules permitting. Attendance at such
meetings shall not interfere with required duty time, and attendance, if during duty time, is permitted
only upon prior approval of the Employee's supervisor.

TICLE 4 MANA S

Except as specifically limited by the express provisions of this Agreement, the Employer retains all
traditional rights to manage and direct the affairs of the Employer in all of its various aspects and to
manage and direct its Employees, including but not limited to the following: to plan, direct, control and
determine the budget and all the operations, services and missions of the Employer; to supervise and
direct the working forces; to establish the qualifications for employment and to employ Employees; to
schedule and assign work; to establish work and productivity standards and, from time to time to change
those standards; to assign overtime; to contract out for goods and services; to determine the methods,
means, organization and number of personnel by which such operations and services shall be made or
purchased; to make, alter and enforce reasonable rules, regulations, orders and policies; to evaluate
Employees; to establish performance standards; to discipline, suspend and discharge non probationary
Employees for just cause; to change or eliminate existing methods, equipment or facilities or introduce
new ones; to take any and all actions as may be necessary to carry out the mission of the Employer and
the West Chicago Police Department (hereafter “Department™). In the event of civil emergency as may
be declared by the Mayor, the City Administrator, Chief of Police or their authorized designees, it is the
sole discretion of the Mayor to determine that civil emergency conditions exist which may include, but
not be limited to, riots, civil disorders, tornado conditions, floods or other catastrophes; and to carry out
the mission of the Employer provided, however, that the exercise of any of the above rights shall not
conflict with, any of the express written provisions of this Agreement.

10-29-20



RTI S SUBCONTRACTING

It is the general policy of the Employer to continue to utilize its Employees to perform work they are
qualified to perform. However, the Employer reserves the right to contract out work it deems necessary
or appropriate in the exercise of its best judgment, and consistent with the Employer's lawful authority

under Illinois Statutes.

ARTI 6 HOURS OF WORK AND OVERTIME

ection 6. licati icle
This Article is intended only as a basis for calculating overtime payments, and nothing in this Agreement

shall be construed as a guarantee of hours of work per day or per week.

ection 6.2 al W and Pa

The normal work day for Employees shall consist of one (1) “day shift”, working twelve (12) continuous
hours from 6:00 A.M. to 6:00 P.M., one (1) “night shift”, working twelve (12) continuous hours from
6:00 P.M. to 6:00 A.M., one (1) “power shift” working ten (10) continuous hours from 2:00

P.M. to 12:00 A.M. and eight (8)-hour and ten (10) hour shifts for which the hours are determined by the
Chief of Police. Beginning April 28, 2018, the Power Shift will be eliminated. these shifts will be
considered separate and distinct from each other with their own manpower requirements. normal pay
period will be considered to be eighty (80) hours during a fourteen (14) day work period for those
working eight (8) and ten (10) hour shifts. For those working twelve (12) hour shifts, the normal pay
period shall be eighty-four (84) hours during the fourteen (14) day pay period. Each Employee will be
allowed to take a paid thirty (30) minute lunch break at a reasonable time each shift, subject to
emergency work duties. If an Employee’s lunch is interrupted by emergency work duties for more than
fifteen (15) minutes but can be taken within a two (2) hour period before the end of their shift, the
Employee shall have the option of taking and/or completing that lunch, If the lunch cannot be taken
within that period, the Employee shall not be compensated for missing it. During his lunch break, the
Employee must be available immediately to return to duty and therefore, must respond to radio inquiries
and remain within the corporate limits of the City of West Chicago. The Employee will not be required
to perform routine duties such as patrol, respond to routine telephone calls or handle other routine non-

emergency calls while on a lunch break.

i anges i rmal W e W
The shifts, workdays and hours to which employees are assigned shall be based upon a fifty-six (56) day
departmental work schedule and shift rotation which may occur every fifty-six (56) days.

ection vertime Pav a uired Qv
Employees working an eight (8) hour shift or a ten (10) hour shift shall be paid one and one-half (1'%)
times their regular straight time rate of pay for all hours worked beyond their regularly scheduled shift
so long as they work forty (40) hours in a seven (7) day pay period, except as otherwise noted in this
Agreement. Employees working a twelve (12) hour shift shall be compensated at the overtime rate of
one and one-half (1'2) times their regular straight time rate of pay for all hours worked beyond their
regularly scheduled shift so long as they work eighty four (84) hours in a fourteen (14) day pay period.
At the discretion of the Employee, the additional four (4) hours in excess of eighty (80) hours in the

4
10-29-20



fourteen (14) day pay period shall be paid in straight time or straight compensatory time. All paid leave,
including sick leave, shall be credited as time worked for purposes of determining overtime under this
Article. An Employee’s hourly rate shall be calculated by dividing his annual salary by 2,080 hours. The
Chief of Police, or his designee(s), shall have the right to require overtime work and officers may not
refuse overtime assignments. In non-emergency situations, the Chief, or his designee, as a general rule
shall take reasonable steps to obtain volunteers by seniority for overtime assignments before assigning
required overtime work. Where it will not adversely affect the job or unduly add to the time of making
work assignments, the Chief, or his designee, will attempt to assign overtime on a reverse length of
service basis among employees present and available. However, volunteers will not necessarily be
selected for work in progress which is being performed by a specific officer. Also, specific officers may
be selected for special assignments based upon specific skills, ability and experience they may possess
(such as bilingual capability, breathalyzer training or special training or skills as a traffic accident
reconstruction officer-to name a few). that said, the City will continue using the following non-binding
practice:

Call outs and/or postings for manpower shall be offered by seniority in four (4) hour continuous blocks
of time unless the overtime assignment cannot be fully divided into equal increments. If that is the case,
then the overtime assignment shall be divided into as many four-hour blocks as possible, with the
remaining number of hours placed in a separate block.

Overtime assignments due to a manpower shortage shall first be done on a voluntary basis by seniority.
However, if the overtime assignment has not been completely filled after the Employer has exhausted
the seniority list seeking volunteers, the least senior Employee working the shift preceding the overtime
assignment shall be ordered to stay. employees can be ordered to work until there is no longer a
shortage, so long as they do not exceed sixteen (16) total working hours. If the shortage continues past
an Employee’s sixteen (16) maximum working hours, then the Employer shall continue to order
Employees working the shift preceding the assignment, using reverse seniority, until the assignment is
filled. In the event that no Employees working the shift preceding the assignment are available, a call
out will be enacted by reverse seniority. The first Employee(s) contacted by reverse seniority and
available for the vacancy shall be ordered to work the vacancy.

For purposes of ordering, School Resource Officers, Detectives, Community Relations Officers, and
Day Shift Traffic Officers will be considered part of the Day Shift (6AM-6PM) and Traffic Officers who
work in the afternoon/evening will be considered part of the Night Shift (6PM-6AM). For example, if
there is an overtime assignment for the 6AM to 6PM shift, the Employer would begin the call out for
volunteers with the most senior Employee. That Employee would be offered all or a portion of that 12-
hour shift (6AM to 10AM, a 10AM to 2PM and/or a 2PM to 6PM). That Employee may take any or all
of the blocks, work schedule allowing, or may refuse the overtime. If the Employee takes only a portion
of the overtime assignment, the Employer would then call the next senior Employee on the list to
attempt to fill the remaining blocks. This procedure would be followed, and then ordering by reverse
seniority as noted above, until the entire overtime assignment has been filled.

Employees on light or restricted duty will not be eligible for overtime. Employees volunteering for
overtime work must give more than twenty-four (24) hours' notice if they will not be able to work. With
less than twenty-four (24) hours’ notice, Employees may be subject to disqualification from further
voluntary overtime assignments. The Department will provide Officers who work sixteen (16)

10-29-20



continuous hours a rest period of eight (8) consecutive hours between shifts, except for court
appearances and manpower shortages or emergencies that would adversely affect public safety. Such
emergencies would not include another Officer calling in sick for his normal workday. Routine calls by
Employees needing to use sick leave will be resolved as described above in this section.

ion 6.5 Work During Vacation, Floati id
An Employee ordered to work on a vacation, floating holiday or personal day shall be paid one and one-

half (1%%) times their regular rate of pay for all such hours worked on that day.

Section 6.6 Compensatory Time

Compensatory time at time and one-half (1%) rate may be granted at such time and in such time blocks
as are mutually agreed upon between the involved Employee(s), their supervisor and the Chief of Police
in accordance with state and federal statutes. If mutual agreement on compensatory time cannot be
reached, the Employee shall receive one and one-half (1%) times his rate of pay for each overtime hour
worked. An Employee may accumulate and carry over up to two hundred (200) hours of compensatory
time. Compensatory time off may be taken with the approval of the Chief of Police, or his designee,
based upon Departmental manning levels as established by the Chief and Department needs as
determined by the Chief. Compensatory time cannot be taken before it is earned within the same pay

period.

Section 6.7 Court Time

Employees who would otherwise be off duty shall be paid, with a three (3) hour minimum, for all hours
worked when appearing in court on behalf of the Employer in the capacity of a commissioned officer or
when preparing for an off-duty court appearance when in the presence of a prosecuting attomey. Hours
worked during court time shall be included as overtime pay at one and one-half (1%%) times his rate of
pay in accordance with Section 6.4. Employees who receive notice of court appearance and are placed

on a call-in status and do not get called to appear in court shall receive two (2) hours' straight-time pay.

ection 6.8 Call-Back Pa
An Employee called back to work after having left work shall receive a minimum of two (2) hours' pay

at 1-1/2 times his straight-time rate of pay. Hours worked during call-back may be earned as overtime
pay in accordance with Section 6.4, if applicable.

ecti A
Compensation shall not be paid (or compensatory time taken) more than once for the same hours under
any provision of this Article or Agreement.

; -Call Pa
Beginning the first full month following execution of the Collective Bargaining Agreement by both
Parties, each Detective who is required to be on-call shall receive a stipend of $120.00 per pay period
while working in that assignment. This stipend does not impact an Officer’s base salary or hourly rate of

pay and shall not be included in pension-eligible earnings.

10-29-20



ecti d

Except in an emergency, including an unintended shortage of manpower, or when circumstances change
in such fashion as to affect the Employer’s ability to provide police protection to the public, the
Employer agrees that the principles stated below shall govern shift assignment and scheduling for the
length of the Agreement. The Employer reserves the right to determine the number of Employees to be
required on duty during any shift as well as the basic job skills and qualifications of such Employees and
to temporarily change work shifts of the affected Employee for purposes of conducting or receiving
training or for court attendance of three (3) or more consecutive days using the following parameters: If
the Officer is instructing in-service training on the Officer’s day off, then it will be treated as an
overtime assignment. If the Officer is instructing in-service training on the Officer’s regular workday,
the Officer will instruct during the training hours in lieu of working his Shift that day, regardless of the
Shift to which the Officer is assigned. Subject to the conditions stated herein, Employees shall have the
right to bid, based upon seniority, for available shift assignments such bidding to be accomplished in
eight (8) week work blocks. The Employer may refuse to grant individual days off on any shift because
of manpower shortage.

ion 7.2 ting of al Schedule

The Employer shall post on or before September 1* of each year a yearly schedule for shift bidding by
the Employees for assignments beginning January 1* of each year. Employees will be expected to work
at least eighty (80) hours every two (2) weeks on an eight (8) or ten (10) hour shift and eighty-four (84)
hours every two (2) weeks on a twelve (12) hour shift. This schedule shall provide for shift bidding in
eight (8) week blocks, with the schedule showing the shift assignments of work available during the
scheduled period, the scheduled days off for each shift and the required numbers and skill levels of
Employees for each shift.

ection 7.3 Basic Require h ule

Prior to bidding, the Employer's posted schedule shall provide the basic criteria for each shift. Such
criteria may provide, among other things, that at least one (1) Employee having six (6) or more years of
experience shall be scheduled on each shift; that at least one (1) Employee with specialized breathalyzer
training be assigned to the two (2) twelve (12) hour shifts; and that only one (1) Field Training Officer
shall be scheduled on a shift during a period of actual function within the field training officer program
at any one time. In addition, after offering to and discussing the matter at a labor-management meeting,
the Employer may indicate on the schedule any changed or additional required specialized skills for
each shift as circumstances warrant.

Secti [ i [

The Employer shall have the right to assign any probationary Employee during the probationary period
to such shift as the Employer shall, in its discretion, deem necessary or desirable for such Employee's
education, experience and professional development, prior to opening the remaining shift assignments
for bidding by more senior Employees.

5 i iddi
All bidding for shift assignments will be completed no later than fourteen (14) days after the posting of
the schedule by the Employer. The Employer may thereafter assign shifts to the scheduled officers who

10-29-20



have not submitted bids. Thereafter, representatives of the Employer shall review the bid schedule and
offer to meet with representatives of the Labor Council to inform them of adjustments in the schedule if
required by manpower, experience or skill requirements or needs.

Section 7.6 Changes If System Unworkable

In the event the system of shift assignment and scheduling proves to be unworkable or impractical, the
Employer reserves the right to inform the Labor Council, discuss the matter with the Labor Council for
up to seven (7) days, and temporarily institute another scheduling approach or system it deems
appropriate based upon manpower availability. Thereafter, upon request, the Employer will enter into
negotiations with the Labor Council on a new, more permanent scheduling system. If agreement on a
new, more permanent system cannot be reached within thirty (30) days from the beginning of such
negotiations, then the parties agree that their impasse may be submitted to interest arbitration as provided

in Article 20 of this Agreement.

Section 7.7 Specialized Work Units

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, the Employer may create specialized work units
and adjust the work schedules of Employees assigned to these units to meet the needs of such units;
however, work schedules shall not be changed for the sole purpose of avoiding overtime. The Employer
will seek volunteers for these units; however, the Chief retains the right to determine the necessary

staffing for these units.

Section 7.8 Canine Unit

Employees assigned to the Canine unit will be assigned at the discretion of the Chief of Police. Canine
Employees shall be required to carry a Department-issued cellular telephone; however, subject to
reasonable operational needs as determined by the Chief of Police, there shall be no specified response
time. Canine Employees shall have the responsibility for the care and feeding of the dog. The costs of
the care and feeding of the dog, however, will be paid for by the City. A vehicle will be provided for the
purpose of transporting the canine to and from the canine Employees' home. Canine Employees will
receive an annual stipend of $2,400 for the additional time required to care for the dog, which stipend

shall be included within the Employees' base pay.

Section 7.9 School Resource Officers

During individual days and extended breaks from school, when School Resource Officers are not
required or requested by District Administration to work at school, they shall report to the Investigations
Sergeant for duty. The School Resource Officers will work their regularly scheduled hours which are bid
for each year. School Resource Officers may be used to supplement the Patrol Division with the
approval of the Investigations Sergeant. During times when School Resource Officers are used to
supplement the Patrol Division, they are not subject to shift minimums for the Patrol Division. They
shall be treated as Detectives for the purposes of calculating overtime as well as requesting leave time.

ARTICLE 8 GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

ction 8.1 Definiti
A "grievance" is defined as a dispute or difference of opinion raised by an Employee or the Labor
Council against the Employer involving an alleged violation or misapplication of an expressed provision

of this Agreement.

10-29-20



Section 8.2 Procedure

A grievance filed against the Employer shall be processed in the following manner:

Step 1: Any Employee and/or Steward who has a grievance shall submit the grievance in writing to the
Employee's immediate supervisor (in most cases, the sergeant in charge), specifically indicating that the
matter is a grievance under this Agreement. The grievance shall contain a complete statement of the
facts, the provision or provisions of this Agreement which are alleged to have been violated, and the
relief requested. All grievances must be presented no later than five (5) business days from the date of
the occurrence of the matter giving rise to the grievance or within five (5) business days after the
Employee, through the use of reasonable diligence, could have obtained knowledge of the occurrence of
the event giving rise to the grievance. The immediate supervisor shall render a written response to the
grievant within five (5) business days after the grievance is presented.

Step 2: If the grievance is not settled at Step 1 and the Employee, or the Labor Council if a Labor
Council grievance, wishes to appeal the grievance to Step 2 of the grievance procedure, it shall be
submitted in writing to the appropriate Commander within five (5) business days after receipt of the
Employer's response in Step 1, or within five (5) business days of the time when such answer would
have been due. The grievance shall specifically state the basis upon which the grievant believes the
grievance was improperly denied at the previous step in the grievance procedure. The Commander shall
investigate the grievance and, in the course of such investigation, shall offer to discuss the grievance
with the grievant and an authorized business representative, if one is requested by the Employee, within
five (5) business days of its receipt by the Commander, at a time mutually agreeable to the parties. If no
settlement of the grievance is reached, the Commander shall provide a written response to the grievant,
or to the Labor Council, if a Labor Council grievance, within five (5) business days following their
meeting or within ten (10) business days of its receipt if no meeting is requested.

Step 3: If the Grievance is not settled at Step 2 and the Employee, or the Labor Council if a Labor
Council grievance, wishes to appeal the grievance to Step 3 of the grievance procedure, it shall be
submitted in writing designated as a "grievance" to the Chief of Police within five (5) business days
after receipt of the Employer's response in Step 2, or within five (5) business days of the time when such
response would have been due. The grievance shall specifically state the basis upon which the grievant
believes the grievance was improperly denied at the previous step in the grievance procedure. The Chief
of Police or his designee shall investigate the grievance and, in the course of such investigation shall
offer to discuss the grievance within five (5) business days with the grievant and an authorized Labor
Council representative, if one is requested by the Employee, at a time mutually agreeable to the parties.
If no settlement of the grievance is reached, the Chief of Police or designee shall provide a written
response to the grievant, or to the Labor Council if a Labor Council grievance, within five (5) business
days following their meeting, or within ten (10) business days of its receipt by the Chief if no meeting is
requested.

Step 4: If the grievance is not settled at Step 3 and the Labor Council desires to appeal, it shall be
referred by the Labor Council in writing to the City Administrator within five (5) business days after
receipt of the Employer's response in Step 3. Thereafter, the City Administrator or his designee and the
Chief of Police or other appropriate individual(s) as desired by the City Administrator shall meet with
the grievant, the Steward involved and a Labor Council representative or another representative if
desired by the Employee, within five (5) business days of receipt of the Labor Council's appeal, if at all

9
10-29-20



possible. If no agreement is reached, the City Administrator or designee shall submit a written response
to the Labor Council within five (5) days following the meeting.

Section 8.3 Arbitration

If the grievance is not settled in Step 4 and the Labor Council wishes to appeal the grievance from Step
4 of the grievance procedure, the Labor Council may refer the grievance to arbitration, as described
below, within ten (10) business days of receipt of the Employer's written response as provided to the

Labor Council at Step 4:

A. The Parties shall attempt to agree upon an arbitrator within five (5) business days after receipt of the
notice of referral. In the event the Parties are unable to agree upon the arbitrator within said five (5)
business day period, the Parties shall jointly request the Federal Mediation and Conciliation Service
to submit a panel of five (5) arbitrators. Each Party retains the right to reject one panel in its entirety
and request that a new panel be submitted. Both the Employer and the Labor Council shall have the
right to strike two (2) names from the panel. The Party referring the grievance to arbitration shall
strike the first two (2) names; the other Party shall then strike two (2) names. The person remaining

shall be the arbitrator.

B. The arbitrator shall be notified of his/her selection and shall be requested to set a time and place for
the hearing, subject to the availability of Labor Council and Employer representatives.

C. The Employer and the Labor Council shall have the right to request the arbitrator to require the
presence of witnesses or documents. The Employer and the Labor Council retain the right to employ

legal counsel.

D. The arbitrator shall submit his/her decision in writing within thirty (30) calendar days following the
close of the hearing or the submission of briefs by the Parties, whichever is later.

E. More than one grievance may be submitted to the same arbitrator if both Parties mutually agree in
writing.
F. The fees and expenses of the arbitrator and the cost of a written transcript, if any, shall be divided

equally between the Employer and the Labor Council; provided, however, that each Party shall be
responsible for compensating its own representatives and witnesses.

Section 8.4 Limitations on Authg of Arbitrator

The arbitrator shall have no right to amend, modify, nullify, ignore, add to, or subtract from the
provisions of this Agreement. The arbitrator shall consider and decide only the question of fact as to
whether there has been a violation, misinterpretation, or misapplication of the specific provisions of this
Agreement. The arbitrator shall be empowered to determine the issue raised by the grievance as submitted
in writing at Step 2. The arbitrator shall have no authority to make a decision on any issue not so submitted
or raised. The arbitrator shall be without power to make any decision or award which is contrary to
or inconsistent with, in any way, applicable laws, or of rules and regulations of administrative bodies
that have the force and effect of law. The arbitrator shall not in any way limit or interfere with the
powers, duties, and responsibilities of the Employer under law and applicable court decisions. Any
decision or award of the arbitrator rendered within the limitations of this Section 8.4

10
10-29-20



shall be final and binding upon the Employer, the Labor Council and the Employee covered by this
Agreement.

ion 8.5 Ti imit For Fili
No grievance shall be entertained or processed unless it is submitted at Step 1 within five (5) business
days after the occurrence of the event giving rise to the grievance or within five (5) business days after
the Employee, through the use of reasonable diligence, could have obtained knowledge of the
occurrence of the event giving rise to the grievance. A "business day" is defined as a calendar day
exclusive of Saturdays, Sundays or holidays recognized by the Employer. If a grievance is not presented
by the Employee or the Labor Council within the time limits set forth above, it shall be considered
"waived" and may not be further pursued by the Employee or the Labor Council. If a grievance is not
appealed to the next step within the specified time limit or any agreed extension thereof, it shall be
considered settled on the basis of the Employer's last response. If the Employer does not respond to a
grievance or an appeal thereof within the specified time limits, the aggrieved Employee and/or the Labor
Council may elect to treat the grievance as denied at that step and immediately appeal the grievance to

the next step.

Section 8.6 Time Off

The grievant and one (1) Labor Council representative, or a Labor Council representative if a Labor
Council grievance, shall be compensated at straight time to participate in the Step 3 or 4 meetings if the
meetings are conducted on scheduled shift time. No other time spent on grievance matters shall be

considered time worked for compensation purposes.

cti .7 Discipline
The Chief of Police shall have disciplinary authority:

A.  to discharge Employees under his command or to issue disciplinary suspensions to Employees.
Such disciplinary action shall be deemed final, subject only to an appeal of the disciplinary action
through the grievance procedure. The arbitrator retains the right to nullify or otherwise alter the
discipline as well as require back pay and restore benefits if it so chooses; and

B. to place an Employee on paid or unpaid administrative leave pending an investigation for such
time as is necessary to complete the investigation. If the Employee is placed on unpaid
administrative leave, such leave shall not exceed one hundred and fifty (150) calendar days,
except in cases where the Employee is the target of a criminal investigation. After one hundred
and fifty (150) calendar days, except in cases where the Employee is the target of a criminal
investigation, the Employee shall be placed back on paid administrative leave until the
investigation is completed and Notice of Charges have been provided and discipline issued. Such
disciplinary action shall not be deemed final until the investigation to which it relates is completed,
at which time the Employee shall have the right to appeal said disciplinary action, including
any unpaid administrative leave implemented through the grievance procedure with respect to
the disciplinary action, including discharge. Such unpaid administrative leave shall be considered
as disciplinary action and shall be made a part of any grievance initiated and processed through
Article 8. For example, if the Department places a covered member on unpaid administrative
leave for thirty (30) scheduled days of work and after the investigation is completed, issues a ten
(10) days of work suspension for alleged violation(s), the Employer owes

11
10-29-20



the covered member twenty (20) days of work back pay, along with any lost fringe benefits
provided the member does not grieve the discipline. If the discipline is grieved the member will
be compensated once the grievance process is completed. Nothing in this paragraph shall prevent
the Labor Council and the City to arrive at discipline by mutual agreement of the Labor Council
and the City. The arbitrator retains the right to nullify or otherwise alter the discipline as well as
require back pay and restore benefits if the Arbitrator or court of competent jurisdiction so
determines. All unpaid administrative leave successfully claimed or awarded under the grievance
procedure as being compensable to the Employee as back pay shall be paid by the City after the
grievance arbitration or disciplinary proceeding becomes final.

If an Employee elects to file a grievance as to any discipline imposed that involves a suspension
or discharge, the grievance shall be processed in accordance with Article 8 of this Agreement,

except that it shall be filed at Step 3 of the procedure.

ARTICLE 9 NO STRIKE NO LOCKOUT
Section 9.1 No Strike

Neither the Labor Council nor any Employees or their agents will instigate, promote, sponsor, engage i,
or condone any strike, sympathy strike, secondary boycott, slowdown, speed up, sit-down, concerted
stoppage of work, concerted refusal to perform overtime, concerted, abnormal and unapproved mass
resignations, mass absenteeism, or picketing which in any way results in the interruption or disruption of
the operations of the Employer, regardless of the reason for so doing. Any or all Employees who violate
any of the provisions of this Article may be discharged or otherwise disciplined by the Employer with
normal appeal and hearing rights as mutually agreed upon elsewhere in this Agreement. Each Employee
who holds the position of officer or steward of the Labor Council occupies a position of special trust and
responsibility in maintaining and bringing about compliance with the provisions of this Article. In
addition, in the event of a violation of this Section of this Article the Labor Council agrees to inform its
members of their obligations under this Agreement and to direct them to return to work.

ecti 2
The Employer will not lock out any Employees during the term of this Agreement as a result of a labor

dispute with the Labor Council.
Section 9.3 Penalty
The only matter which may be made the subject of a grievance concerning disciplinary action imposed

for an alleged violation of Section 9.1 is whether or not the Employee actually engaged in such
prohibited conduct. The failure to confer a penalty in any instance is not a waiver of such right in any

other instance nor is it a precedent.

ecti icia traint
Nothing contained herein shall preclude the Employer or the Labor Council from obtaining judicial
restraint and damages in the event the other Party violates this Article.

12
10-29-20



ARTICLE 10 HOLIDAYS

ecti
Employees shall receive eight (8) hours’ pay, whether they are working or not, for each of the following
holidays:

New Year's Day Martin Luther King Jr.'s Birthday
President's Day Memorial Day

Independence Day Labor Day

Columbus Day Veterans' Day

Thanksgiving Day Christmas Day

Employees scheduled to work on a holiday who are approved to take time off on that day must use
accrued time from their leave bank. If an Employee is not scheduled to work or takes approved leave
time, he may choose to add these eight (8) hours to their compensatory time bank in lieu of pay.

i .2 Holiday Pa d W equirement
Employees working their entire scheduled shift, regardless of shift length, on a holiday (listed in Section
10.1) shall receive an additional twelve (12) hours of straight time pay. The additional twelve (12) hours
may be placed into their compensatory bank in lieu of pay at the Employees option. Employees who do
not work the holiday, or who only work part of a scheduled shift, shall receive eight (8) hours of straight
time pay which they may choose to place in his compensatory bank in lieu of pay.
For example:

For Employees Working Entire Shift

Scheduled shift hours Holiday Pay Hours Total Compensation
(straight time) (Straight time) (In straight time hours)
8 hours 12 hours 20 hours
10 hours 12 hours 22 hours
12 hours 12 hours 24 hours

For Non-Working Emplovees

Scheduled shift hours
(straight time)

Holiday Pay Hours
(Straight time)

Total Compensation
(In straight time hours)

0 hours

8 hours

8 hours

Employees scheduled to work on a holiday who are approved to take time off on that day must use
accrued time from their leave bank for all scheduled shift hours not worked. To be eligible for holiday
pay when scheduled to work on the holiday, an Employee must work his regularly scheduled day before
and after the holiday, in addition to the holiday, when scheduled as part of their normal work schedule.
If an Employee is absent from work the day before or after a holiday the Employee will not receive
holiday pay until an excusable absence is established to the satisfaction of the Chief. An Employee not
scheduled to work on a holiday who does work on the holiday shall receive pay two (2) times the

13
10-29-20



Employee's regular straight time hourly rate of pay for the actual hours worked on the holiday. An
Employee ordered to work beyond his regularly scheduled shift or carried over due to an assignment on
the holiday shall receive pay of two (2) times the Employee’s regular straight time hourly rate of pay for
all such unscheduled hours worked.

ecti .3 Floati

Employees shall receive one (1) eight (8) hour floating holiday at January 1 per fiscal year and said day
must be used by the end of the fiscal year and may not be carried over to subsequent years, unless an
Employee is in his first year of employment and was hired after July 1% If a carry-over is permitted, the
day(s) carried over must be used within the first six (6) months of the new fiscal year. A floating holiday
must be taken in at least one-half day/shift increments, with the amount of hours dependent on the
impacted Employee’s shift length and must be scheduled at the mutual convenience of the Employee
and the Chief of Police or his designee at least three (3) week days in advance unless the Chief of Police
or designee approves shorter notice. For purposes of this Section and other accrued leave time sections
throughout the Agreement, “dependent on the impacted Employee’s shift length” refers to the number of
shift hours an Employee is assigned. Said approval shall not be unreasonably denied. An Employee
terminated before the end of the probationary period will not be paid for floating holidays.

ARTICLE 11 LAYOFF AND RECALL
Section 11.1 Lavoff

The Employer, in its discretion, shall determine whether layoffs are necessary. If it is determined that
layoffs are necessary, Employees covered by this Agreement will be laid off in accordance with their
length of service as provided in Illinois Statutes, Ch. 24 §10-1-38.1, as it exists on January 1, 1986. An
Employee subject to layoff will be paid all accumulated vacation leave benefits. Laid off Employees and
their dependents will be eligible to continue as participants in the Employer's group health plan at their
own expense to the extent required by federal law. A notice of potential benefits will be sent to the
Employee and any dependents covered by the group health plan by the Employer.

Section 11.2 Recall

Employees who are laid off shall be placed on a recall list for a period of two (2) years. If there is a
recall, Employees who are still on the recall list shall be recalled, in the inverse order of their layoff,
provided they are fully qualified to perform the work to which they are recalled without further training.
Employees who are eligible for recall shall be given ten (10) calendar days' notice of recall and notice of
recall shall be sent to the Employee by certified or registered mail with a copy to the Labor Council. The
Employee must notify the Chief of Police or his designee of his intention to return to work within three
(3) calendar days after receiving notice of recall. The Employer shall be deemed to have fulfilled its
obligations by mailing the recall notice by certified mail, return receipt requested, to the mailing address
last provided by the Employee, it being the obligation and responsibility of the Employee to provide the
Chief of Police or his designee with his latest mailing address. If an Employee fails to timely respond to

a recall notice his name shall be removed from the recall list.

14
10-29-20



ARTICLE 12 VACATIONS
Section 12.1 Eligibility And Accrual

Employees shall start to accrue vacation time as of their date of hire, but it may not be used during his
first twelve (12) months of employment with the City. Vacation accruals shall be posted in the following

month after it is earned, and shall be based on the following schedule:

Years of Service Hours per Month Hours per Year
0-5 Years 6.667 80
5 Years & one day- 11 Years 10.000 120
11 Years & one day — 17 Years 13.334 160
17 Years & one day or more 16.667 200

Employees shall accrue vacation time for any calendar month in which they receive compensation for
more than eighty (80) hours of regularly scheduled work or approved paid leave time. Employees may
carry over vacation time from one (1) fiscal year to the next without limit, provided, however, that:

1. the Employee uses at least sixty (60) hours of vacation time per fiscal year; and

2. no more than the Employee’s annual vacation accrual amount will be compensated at
straight time pay at the time his employment ends with the City, regardless of whether the
City or Employee ends it.

The rate of vacation pay shall be the Employee's regular straight time rate of pay. Vacation days may be
taken in less than half day/shift increments, at the discretion of the Chief of Police, with the amount of
hours dependent on the impacted Employee’s shift length.

cti cheduli rua
Earned vacation time shall be scheduled by the Employer in accordance with Employer service needs
and, if possible, the Employee's desires. On or before each October 1%, the Commander or his designee
shall post a schedule of days available for vacation during the twelve-month period beginning each
January 1*. The Employees on each shift shall then select their vacation preferences in the order of their
seniority, with the most senior Employee having first choice, the next most senior Employee having
second choice, and so on. At this time, Employees can schedule no less than one (1) week of vacation at
a time and may schedule no more than their annual accrual amount. The vacation periods requested
pursuant to this procedure shall be submitted to the Commander or his designee for approval by
November 1* of each year. The Commander or his designee shall review the requests and post a
vacation schedule on or before December 1. After the vacation schedule has been established, any
remaining vacation days ("floating™ vacation days) shall be approved on a first requested, first received
basis. Requests for a floating vacation day must, absent emergency, be submitted at least two (2) full
days in advance of the date sought, and such request may be denied by the Employer for good reason.

15
10-29-20



Requests for two or more consecutive days of floating vacation must be submitted to the Employee's
immediate supervisor and can be taken only with his authorization. No vacation days may be taken
without prior notice to and approval of the Chief of Police or designee.

cti mpl ¢
Where a vacation day is needed for emergency reasons, such as unexpected family illness, the Employee

will notify the Employer as soon as possible of such need. If the Employer is able to arrange suitable
coverage for the Employee's work, the Employee will be given the requested day(s) off as a vacation
day(s), provided the Employee has the requisite number of approved vacation day(s) available.

Section 12.5 Accumulation

Vacation time shall not accrue during any layoff or unpaid leave of absence.

Section 12.6 City Emergency

In case of an emergency, the City Administrator or Chief of Police may cancel and reschedule any or all
approved vacation leaves in advance of the vacations being taken, and/or recall back any Employee from

vacation in progress.

ARTICLE 13 PERSONAL DAYS AND SICK LEAVE

i .1 Purpose ck Leave
Sick leave with pay is provided as a benefit in recognition that Employees do contract various illnesses
from time to time and that their financial resources may be diminished in such instances if pay is
discontinued, and that it may not be in the best interest or health of the Employee or fellow Employees
for them to work while sick. To the extent permitted by law, sick Employees are expected to remain at
home unless hospitalized, visiting their doctor, acting pursuant to reasonable instructions for care, or
caring for a seriously ill member of the immediate family.

Section 13.2 Probationary Personnel

All Employees shall be eligible to tale sick leave time after completion of six (6) months of employment
with the Employer. Employees shall start to earn sick leave time upon their date of hire but cannot use
sick leave time until after successful completion of six (6) months of employment with the Employer.

Unpaid sick leave taken during the first six (6) months of the probationary period will not reduce an
Employee's seniority under Section 1.6.

Section 13.3 Use of Sick Leave

Sick leave may be used for non-service connected sickness or disability, or for caring for a seriously ill
or injured family member living with the Employee and who is in the Employee's immediate family
(defined as the Employee's legal spouse, children, step-children, parents, parents of spouse, step-parents,

brothers, sisters and relatives living under the same roof as the Employee).

ection 13.4 ed ce
Employees shall earn eight (8) hours of sick leave for each calendar month of service. Sick leave shall

be earned by an Employee for any calendar month in which the Employee is compensated for more than
eighty (80) hours of work. Sick leave used shall reduce accrued sick leave by an equal amount. Unused
sick leave credit will be carried over from year to year. Such leave cannot be taken before it is actually

earned.

16
10-29-20



Section 13.5 Notification

Notification of absence due to sickness shall be given to the Employee’s shift supervisor as soon as
possible on the first day of such absence and every day thereafter (unless this requirement is modified or
waived by the Chief), but no later than one (1) hour before the start of the Employee's work shift unless
it is shown that such notification was impossible. Failure to properly report an illness may be considered
an absence without pay and may subject the Employee to discipline, as well.

ecti 3 edica

The Employer may require a written certification from a physician indicating the nature of the illness,
injury or disability and containing a statement that the Employee has been examined and a determination
of his ability to return to work, for an Employee’s absence of more than two (2) consecutive days due to
illness, injury or disability. The Employer may require the Employee to provide his job description to his
doctor to assist in the determination of the Employee’s ability to perform the essential functions of the
job. Employees with less than 96 hours of sick leave must provide a physician’s note upon the Employer’s
request prior to returning to work, beginning with the fifth sick leave occurrence and every subsequent
occurrence in any given calendar year.

ecti ic ave
Abuse of sick leave is a serious matter which may subject an Employee to discipline. The Labor Council
shall work with the Employer in making an effort to correct the abuse of sick leave wherever and

whenever it may occur.

Section 13.8 Sick Leave Utilization

Sick leave must be used in no less than one (1) hour increments.

cti i eave Buy Ba
At the Employee's retirement, the Employee will be paid eight (8) hours’ pay for each thirty-two (32)
hours’ sick leave time earned and not taken, up to a maximum of five hundred (500) hours (e.g. an
Employee with 2,500 hours of sick leave will only be paid for 500 hours).

For purposes of this Section, retirement is defined as any Employee having twenty (20) years or more of
employment service with the City, and who will receive retirement pension payments from the West
Chicago Police Pension Fund.

Section 13.10 Personal Days

The Employer and the Labor Council recognize there are times when Employees have personal business
which requires absence from work and yet does not fit the criteria for sick leave, floating holidays, or
vacation time. To allow for these absences, without encouraging sick leave time abuse or vacation time
depletion, the Employee shall be eligible to earn personal days based on sick leave time use, as provided
in Section 13.11.

ection 13. al Day Earning an e
Employees shall accrue eight (8) hours of personal day leave with straight time pay each fiscal year at
January 1*. In addition, Employees may earn an additional eight (8) hours of straight time pay for every
fiscal quarter (i.e., January-March, April-June, July-September, and October-December) that such an

17
10-29-20



Employee does not use any sick time. Employees on probation shall eamn personal days but shall not be
able to take them until after twelve (12) months have been completed. All accrued paid leave, except
sick time, will count towards earning personal days; the taking of unpaid leave, or a suspension, shall
prevent an Employee from earning a personal day in that fiscal quarter. The personal days earned by the
Employee may be taken at any time or for any reason provided forty-eight (48) hours' notice is given to
the immediate supervisor, though the supervisor may refuse such leave for good cause. Personal days
shall be granted on a first requested, first received basis. A personal day may be used with less than
forty-eight (48) hours' notice if approved by the Chief of Police or his designee. The Employee shall not
have to provide a reason for taking the personal day. Personal days must be taken in at least one-half (%)
shift increments, with the amount of hours dependent on the impacted Employee’s shift length. Personal
days may be taken in less than half day/shift increments, at the discretion of the Chief of Police, with the
amount of hours dependent on the impacted Employee’s shift length.

ection nal c
Non-probationary Employees may accumulate up to forty (40) hours of personal day leave time. The
time earned, but not taken, may be carried over from year to year. Employees will not be paid for any
time accrued as personal days upon separation from the Employer.
Excluding the personal day granted each January 1%, Employees may not accumulate personal day leave

while on workers’ compensation leave.

RTICLE 14 AD ONAL LEAVES OF ABSENCE

Section 14.1 Unpaid Leave of Absence

An Employee who has exhausted all earned vacation leave, sick leave (if applicable), floating holiday
leave, personal days and compensatory time may request, in writing, an unpaid leave of absence. Any
request for an unpaid leave of absence shall be submitted in writing by the Employee to the City
Administrator and Chief of Police or their designee as far in advance as practicable. The request shall
state the reason for the leave of absence and the approximate length of time off the Employee desires. A
leave of absence will not be granted to enable an Employee to try out for or accept employment
elsewhere or for self-employment. An Employee who engages in employment elsewhere (including self-
employment), while on any leave of absence as provided in this Article shall be subject to discipline up
to and including termination. Authorization for an unpaid leave of absence is at the sole discretion of the
City and shall, if granted, be furnished in writing to the Employee by the City Administrator or his

designee.
ti 2 i i a

A. Unless otherwise stated in this Article or otherwise required by law, seniority, and any right or
privilege for which seniority is a factor, shall not accrue for an Employee who is on an approved
unpaid leave status. Accumulated seniority shall remain in place during the unpaid leave and shall
begin to accrue again once the Employee returns to work on paid status. Unless otherwise stated in
this Article, an Employee returning from leave will have his seniority continued after the period of
the leave. Upon return, the City will place the Employee in his previous job classification if there is a
vacancy; if there is not a vacancy; the Employee will be placed in the first available opening in his

job classification.

18
10-29-20



B. If upon the expiration of an unpaid leave of absence, there is no work available for the Employee or
if the Employee could have been laid off according to his seniority except for his leave, he shall go
directly on layoff.

C. During the approved unpaid leave of absence, all fringe benefits will cease, except that the Employee
shall be entitled to coverage under applicable group and life insurance plans to the extent provided
in such plan(s); provided the Employee makes arrangements for the change and arranges to pay the
entire insurance premium involved, including the amount of premium previously paid by the City.

ecti e for an - ess. Inju r Disabili

A. In the event an Employee is unable to work, by reason of an off-duty illness, injury or disability, the
City may grant an unpaid leave of absence during which time seniority shall not accrue.

B. To qualify for such leave, the Employee must report the illness, injury or disability as soon as the
illness, injury or disability is known, and thereafter furnish to the Chief of Police or his designee a
physician's written statement showing the nature of the illness or injury or state of disability and the
estimated length of time that the Employee will be unable to report for work, together with a written
application for such leave. Thereafter, during such leave, the Employee shall furnish an updated
report each time the Employee meets with his physician. An unpaid leave of absence for illness, non-
job-related injury or disability will under no circumstances be granted until an Employee's entire
accrued sick leave bank is first exhausted.

C. Before returning from sick leave or an unpaid leave of absence for an injury, illness or disability, or
during such leave, the Employee, at the discretion of the City, may be required to have a physical
examination by a doctor designated by the City to determine the Employee's capacity to perform
work to be assigned. If the City's designated doctor is in conflict with the Employee's doctor, a third
mutually agreed upon Doctor of Occupational Health shall be the deciding factor; otherwise the
City's doctor prevails.

ecti eave for a -Duty Illness, Inju r Disabili

A. The City acknowledges that it must comply with the Illinois Public Employee Disability Act and in
addition, the Illinois Workers’ Compensation Act for an illness, injury or disability that is
determined to be compensable in accordance with the Illinois Workers’ Compensation Act.

Before retuming from a leave of absence for an on duty, illness or disability, the Employee, at the
discretion of the City, may be required to have a physical examination by a doctor designated by the
City to determine the Employee's capacity to perform work to be assigned. If the City's designated
doctor is in conflict with the Employee's doctor, a third mutually agreed upon Doctor of
Occupational Health shall be the deciding factor; otherwise the City's doctor prevails. Any physical
examination shall be completed within fourteen (14) calendar days of the City directing the
Employee to schedule such, which time frame can be extended by mutual agreement of the Parties,
and a request for an extension shall not be unreasonably denied.

19
10-29-20



4.5 Milit v
Military leave shall be granted in accordance with applicable law.

ection 14.6 Ju itness Duty Leave

Employees covered by this Agreement who are required to serve on a jury shall sign their jury duty
checks over to the Employer. The Employer shall compensate such Employees, at their regular rate of
pay, for each regularly scheduled work hour actually spent on jury duty, up to eight (8) hours per day.
Employees whose shift length is more than eight (8) hours per day must bridge the difference by either
reporting for work, or by using accrued compensatory leave. If an Employee does not have any accrued
compensatory leave, he shall use other accrued leave (other than sick leave) to bridge the difference» If
an Employee has no accrued leave to use, the Employee must report to work.

aveme ave
In the event of death in the immediate family, the Employee will be granted up to three (3)
workdays/shifts of paid bereavement leave. The Department Head or designee may approve an
Employee’s request for up to two (2) additional days and if granted, such additional day(s) shall be
deducted from the accumulated sick leave or other accrued benefit leave time. For this purpose,
“immediate family” shall be defined as the Employee’s spouse, party to a domestic/civil union, or any of
the following members of either the Employee’s or spouse’s family: parent (including step), sibling
(including half or step), child (including step or adopted), grandparents, grandchild, daughter-in-law,
son-in-law, niece or nephew and aunt or uncle. An Employee shall provide satisfactory evidence of the
death of a member of the affected family member and the Employee's attendance at the funeral,
memorial or bereavement service if so requested by the City. Bereavement leave shall be taken within

thirty (30) calendar days from the date of the death.

Section 14.8 Light Duty

Employees who are physically unable to perform their normal job duties because of an illness, injury or
disability may be placed on light duty assignment by the Chief of Police, provided that the Employee
receives a medical release pursuant to Section 14.3(B.) from his physician or the City’s designated
physician to the extent permitted by law to perform such assignment. The length of time and
circumstances of such light duty shall be within the sole discretion of the Chief of Police, and the Chief
of Police when assigning such light duty shall be mindful of the Employee's previous work schedule and

take it into consideration.

ARTICLE 15 WAGES
Section 15.1 Wages

Employees shall be compensated according to the following schedule:

2.00% 2.00% 2.00%
01/01/20 01/01/21 01-01-22
Step 12/31/20 12/31/21 12-31-22
A $72,006 $73,446 $74,915
B $76,145 $77,668 $79,221
# $80,524 $82,134 $83,777
20

10-29-20



D $85,155 $86,858 $88,595

E $90,051 $91,852 $93,689

F $95,229 $97,134 $99,076

G $100,705 $102,719 $104,773

H $106,494 $108,624 $110,796
ection 15.2 Officer a

OIC pay applies only when there is not a Sergeant on a particular shift and the Officer acts as the OIC.
The Officer will be compensated $50.00 when acting as the OIC between two (2) to eight (8) hours and
$75.00 when acting as the OIC in excess of eight (8) hours per shift. Per “The Officer in Charge (OIC)”
Policy, the Chief of Police or his designee shall determine which individuals may serve as QICs on each
shift.

All callouts and posted overtime for a Supervisor shall be offered by seniority from a list comprised of
current Sergeants and designated OICs. Officer manpower shortages shall be resolved according to
Section 6.4. This Section (15.2) shall become effective only upon ratification and execution of the
Agreement by both parties. No OIC pay shall be retroactive to a date preceding ratification/execution of

this Agreement.

Secti 5.3 Field ining Officer Benefit

All Field Training Officers shall eam two (2) hours of straight compensatory time for each training day.
An additional four (4) hours of straight compensatory time shall be eamed at the end of the four (4)
week training step provided; however, the Field Training Officer worked every complete shift with his
assigned Employee during the step. Field Training Officer benefits will only be provided to active Field
Training Officers as defined in the Department’s Policies.

ecti lace Wage Schedule
Effective January 1, 2021, Employees shall be placed on the Wage Schedule per Appendix B attached to
this Agreement. New Employees shall be placed on the wage schedule as determined appropriate by the

City based upon their previous work experience and background.

ecti 5 ement W

Employees shall move through the wage schedule based on the performance evaluation received by the
officer prior to December 31 of each year. Employees who receive a “meets standards” evaluation or
better shall move forward one letter level. Employees who receive a “below standards™ evaluation shall
not proceed to the next letter level. During the first twelve (12) months of employment, an Employee
shall only move across the wage schedule at the same letter level on the January 1% following their hire,
and shall only move forward one letter level after twelve (12) months of employment and if they receive
a “meets standards” evaluation or better. After twelve (12) full months of employment, they shall follow
the same movement as longer tenured Employees. For example:

e an Employee hired on July 1, 2010 will begin at Step A of the 2010 wage schedule. On January 1,
2011, he will move to step A of the 2011 schedule. Assuming he receives at least a “meets
standards” on his evaluation, on his one (1) year anniversary date (July 1, 2011), he will then move
forward to Step B of the 2011 wage schedule. On January 1, 2012, he will progress across and

21
10-29-20



forward one step (Step C) on the 2012 wage schedule, the latter assuming he receives at least a
“meets standards™ on his evaluation; and

e an Employee hired on November 1, 2010 will begin at Step A of the 2010 wage schedule. On
January 1, 2011, he will move to step A of the 2011 schedule. Assuming he receives at least a
“meets standards” on his evaluation, on his one (1) year anniversary date (November 1, 2011), he
will then move forward to Step B of the 2011 wage schedule. On January 1, 2012 he will progress
across and forward one step (Step C) on the 2012 wage schedule, the latter assuming he receives at

least a “meets standards” on his evaluation.

The evaluation period each year shall begin on December 1* and conclude on November 30,

i ecourse

The Employer's evaluation of Employees may not be arbitrary and capricious. Employees may challenge
their evaluation through the grievance procedure, however, if a grievance involving this subject matter
cannot be resolved prior to Step 4, the Labor Council may proceed to Step 4 in an attempt to resolve the
dispute. Any request to proceed to arbitration shall be determined solely by the Labor Council.

In order to prevail before an arbitrator, the Labor Council must establish that the Employee's evaluation

was arbitrary and capricious.

ecti evity Pa
Longevity pay is not applicable to Employees covered by this Agreement.

ART

uartermast W,
Employees who are required to wear and regularly and continuously maintain prescribed items of

uniform clothing and personal equipment per the “Uniform Regulations Policy” issued on March 20,
2017 shall be issued same by Employer, as necessary, but shall be required to clean and maintain such
items properly and will be responsible for their return in good condition, less normal depreciation and

destruction in the course of employment.

2 Clothi low
Effective upon the execution of the Collective Bargaining Agreement by both Parties, the City shall
provide to each Detective a clothing allowance of $700.00 per fiscal year and to each School Resource
Officer a clothing allowance of $200.00 per fiscal year. The clothing allowance for a Detective shall be
paid in two $350.00 installments on the first payroll that occurs in the month of January and the first
payroll that occurs in the month of July of each year. The clothing allowance for the School Resource
Officer shall be paid in one lump sum on the first payroll that occurs in the month of January each year.
The type of clothing required to be worn while on duty shall be determined by the Chief of Police or his

designee.

22
10-29-20



ARTICLE 17 INSURANCE

ction verage
The City will provide health and dental insurance coverage similar to the existing policies, except as
otherwise stated in this Article. Employee coverage will begin on the first day of the first month
following thirty (30) days of employment, except if he starts on the first business day of the month,
when he would be eligible on the first day of the following month.

Employee coverage terminates on the last day of his employment, unless he decides to continue health
insurance through the City’s plan at the current applicable premiums for that Plan year, to be paid by the
Employee. The Employer may change carriers, benefits, adopt a PPO plan or self-insure as it deems
appropriate, so long as the basic level of insurance benefits remains the same, except the Employer may
make the following changes to the PPO Plan:

A. Increase the deductible for single coverage to $300 and family coverage to $800 per benefit plan

year.
B. Change co-insurance for participating PPO providers in network to eighty (80) percent and
change co-insurance for non-participating PPO providers to seventy (70) percent for out of
network.
ectio st

Beginning the first full month following execution of the Collective Bargaining Agreement by both
Parties, the following cost sharing provisions shall be applicable for Employees participating in an
approved medical insurance program offered by the Employer:

Employer Share Employee Share
HMO - Single 100% of premium 0% of Premium
HMO - Family 90% of premium 10% of Premium
All Other Programs - Single 90% of premium 10% of Premium
All Other Programs - Family 90% of premium 10% of Premium

The Employer will pay one hundred percent (100%) of the premium for both single and family dental
care coverage through an approved insurance carrier(s).

ection 17. t tai
The Employer reserves the right to institute cost containment measures relative to insurance coverage so
long as the basic level of insurance benefits remains substantially the same. Such changes may include,
but are not limited to, mandatory second opinions for elective surgery, pre-admission and continuing
admission review, prohibition on weekend admissions except in emergency situations, and mandatory
out-patient elective surgery for certain designated surgical procedures.

23
10-29-20



[ (] Ce
The Employer shall provide to all Employees life insurance coverage equal to the Employee’s base
salary. The Employer will pay one hundred percent (100%) of the cost of this insurance premium. The
Employer shall also provide life insurance coverage for all Employees’ spouses and for all dependents at
the coverage amounts approved by the Insurance Cooperative of which the Employer is a member. This
coverage shall continue as long as life insurance is available at reasonable rates to the Employer.

cti .S Killed In The Li u
The Employer shall defray all remaining reasonable funeral and burial expenses which are not paid from
some other source for any bargaining unit member killed in the line of duty, to a maximum of $5,000.

ARTICLE 18 DRUG/ALCOHOL TESTING

In order to help provide a safe work environment and to protect the public by insuring that police
officers have the physical stamina and emotional stability to perform their assigned duties, the Employer
may require Employees to submit to a urinalysis test and/or other appropriate drug or alcohol test up to
four (4) times per year per Employee at a time and place designated by the Employer. If an Employee
tests positive in any such random screening test for drugs/alcohol, a second drug/alcohol test shall be
conducted as soon as possible. The results of these tests shall be sent to the Employer but will remain
absolutely confidential and if both drug tests are positive the Employee shall be advised confidentially to
seek assistance. If, after a reasonable period of time for rehabilitation, the same Employee tests positive
another time subsequent to rehabilitation, or if the initial alcohol test (via blood test) shows an alcohol
concentration of .040 or more based upon grams of alcohol per 100 millimeters of blood, the test results
shall be submitted to the Chief of Police for appropriate action.

Drug or alcohol testing may also be required where there is cause for such testing. Unlawful use of
drugs or the use of alcohol during or just before work, or the failure to cooperate in testing under this

Section, shall be cause for discipline, including discharge.

RTICLE 19 MISCELLANE PROVI
Section 19.1 Maintenance of Economic Benefits

All economic benefits which are not set forth in this Agreement and are currently in effect shall continue
and remain in effect until such time as the Employer shall notify the Labor Council of its intention to
change them. Upon such notification, and if requested by the Labor Council, the Employer shall meet
and discuss such change before it is finally implemented by the Employer. Any change made without
such notice shall be considered temporary pending the completion of such meet and confer discussions.
If the Labor Council becomes aware of such a change and has not received notification, the Labor
Council must notify the Employer as soon as possible and request discussions if such discussions are
desired. The failure of the Labor Council to request discussions shall act as a waiver of the right to such

discussions by the Labor Council.

ction 19.2 eri i isabiliti
During the term of this Agreement, the parties agree that the Employer may take reasonable steps to
comply with the requirements of the Americans With Disabilities Act.

24
10-29-20



Section 19.3 Smoki
During working hours, Employees shall be covered by the Smoke Free Illinois Act of 2008. The
Employer may adopt and modify policies and procedures which are consistent with the provisions of the

Smoke Free Illinois Act.

ecti i edical Leave Act
Employees shall be covered by the Family and Medical Leave Act of 1993, or as amended. The
Employer may adopt and modify policies and procedures which are consistent with the provisions of the
Family and Medical Leave Act.

ecti .5 Bill of Ri
The Employer shall follow and abide by the rights and procedures provided for in 50 ILCS 725/1 et. seq.
of the Illinois Compiled Statutes. Any alleged violation of this Article of the Agreement may be pursued
through the grievance procedure up to but not through the arbitration step.

Section 19.6 Fitness Allowance

Beginning in January 2018 and in each successive January, the City shall provide each Employee a
fitness allowance of $300.00 per year. Nothing herein shall be construed as to require the City to provide
space in or fitness equipment at any municipal facility for Employees to use.

ARTICLE 20 IMPASSE RESOLUTION

Upon the expiration of this Agreement, the remedies for the resolution of any bargaining impasse shall
be in accordance with the Illinois Public Labor Relations Act, as amended.

RVICE

The Parties recognize that the Civil Service Commission of the City of West Chicago has certain
authority over Employees covered by this Agreement, except that the Parties have negotiated an
alternative procedure for appealing disciplinary action involving a suspension or discharge. All
disciplinary action involving a suspension or discharge shall be subject to review under the grievance
procedure and not subject to appeal to the Civil Service Commission and no such review, filing, or
processing of pending disciplinary action or pending charges before the Civil Service Commission shall
be implemented by any person.

ARTICLE 22 OUTSIDE EMPLOYMENT

Employees may not be employed in any other capacity without the written approval of the Chief of
Police; said approval shall not be unreasonably denied. Employees, who have completed their Field
Training Programs, wishing to work outside employment must first notify the Chief of Police of such
employment immediately by completing a Department provided form. The form will ask the prospective
Employer’s name, address, phone number and a description of the job, including requests for self-
employment. If approved, thereafter, this same information shall be updated by the Employee on January
1*tand July 1% of each year. The City Administrator may withdraw approval for outside employment
upon just cause. Outside work is defined as any gainful employment other than the performance of
official duties including, but not limited to, self-employment, working for another

25
10-29-20



employer in management, operation or direction of a private business for profit, including, any direct or
indirect financial interest in any such business. Outside employment shall be permitted to the extent it
does not prevent Employees from devoting their primary interest to the accomplishment of their work
for the City or tend to create a conflict between the private interests of the Employee and the Employee’s
official responsibilities. An Employee may not engage in outside employment:

(1) Which requires the wearing of the West Chicago police uniform.
(2) Which involves the use of City facilities, equipment, and supplies of whatever kinds.
(3) Which requires the use of official information not available to the public; and

(4) Which requires more than twenty (20) hours of work a week.

The carrying of a weapon may be approved for the purpose of outside employment on a case-by-case
basis; said approval shall not be unreasonably denied. An Employee may not engage in any other
business, position or occupation outside of the City limits which requires the possession of a firearm
without first obtaining a written agreement from such business, position or occupation to indemnify the
City of West Chicago for any liability (including workers' compensation or tort liability) which may
arise from the use of such firearm.

ARTICLE 23 SAVINGS CLAUSE

In the event any Article, Section or portion of this Agreement should be held invalid and unenforceable
by any board, agency or court of competent jurisdiction, such decision shall apply only to the specific
Article, Section or portion thereof specifically specified in the board, agency or court decision, and upon
issuance of such a decision, the Employer and the Labor Council agree to immediately begin
negotiations on a substitute for the invalidated Article, Section or portion thereof.

AR 24 E

This Agreement constitutes the complete and entire agreement between the Parties and concludes
collective bargaining between the Parties for its term. This Agreement supersedes and cancels all prior
practices, agreements, policies, and procedures, whether written or oral, which conflict with the express
terms of this Agreement. If a past practice is not addressed in the Agreement, it may be charged by the
Employer as provided under Article 4, Management Rights. The Parties acknowledge that during the
negotiations which resulted in this Agreement, each had the unlimited right and opportunity to make
demands and proposals with respect to any subject or matter not removed by law or ordinance from the
area of collective bargaining, and that the understandings and agreements arrived at by the Parties after
the exercise of that right and opportunity are set forth in this Agreement.

INATION

- W 5
This Agreement shall be effective on January 1, 2021 and shall remain in full force and effect until
11:59 p.m. on the 31" day of December 2022. It shall be automatically renewed from year to year

26
10-29-20



thereafter unless either Party shall notify the other in writing at least sixty (60) days prior to the
anniversary date that it desires to modify this Agreement. In the event that such notice is given,
negotiations shall begin no later than sixty (60) days prior to the anniversary date. Executed this __

day of

For the City of West Chicago

Ruben Pineda
Mayor

Nancy Smith
City Clerk

City Seal:

10-29-20

, 2020.

r th IIlmms P Labor Council
fﬂw‘/ . /1-09 2
Date Kevin S. I(rug Date
FOP Labor Counml Representative
Date Michael Levato Date
President /
Py
P o 7’ ”/‘33 /)Glu
Mlchael Cumn;mgs Date

Vice-President

o 7 |
ward Berg ate
Secretary /
ﬁw/é/// /1 Jul 03

Michael Smurawski Date
Treasurer

g ./Jﬂ.._ U/1efze
Sara Gelsomino Date
Sergeant at Arms

27



PEND LACEMENT

AS OF JANUARY 1, 2021

Zepeda
Potapczak
Smurawski
Berg
Landbo
Perry, R
Levato
O'Neil
Nielsen
Peterson
Moos
Sauseda
Herbert
Alaniz
Kowalik
Winton
Cummings
Fuller
Bowers
Jones
Gelsomino
Calabrese
Flanigan
Richards
Bertany
Schoonhoven
Mielke
Rigler
Moore
Hunt*
Dominguez*
Eversole*
*Step B at One Year Anniversary

>3>>OUU"ﬂ'ﬂG)G}GJIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII

29
10-29-20



ILLINOIS FRATERNAL ORDER OF POLICE
LABOR COUNCIL
974 CLOCK TOWER DRIVE
SPRINGFIELD, ILLINOIS 62704

I, (insert_vour name), understand that under the U.S.

Constitution I have a right not to belong to a union. By my signature I hereby waive this right and opt to join

the IL FOP Labor Council.
L, (insert vour name), hereby authorize my Employer, City

of West Chicago to deduct from my wages the uniform amount of monthly dues set by the Illinois Fraternal
Order of Police Labor Council, for expenses connected with the cost of negotiating and maintaining the
collective bargaining agreement between the parties and to remit such dues to the Illinois Fraternal Order of
Police Labor Council as it may from time to time direct. In addition, I authorize my Employer to deduct from
my wages any back dues owed to the Illinois Fraternal Order of Police Labor Council from the date of my
employment, in such manner as it so directs.
Date: Signed:
Address:
City:
State: Zip:

Telephone:

Personal E-mail:

Employment Start Date:
Title:

Employer, please remit all dues deductions to:

Illinois Fraternal Order of Police Labor Council
Attn: Accounting

974 Clock Tower Drive

Springfield, Illinois 62704

(217) 698-9433

Dues remitted to the Illinois Fraternal Order of Police Labor Council are not tax deductible as charitable
contributions for federal income tax purposes; however, they may be deductible on Schedule A of Form 1040 as a
miscellaneous deduction. Please check with your tax preparer regarding deductibility.

28
10-29-20



CITY OF WEST CHICAGO

CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

ITEM TITLE:
AGENDA ITEM NUMBER: & &.

Resolution No. 20-R-0057 — Partial Property Tax
Abatement — Scannell Properties #371 LLC FILE NUMBER:

COMMITTEE AGENDA DATE: N/A
COUNCIL AGENDA DATE: 12/7/2020

STAFF REVIEW: SIGNATURE

APPROVED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR: SIGNATURE

ITEM SUMMARY:

Attached is a request for a partial property tax abatement from a representative of Scannell Properties for
a 250,000 square foot building in the DuPage Business Center. Also included is a property tax analysis
and an IGA. This is a speculative building for which Shorr Packaging is interested in signing an eight
year lease for the entire facility.

This IGA is nearly identical to the one done with Midwest Industrial Funds, the other speculative building
in the DuPage Business Center.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. 20-R-0057.

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION:

This item did not go to Committee because it falls within the parameters already established by the City
Council and it is nearly identical to the one done with Midwest Industrial Funds.




RESOLUTION NO. 20-R-0057

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE AN
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF WEST CHICAGO,
DUPAGE AIRPORT AUTHORITY, WEST CHICAGO LIBRARY DISTRICT, WEST
CHICAGO FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT, WEST CHICAGO ELEMENTARY DISTRICT
33, COMMUNITY HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 94 AND SCANNELL PROPERTIES #371,
LLC IN REGARD TO A PROPERTY TAX ABATEMENT RELATIVE TO THE
DEVELOPMENT OF THE SCANNELL PROPERTY

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of West Chicago, in regular session
assembled, that the Mayor is hereby authorized to execute an Intergovernmental Agreement
Between the City of West Chicago, DuPage Airport Authority, West Chicago Library District,
West Chicago Fire Protection District, West Chicago Elementary District 33, Community High
School District 94 and Scannell Properties #371, LLC in Regard to a Property Tax Abatement

Relative to the Development of the Scannell Property, a copy of which, in substantially the same
form, is attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit “A”.

APPROVED this 7" day of December, 2020.
AYES:
NAYES:
ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

Mayor Ruben Pineda

ATTEST:

City Clerk Nancy M. Smith



800 East 96 Street, Suite 175 X ) '

Indianapolis, Indiana 46240

T 317.843.5959 SCANNELL

F317.843.5957 PROFERTIES

October 1, 2020

EMAIL DELIVERY

Mr. Michael Guttman

West Chicago City Manager
City of West Chicago

435 Main Street

West Chicago, IL 60185

Re:  Real Estate Tax Abatement Incentive — 555 Innovation Drive

Dear Mr. Guttman:

Please accept this letter as a request of the City of West Chicago for consideration of real estate
tax abatements in cooperation with other local taxing bodies. We have a potential tenant, Shorr
Packaging, that is growing rapidly and is in need of a second facility in the Chicagoland area to
support their customers. Among the existing buildings under consideration is the 250,000 square
foot speculative warehouse developed by Scannell Properties located at 555 Innovation Drive in

West Chicago.

If Shorr Packaging decides to expand at 555 Innovation Drive in West Chicago, they are
anticipated to sign a seven year and four month lease for the 250,000 square foot facility which
would obligate them to pay a minimum of $8.75 million in base rent and the landlord to fund $2
million in additional improvements to the shell of the building. Additionally, they anticipate
purchasing $1.5 million in fixtures, furniture and equipment to build out the new space and plan
to create 16 (growing to 22) new full-time jobs, expected to be filled by DuPage County
residents. In addition, they will employ 30 (growing to 50) contract workers to support thier peak
business season between October and January. Subject to tax abatement approval, the lease will

commence on January 1, 2021,



800 East 96 Street, Suite 175 B '

Indianapolis, Indiana 46240
T317.843.5959 SCANNELL

F317.843.5957 PROPERTIES

In addition to the new jobs and revenue that Shorr will bring to West Chicago within this
250,000 square foot facility, a further boost to the local economy could be on the horizon via a
possible expansion of this facility up to 600,000 square feet. Shorr's current corporate
headquarters is located in Aurora, IL, and a relocation of the headquarters to West Chicago is
under consideration if the company can make a satisfactory opening of operations within the
existing 250,000 square feet at 555 Innovation Drive. Scannell has had preliminary discussions
with Shorr on how that expansion might work on the adjacent vacant land parcel. The
projections for jobs and revenue noted in this letter can be expected to more than double if/fwhen

such an expansion is completed.

We are requesting consideration of economic incentives in the form of property tax abatement.

Also attached is a spreadsheet illustrating property tax abatement in line with abatements agreed
to by the City in support of other projects in the DuPage Technology Park. Shorr Packaging has
been a community leader for 95+ years and intends to continue in that role. Further information

regarding Shorr and this project accompanies this letter.

Sincerely,

William Linville
Managing Director, Partner



800 East 96% Street, Suite 175 i l

Indianapolis, Indiana 46240

T 317.843.5959 SCANNELL

F317.843.5957 PROPERTIES

Company Background
Shorr Packaging Corporation is an industry-leading, award-winning distributor of

packaging products, equipment and services. We represent the best-known packaging
product manufacturers and brands in the industry and are one of the largest independent
packaging distributors in the nation. Founded in 1922, we have established a long history
and success record, all attributed to one simple principle - listen to the customer. Our
primary customer base includes E.Com distribution, 3PL warehousing and distribution,
general manufacturing, pharma and food packaging distribution. We have grown our

business organically and expect to grow to a $1 billion-dollar company by 2027.

Community Contributions and Support
In December of 2012 Shorr Packaging Corp. became 100% ESOP owned and converted to

an S-Corp. We were named "Company of the Year" by the Illinois Chapter of the ESOP
Association in 2015. We proudly employ over 420 ESOP employee-owners in multiple

locations from Los Angeles, California to Allentown, Pennsylvania.

Shorr has committed to growing our local footprint within DuPage County. In 2016, we
consolidated our corporate headquarters and warehouse at 800 N. Commerce Street in
Aurora along with four other locations into a newly constructed facility at 4000 Ferry Road
in Aurora. Because of our significant growth, we have already outgrown this building. Our
new building will expand our capacity to support the growing needs of our local customers.
We plan to continue to hire and train additional employees in DuPage County as we build
out our footprint here in the western suburbs. Upon expiration of our existing local building

leases (2028), we plan to build a new corporate headquarters and consolidate into one

building once again.



800 East 96% Street, Suite 175 o '

Indianapolis, indiona 46240

T317.843.5959 S C A N N E L L
F317.843.5957 PROPERTIES
Project Specifics

Shorr estimates its employment and capital investments as follows:
e [ease: $8.75 million (base rent)
® Building Construction: $2.0 million (interior improvements)

® Equipment and Machinery Purchases: $1.5 million

® Annual Equipment leases $59,000.00

If the project is located in West Chicago, Shorr also expects to hire approximately 16
growing to 22 new full-time employees and 30 growing to 50 seasonal contract workers.
Shorr plans to pay average total compensation of $43,000, plus the value of ESOP

retirement contributions and benefits.



555 Innovation Drive
West Chicago, IL
Real Estate

04-07-102-018

Square Feet
Assessment

Tax Rate

Incremental Tax Due to Development
Breakout

Grade School District 33

Grade School District 33 Pension
High School District 94

High School District 94 Pension
West Chicago Fire District

West Chicago Fire District Pension
City of West Chicago

West Chicago Library District
West Chicago Library District Pension
Dupage Airport Authority
Warrenville Park District

College of Dupage

County of Dupage

County of Dupage Pension
Winfield Township Road

Winfield Township Road Pension
Forest Preserve District

Forest Preserve District Pension
Winfield Township

County Health Department

County Health Department Pension

Total
Abated Taxes

Grade School District 33

Grade School District 33 Pension
High School District 94

High School District 94 Pension

West Chicago Fire District

West Chicago Fire District Pension
City of West Chicago

West Chicago Library District

West Chicago Library District Pension
Dupage Airport Authority

Total
Total Tax Collected
Total Incremental Tax Collected

Grade School District 33

Grade School District 33 Pension
High School District 94

High School District 94 Pension

West Chicago Fire District

West Chicago Fire District Pension
City of West Chicago

West Chicago Library District

West Chicago Library District Pension
Dupage Airport Authority

Total

Non Abated Taxing Authorties

Sheet1

2021, pay 2022 2022, pay 2023 2023, pay 2024 2024, pay 2025 2025, pay 2026 2026, pay 2027 2027, pay 2028 2028, pay 2029 2029, pay 2030 2030, pay 2031 2031, pay 2032 2032, pay 2033 2033, pay 2034 2034, pay 2035 2035, pay 2036 Totals
250,000 250,000 250,000 250,000 250,000 250,000 250,000 250,000 250,000 250,000 250,000 250,000 250,000 250,000 250,000 250,000
$5,197,500 $5,197,500 $5,197,500 $5,197,500 $5,197,500 $5,197,500 $5,197,500 $5,197,500 $5,197,500 $5,197,500 $5,197,500 $5,197,500 $5,197,500 $5,197,500 $5,197,500 $5,197,500
0.09877700 0.09877700 0.09877700 0.09877700 0.09877700 0.09877700 0.09877700 0.09877700 0.09877700 0.09877700 0.09877700 0.09877700 0.09877700 0.09877700 0.09877700 0.09877700
$513,393.46 $513,393.46 $513,393.46 $513,393.46 $513,393.46 $513,393.46 $513,393.46 $513,393.46 $513,393.46 $513,393.46 $513,393.46 $513,393.46 $513,393.46 $513,393.46 $513,393.46 $3,593,754.20
0.0443  $230,270.04 $230,270.04 $230,270.04 $230,270.04 $230,270.04 $230,270.04 $230,270.04 $230,270.04 $230,270.04 $230,270.04 $230,270.04 $230,270.04 $230,270.04 $230,270.04 $230,270.04 $3,223,780.56
0.002502  $13,004.15 $13,004.15 $13,004.15 $13,004.15 $13,004.15 $13,004.15 $13,004.15 $13,004 $13,004 $13,004 $13,004.15 $13,004.15 $13,004 $13,004 $13,004.15 $182,058.03
0.021888  $113,762.88 $113,762.88 $113,762.88 $113,762.88 $113,762.88 $113,762.88 $113,762.88 $113,762.88 $113,762.88 $113,762.88 $113,762.88 $113,762.88 $113,762.88 $113,762.88 $113,762.88 $1,592,680.32
0.000685  $3,560.29 $3,560.29 $3,560.29 $3,560.29 $3,560.29 $3,560.29 $3,560.29 $3,560.29 $3,560 $3,560 $3,560.29 $3,560.29 $3,560 $3,560 $3,560.29 $49,844.03
0.008135  $42,281.66 $42,281.66 $42,281.66 $42,281.66 $42,281.66 $42,281.66 $42,281.66 $42,282 $42,281.66 $42,281.66 $42,281.66 $42,281.66 $42,281.66 $42,281.66 $42,281.66 $591,943.28
0.00116  $6,029.10 $6,029.10 $6,029.10 $6,029.10 $6,029.10 $6,029.10 $6,029.10 $6,029.10 $6,029 $6,029 $6,029.10 $6,029.10 $6,029 $6,029 $6,029.10 $84,407.40
0.005034  $26,164.22 $26,164.22 $26,164.22 $26,164.22 $26,164.22 $26,164.22 $26,164.22 $26,164.22 $26,164.22 $26,164.22 $26,164.22 $26,164.22 $26,164.22 $26,164.22 $26,164.22 $366,299.01
0.002728  $14,178.78 $14,178.78 $14,178.78 $14,178.78 $14,178.78 $14,178.78 $14,178.78 $14,179 $14,179 $14,179 $14,178.78 $14,178.78 $14,179 $14,179 $14,178.78 $198,502.92
0.000165 $857.59 $857.59 $857.59 $857.59 $857.59 $857.59 $857.59 $857.59 $857.59 $857.59 $857.59 $857.59 $857.59 $857.59 $857.59 $12,006.23
0.000141 $732.85 $732.85 $732.85 $732.85 $732.85 $732.85 $732.85 $732.85 $733 $733 $732.85 $732.85 $733 $733 $732.85 $10,259.87
0.004577  $23,788.96 $23,788.96 $23,788.96 $23,788.96 $23,788.96 $23,788.96 $23,788.96 $23,789 $23,788.96 $23,788.96 $23,788.96 $23,788.96 $23,788.96 $23,788.96 $23,788.96 $333,045.41
0.002112  $10,977.12 $10,977.12 $10,977.12 $10,977.12 $10,977.12 $10,977.12 $10,977.12 $10,977.12 $10,977 $10,977 $10,977.12 $10,977.12 $10,977 $10,977 $10,977.12 $153,679.68
0.001002  $5,207.90 $5,207.90 $5,207.90 $5,207.90 $5,207.90 $5,207.90 $5,207.90 $5,207.90 $5,207.90 $5,207.90 $5,207.90 $5,207.90 $5,207.90 $5,207.90 $5,207.90 $72,910.53
0.000209  $1,086.28 $1,086.28 $1,086.28 $1,086.28 $1,086.28 $1,086.28 $1,086.28 $1,086 $1,086 $1,086 $1,086.28 $1,086.28 $1,086 $1,086 $1,086.28 $15,207.89
0.001452  $7,546.77 $7,546.77 $7,546.77 $7,546.77 $7,546.77 $7,546.77 $7,546.77 $7,546.77 $7,546.77 $7,546.77 $7,546.77 $7,546.77 $7,546.77 $7,546.77 $7,546.77 $105,654.78
0.000058 $301.46 $301.46 $301.46 $301.46 $301.46 $301.46 $301.46 $301.46 $301 $301 $301.46 $301.46 $301 $301 $301.46 $4,220.37
0.001141  $5,930.35 $5,930.35 $5,930.35 $5,930.35 $5,930.35 $5,930.35 $5,930.35 $5,930 $5,930.35 $5,930.35 $5,930.35 $5,930.35 $5,930.35 $5,930.35 $5,930.35 $83,024.87
0.000101 $524.95 $524.95 $524.95 $524.95 $524.95 $524.95 $524.95 $524.95 $525 $525 $524.95 $524.95 $525 $525 $524.95 $7,349.27
0.000939  $4,880.45 $4,880.45 $4,880.45 $4,880.45 $4,880.45 $4,880.45 $4,880.45 $4,880.45 $4,880.45 $4,880.45 $4,880.45 $4,880.45 $4,880.45 $4,880.45 $4,880.45 $68,326.34
0.000331  $1,720.37 $1,720.37 $1,720.37 $1,720.37 $1,720.37 $1,720.37 $1,720.37 $1,720 $1,720 $1,720 $1,720.37 $1,720.37 $1,720 $1,720 $1,720.37 $24,085.22
0.000113 $587.32 $587.32 $587.32 $587.32 $587.32 $587.32 $587.32 $587.32 $587.32 $587.32 $587.32 $587.32 $587.32 $587.32 $587.32 $8,222.45
0.098777  $513,393.46 $513,393.46 $513,393.46 $513,393.46 $513,393.46 $513,393.46 $513,393.46 $513,393 $513,393.46 $513,393.46 $513,393.46 $513,393.46 $513,393.46 $513,393.46 $513,393.46 $7,187,508.41
0.044304 $92,108.02 $92,108.02 $92,108.02 $92,108.02 $92,108.02 $92,108.02 $92,108.02 $92,108.02 $92,108.02 $92,108.02 $921,080.16
0.002502 $5,201.66 $5,201.66 $5,201.66 $5,201.66 $5,201.66 $5,201.66 $5,201.66 $5,201.66 $5,201.66 $5,201.66 $52,016.58
0.021888 $45,505.15 $45,505.15 $45,505.15 $45,505.15 $45,505.15 $45,505.15 $45,505.15 $45,505.15 $45,505.15 $45,505.15 $455,051.52
0.000685 $1,424.12 $1,424.12 $1,424.12 $1,424.12 $1,424.12 $1,424.12 $1,424.12 $1,424.12 $1,424.12 $1,424.12 $14,241.15
0.008135 $16,912.67 $16,912.67 $16,912.67 $16,912.67 $16,912.67 $16,912.67 $16,912.67 $16,912.67 $16,912.67 $16,912.67 $169,126.65
0.00116 $2,411.64 $2,411.64 $2,411.64 $2,411.64 $2,411.64 $2,411.64 $2,411.64 $2,411.64 $2,411.64 $2,411.64 $24,116.40
0.005034 $10,465.69 $10,465.69 $10,465.69 $10,465.69 $10,465.69 $10,465.69 $10,465.69 $10,465.69 $10,465.69 $10,465.69 $104,656.86
0.002728 $5,671.51 $5,671.51 $5,671.51 $5,671.51 $5,671.51 $5,671.51 $5,671.51 $5,671.51 $5,671.51 $5,671.51 $56,715.12
0.000165 $343.04 $343.04 $343.04 $343.04 $343.04 $343.04 $343.04 $343.04 $343.04 $343.04 $3,430.35
0.000141 $293.14 $293.14 $293.14 $293.14 $293.14 $293.14 $293.14 $293.14 $293.14 $293.14 $2,931.39
0.086742 $180,336.62 $180,336.62 $180,336.62 $180,336.62 $180,336.62 $180,336.62 $180,336.62 $180,336.62 $180,336.62 $180,336.62 $1,803,366.18
$333,056.84 $333,056.84 $333,056.84 $333,056.84 $333,056.84 $333,056.84 $333,056.84 $333,056.84 $333,056.84 $333,056.84 $3,330,568.40
0.044304 $138,162.02 $138,162.02 $138,162.02 $138,162.02 $138,162.02 $138,162.02 $138,162.02 $138,162.02 $138,162.02 $138,162.02 $230,270.04 $230,270.04 $230,270.04 $230,270.04 $230,270.04  $2,302,700.40
0.002502 $7,802.49 $7,802.49 $7,802.49 $7,802.49 $7,802.49 $7,802.49 $7,802.49 $7,802.49 $7,802.49 $7,802.49 $13,004.15 $13,004.15 $13,004.15 $13,004.15 $13,004.15 $130,041.45
0.021888 $68,257.73 $68,257.73 $68,257.73 $68,257.73 $68,257.73 $68,257.73 $68,257.73 $68,257.73 $68,257.73 $68,257.73 $113,762.88 $113,762.88 $113,762.88 $113,762.88 $113,762.88  $1,137,628.80
0.000685 $2,136.17 $2,136.17 $2,136.17 $2,136.17 $2,136.17 $2,136.17 $2,136.17 $2,136.17 $2,136.17 $2,136.17 $3,560.29 $3,560.29 $3,560.29 $3,560.29 $3,560.29 $35,602.88
0.008135 $25,369.00 $25,369.00 $25,369.00 $25,369.00 $25,369.00 $25,369.00 $25,369.00 $25,369.00 $25,369.00 $25,369.00 $42,281.66 $42,281.66 $42,281.66 $42,281.66 $42,281.66 $422,816.63
0.00116 $3,617.46 $3,617.46 $3,617.46 $3,617.46 $3,617.46 $3,617.46 $3,617.46 $3,617.46 $3,617.46 $3,617.46 $6,029.10 $6,029.10 $6,029.10 $6,029.10 $6,029.10 $60,291.00
0.005034 $15,698.53 $15,698.53 $15,698.53 $15,698.53 $15,698.53 $15,698.53 $15,698.53 $15,698.53 $15,698.53 $15,698.53 $26,164.22 $26,164.22 $26,164.22 $26,164.22 $26,164.22 $261,642.15
0.002728 $8,507.27 $8,507.27 $8,507.27 $8,507.27 $8,507.27 $8,507.27 $8,507.27 $8,507.27 $8,507.27 $8,507.27 $14,178.78 $14,178.78 $14,178.78 $14,178.78 $14,178.78 $141,787.80
0.000165 $514.55 $514.55 $514.55 $514.55 $514.55 $514.55 $514.55 $514.55 $514.55 $514.55 $857.59 $857.59 $857.59 $857.59 $857.59 $8,575.88
0.000141 $439.71 $439.71 $439.71 $439.71 $439.71 $439.71 $439.71 $439.71 $439.71 $439.71 $732.85 $732.85 $732.85 $732.85 $732.85 $7,328.48
0.086742 $270,504.93 $270,504.93 $270,504.93 $270,504.93 $270,504.93 $270,504.93 $270,504.93 $270,504.93 $270,504.93 $270,504.93 $450,841.55 $450,841.55 $450,841.55 $450,841.55 $450,841.55  $4,508,415.45
$62,551.91 $62,551.91 $62,551.91 $62,551.91 $62,551.91 $62,551.91 $62,551.91 $62,551.91 $62,551.91 $62,551.91 $62,551.91 $62,551.91 $62,551.91 $62,551.91 $62,551.91 $875,726.78

Page 1



INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT
BETWEEN THE CITY OF WEST CHICAGO, DUPAGE AIRPORT AUTHORITY, WEST
CHICAGO LIBRARY DISTRICT, WEST CHICAGO FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT,
WEST CHICAGO ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT 33, COMMUNITY HIGH
SCHOOL DISTRICT 94 AND SCANNELL PROPERTIES #371, LLC IN REGARD TO
A PROPERTY TAX ABATEMENT RELATIVE TO THE DEVELOPMENT OF THE
SCANNELL PROPERTY

This INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is entered into this

day of , 2020 (“Effective Date”), by and between the CITY OF

WEST CHICAGO, an lllinois home rule municipal corporation (“CITY"), the DUPAGE
AIRPORT AUTHORITY, an lllinois airport authority (‘AIRPORT"), the WEST CHICAGO
LIBRARY DISTRICT, an lllinois library district (‘LIBRARY”), the WEST CHICAGO FIRE
PROTECTION DISTRICT, an lllinois fire protection district ("FIRE PROTECTION
DISTRICT"), the WEST CHICAGO ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT 33, an lllinois
school district ("ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT"), the COMMUNITY HIGH SCHOOL
DISTRICT 94, an lllinois school district (‘HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT"), and SCANNELL
PROPERTIES #371, LLC, an Indiana limited liability company authorized to conduct
business in the State of lllinois (‘DEVELOPER”"). The CITY, the AIRPORT, the LIBRARY,
the FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT, the ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT, the HIGH
SCHOOL DISTRICT, and the DEVELOPER are sometimes individually referred to herein
as a "Party” and collectively referred to as the “Parties.”

WITNESSETH

WHEREAS, DEVELOPER has acquired approximately 21.14 acres of land in the
DuPage Business Park located in West Chicago, lllinois, with said property being legally

described on EXHIBIT A-1 attached hereto and made part hereof, and depicted on

EXHIBIT A-2 attached hereto and made part hereof (“Subject Property”): and

454988 _2 1




WHEREAS, the DEVELOPER desires to develop the Subject Property into a
warehouse operation consisting of a building of approximately two hundred fifty thousand
(250,000) square feet, as depicted on and further described in EXHIBIT B-1 and EXHIBIT
B-2, respectively, attached hereto and made a part hereof (“Project”); and

WHEREAS, subject to the approval of this Agreement, Shorr Packaging Corp.
(“Shorr”) is intended to be the initial tenant the building to be built as part of the Project,
which space shall be used for warehousing and distributing Shorr’s products; and

WHEREAS, it is anticipated Shorr, or a future tenant on the Subject Property in
the event that Shorr is no longer in possession of the Subject Property, will employ no
less than sixteen (16) full-time employees at the building developed as part of the Project;
and

WHEREAS, the DEVELOPER now owns and desires to develop and operate the
Project on the Subject Property; and

WHEREAS, in order to induce the DEVELOPER to proceed with the Project, the
CITY, the AIRPORT, the LIBRARY, the FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT, the
ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT, and the HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT (collectively the
“UNITS OF GOVERNMENT") agree to provide the DEVELOPER with a partial real estate
tax abatement in regard to certain of the real estate taxes assessed by the UNITS OF
GOVERNMENT against the Subject Property (“Tax Abatement”): and

WHEREAS, the Tax Abatement will provide a real estate tax abatement from the
UNITS OF GOVERNMENT to the DEVELOPER pursuant to 35 ILCS 200/18-165
(“Abatement Law"); and

WHEREAS, the UNITS OF GOVERNMENT have agreed to provide the Tax

454988_2 2



Abatement to the DEVELOPER, pursuant to the terms and conditions as set forth in this
Agreement, provided the DEVELOPER agrees to refrain from taking any actions, either
directly or indirectly, to lower the equalized assessed valuation of the Subject Property,
including the Project located thereon, for a period of fifteen (15) years after the Project
commences operation, below those equalized assessed valuations as set forth on
EXHIBIT C, attached hereto and made part hereof (“Anticipated Assessed Values'); and

WHEREAS, the DEVELOPER is in agreement with the restriction set forth above,
relative to refraining from taking any actions, either directly or indirectly, to lower the
equalized assessed valuation of the Subject Property below the Anticipated Assessed
Values for the Subject Property; and

WHEREAS, by providing the Tax Abatement, in exchange for the DEVELOPER
agreeing to refrain from taking any actions, either directly or indirectly, to lower the
equalized assessed valuation of the Subject Property below the Anticipated Assessed
Values for the Subject Property, the UNITS OF GOVERNMENT will induce the
DEVELOPER to cause the Project to be constructed and operated, which the UNITS OF
GOVERNMENT anticipate will provide future financial benefits for the UNITS OF
GOVERNMENT; and

WHEREAS, Article VII, Section 10 of the 1970 lllinois Constitution, 5 ILCS 220/1
et seq. and the CITY'S home rule powers provide the authority for this Agreement; and

WHEREAS, it is in the best interests of the Parties to enter into this Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing, and the mutual covenants
and agreements contained herein, the Parties hereto agree as follows:

y INCORPORATION OF PREAMBLES. The preambles hereto, as set forth above,
are incorporated herein by reference and are made part hereof.

454988 2 3



& DEVELOPER CONDITIONS. The DEVELOPER'S right to receive the Tax
Abatement under this Agreement is expressly conditioned upon the satisfaction by
the DEVELOPER, or the DEVELOPER's tenant on the Subject Property, of the
following conditions. The DEVELOPER, or the DEVELOPER'’s tenant on the
Subject Property, shall:

A.

454988_2

Construct and operate the Project on the Subject Property substantially in
accordance with EXHIBITS B-1 and B-2;

Obtain certificates of occupancy, or final approvals, for the Project from all
governmental entities having jurisdiction over the design and construction
of the Project, on or before January 1, 2022. The date the DEVELOPER
receives the last of the certificates of occupancy or final approvals for the
Project from all governmental entities having jurisdiction over the design
and construction of the Project shall be the “Commencement Date.” The
DEVELOPER shall notify each of the UNITS OF GOVERNMENT of the
Commencement Date within fourteen (14) days after the Commencement
Date has occurred;

During the first ten (10) years following the Commencement Date, obtain
the CITY’S prior written consent before any user, licensee, tenant or
occupant, other than Shorr, takes possession, by license, lease or
otherwise (“Occupant”), of any portion of the Subject Property. The CITY
may withhold its consent if, in its sole discretion, the CITY determines that:
(i) the contemplated use by such Occupant may have an adverse and
harmful effect on the environment, (ii) the contemplated use by such
Occupant may contribute to the CITY having a negative identity or image,
(iii) the contemplated use by such Occupant, or the Occupant, is deemed
undesirable, or (iv) the Occupant is a non-taxable entity. Prior to allowing
any Occupant, other than Shorr, to take possession, by license, lease or
otherwise, of any portion of the Project, the DEVELOPER shall provide the
CITY with a written request for the CITY’S consent. The CITY shall review
the request and respond within thirty (30) calendar days from the date the
request was received by the CITY. The DEVELOPER shall provide the
CITY with information and documents reasonably requested by the CITY
regarding the DEVELOPER'S request. Each calendar day between the time
of the CITY’S request for information and documents, and the DEVELOPER
providing the information and documents, shall extend the thirty (30)
calendar day period for the CITY'S response by an equal number of
calendar days. If the CITY does not respond within thirty (30) calendar days
from the date the request was received by the CITY, or such greater number
of calendar days as extended due to days passing before DEVELOPER has
provided the CITY the requested information and documents, the CITY'S
prior written consent shall not be needed with regard to the Occupant set



forth in the DEVELOPER’S request;
D. Comply with the real estate tax obligations set forth in Section 4. below; and

Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the contrary, if the
DEVELOPER, or any of the DEVELOPER's tenant on the Subject Property, fails
to meet any of its obligations in Section 2. of this Agreement, the Agreement shall
be terminated and be null and void.

3. REAL ESTATE TAX ABATEMENT.

A. Subject to the DEVELOPER, or the DEVELOPER’s tenant on the Subject
Property, being in full compliance with Section 2. above, and Section 4.A.
below, the UNITS OF GOVERNMENT shall provide the DEVELOPER with
the Tax Abatement pursuant to the Abatement Law, relative to the real
estate taxes assessed against the Subject Property, including the Project
located thereon, with said Tax Abatement being:

1. For a maximum of ten (10) years, beginning with the real estate taxes
levied on the Subject Property, including the Project located thereon,
for the full calendar year after the calendar year in which the
Commencement Date occurs, which real estate taxes are payable in
the year thereafter, even if the full amount referenced in Subsection
3.A.2. below has not been abated (the Parties anticipate a
Commencement Date in calendar year 2021, with real estate taxes
first being abated under this Agreement for calendar year 2022, said
taxes being payable in calendar year 2023);

2. Limited to a total cumulative amount from the UNITS OF
GOVERNMENT combined of Four Million and No/100 Dollars
($4,000,000.00), even if the Tax Abatement has not occurred for the
full ten (10) year period referenced in Subsection 3.A.1. above;

3. Limited to Forty Percent (40%) of the real estate taxes to be received
by the UNITS OF GOVERNMENT from the Subject Property,
including the Project located thereon, exclusive of real estate taxes
received to satisfy any debt service tax levy of general applicability to
all property within any one or more of the respective UNITS OF
GOVERNMENT, in any given year; and

4.  Limited by excluding amounts levied by each of the UNITS OF
GOVERNMENT for debt service, and limited in the Abatement Law,
and any amendments thereto after the Effective Date.

Within sixty (60) days of the Commencement Date, each of the UNITS OF

GOVERNMENT shall adopt the ordinance, or resolution, attached hereto as
EXHIBIT D and made a part hereof (“Abatement Ordinance / Resolution”),

454988_2 5



B.

454988_2

and send a certified copy of the Abatement Ordinance / Resolution to the
DuPage County Clerk (“Clerk”), with such changes to the Abatement
Ordinance / Resolution being made to tailor the Abatement Ordinance /
Resolution to the specific ordinance, or resolution, form requirements of
each of the UNITS OF GOVERNMENT, and after updating the current
P.I.N.s and legal description(s) for the Subject Property, including the Project
located thereon, if any. The Parties acknowledge that under the Abatement
Law, the Clerk administers the Tax Abatement. The Parties acknowledge
that as of the Effective Date, the process for administering the Tax
Abatement as is described in EXHIBIT E, attached hereto and made a part
hereof, and that the process described in EXHIBIT E may change after the
Effective Date. If the process for administering the Tax Abatement as
described in EXHIBIT E is changed after the Effective Date, the Parties shall
update EXHIBIT E to reflect the new process, which update may occur upon
agreement of the chief administrative officers of each of the UNITS OF
GOVERNMENT and the DEVELOPER. The Parties shall cooperate with one
another, and the Clerk, in administering the Tax Abatement. Upon a
reasonable request of the Clerk, or any other Party, the Parties shall timely
respond to requests for information and documents related to the Tax
Abatement, and the Parties shall take all reasonable steps in a timely
manner needed to administer the Tax Abatement consistent with the terms
of this Agreement.

During the term of this Agreement, if the DEVELOPER ceases operating
the Project on the Subject Property, or if the DEVELOPER breaches any of
its obligations under Section 4.A., the UNITS OF GOVERNMENT shall
provide written notice of such cessation (a “Default Notice”) to the
DEVELOPER. If the DEVELOPER does not recommence operation of the
Project within thirty (30) days of the DEVELOPER'’s receipt of a Default
Notice, or if the DEVELOPER does not cure the breach of its obligations
under Section 4.A.within thirty (30) days of the DEVELOPER's receipt of a
Default Notice, then the UNITS OF GOVERNMENT may elect, by written
notice to the DEVELOPER delivered following such thirty (30) day period,
to terminate this Agreement (a “Termination”), whereupon the
DEVELOPER shall reimburse the UNITS OF GOVERNMENT the Tax
Abatement as follows:

1 If a Termination occurs within five (5) years from the
Commencement Date, the DEVELOPER shall pay each of the
UNITS OF GOVERNMENT its pro rata amount of Seventy Five
Percent (75%) of the Tax Abatement realized by the DEVELOPER:
or

2. If a Termination occurs after five (5) years from the Commencement
Date, the DEVELOPER shall pay each of the UNITS OF



GOVERNMENT its pro rata amount of Fifty Percent (50%) of the Tax
Abatement realized by the DEVELOPER.

The DEVELOPER's reimbursement obligations herein shall survive, and be binding upon
the DEVELOPER, regardless of the termination or expiration of this Agreement, until
fifteen (15) years after the Commencement Date. The DEVELOPER shall reimburse the
UNITS OF GOVERNMENT within thirty (30) days of a written demand from the UNITS
OF GOVERNMENT for such reimbursement.

4. REAL ESTATE TAX OBLIGATIONS OF THE DEVELOPER.

A.

454988_2

The DEVELOPER agrees to pay, or cause to be paid, all general and
special real estate taxes levied against its respective interest in the Subject
Property, including the Project located thereon, on or prior to the date same
is due, and said real estate taxes shall not become delinquent. The
DEVELOPER shall deliver evidence of payment of such real estate taxes
to the UNITS OF GOVERNMENT upon request.

The DEVELOPER agrees:

1 to not, and shall not permit or allow and of its affiliates or employees,
to challenge, contest, or seek a reduction in, or assert tax-exempt
status in relation to, the real estate taxes assessed against the
Subject Property, including the Project located thereon, below the
Anticipated Assessed Values, as shown on EXHIBIT C;

2. to prohibit any third party obligated to pay the real estate taxes, in
whole or in part, assessed against the Subject Property, including
the Project located thereon, or any portion thereof, from challenging,
contesting, seeking a reduction in or asserting tax-exempt status in
relation to the real estate taxes assessed against the Subject
Property, including the Project located thereon, below the
Anticipated Assessed Values, as shown on EXHIBIT C; and

3. to not file, participate in, or allow any of its affiliates or employees to
file or participate in a tax rate objection, contest or other challenge to
the taxes and/or levies of the taxing districts authorized by law to levy
property taxes against the Subject Property, including the Project
located thereon, below the Anticipated Assessed Values, as shown
on EXHIBIT C.

The sole remedy to each of the UNITS OF GOVERNMENT, in the event of
a breach by DEVELOPER of its obligations in Subsection 4.B. above, shall
be for the DEVELOPER to pay to each of the UNITS OF GOVERNMENT,
on an annual basis, the difference between (1) the actual real estate taxes
payable with respect to the Subject Property, including the Project located



thereon, resulting from any such successful challenge, contest, or reduction
of or exemption from real estate taxes assessed against the Subject
Property, including the Project located thereon, below the Anticipated
Assessed Values, as shown on EXHIBIT C, and (2) the lesser of (a) the
amount of real estate taxes that would have been due and owing on the
Subject Property, including the Project located thereon, for such year, after
the Tax Abatement for such year, had such successful challenge contest,
or reduction of or exemption from real estate taxes assessed against the
Subject Property not occurred, and (b) the amount of real estate taxes that
would have been due and owing on the Anticipated Assessed Values for
such year, after the Tax Abatement for such year (said deficiency shall
herein be referred to as the “Tax Deficiency”) plus interest thereon at the
prime rate charged by BMO Harris Bank (or its successor) plus Three
Percent (3%) per annum for the period beginning on the date the real estate
taxes are received by each of the UNITS OF GOVERNMENT for any given
year and ending on the date the Tax Deficiency is paid to each of the UNITS
OF GOVERNMENT, which shall be due within thirty (30) days of written
notice from any one (1) of the UNITS OF GOVERNMENT.

The DEVELOPER agrees to not pursue, permit or allow any of its affiliates
or employees to agree to, pursue or permit the disconnection or detachment
of the Subject Property from any of the UNITS OF GOVERNMENT.

GENERAL CONDITIONS/REQUIREMENTS.

A.

454988_2

This Agreement is entered into for the benefit of each of the Parties, solely,
and not for the benefit of any third party.

Nothing contained in this Agreement shall constitute a waiver of any
privileges, defenses or immunities which the UNITS OF GOVERNMENT
may have under the Local Governmental and Governmental Employees
Tort Immunity Act, 745 ILCS 10/1-101, et seq., with respect to any claim
brought by a third party.

The rights and obligations of the DEVELOPER shall constitute covenants
running with the land legally described in Exhibit A-1 and shall be binding
on successors and assigns of the DEVELOPER and shall bind all owners
of the Subject Property, including the Project located thereon, or any portion
thereof during the term of the Agreement.

This Agreement shall be recorded on title to the Subject Property at the
expense of the DEVELOPER upon taking effect.

Upon a breach of this Agreement by DEVELOPER, any of the UNITS OF
GOVERNMENT may repeal their respective Abatement Ordinance /
Resolution, and any Party, by an action or proceeding solely in equity



454988_2

brought in the 18th Judicial Circuit Court, in DuPage County, lllinois, may
secure the specific performance of the covenants and agreements herein
contained, for failure of performance.

In the event of a default by any of the Parties, the defaulting Party, as
adjudicated by a court of competent jurisdiction, shall pay to the non-
defaulting Party / Parties, upon demand, all of the non-defaulting Party's /
Parties’ reasonable costs, charges and expenses, including, but not limited
to, the costs of accountants, consultants, attorneys and others retained by
the non-defaulting Party / Parties for the purpose of enforcing any of the
obligations of the defaulting Party under this Agreement.

The failure of any Party to insist upon the strict and prompt performance of
the terms, covenants, agreements and conditions herein contained, or any
of them, by any other Party, shall not constitute or be construed as a waiver
or relinquishment of any Party’s right thereafter to enforce any such term,
covenant, agreement or condition, but the same shall continue in full force
and effect.

If the performance by any Party hereunder is delayed as a result of
circumstances which are beyond the reasonable control of such Party
(which circumstances shall only include acts of God, war, strikes or similar
acts of force majeure), the time for such performance shall be extended by
the amount of time of such delay.

This Agreement shall remain in full force and effect for fifteen (15) years
after the Commencement Date unless sooner terminated in accordance
with the terms of this Agreement.

In the event that any UNIT OF GOVERNMENT's authority under the
Abatement Law to carry out its obligation in this Agreement is repealed,
becomes null and void or otherwise becomes invalid, then (i) such
UNIT OF GOVERNMENT's obligations hereunder shall cease and no
further obligations of any sort shall be required of the UNIT OF
GOVERNMENT, and (ii) the DEVELOPER’s obligations to such UNIT OF
GOVERNMENT hereunder (including, without limitation, DEVELOPER’s
obligations to such UNIT OF GOVERNMENT under Section 3.B.) shall
cease as of the date on which any such UNIT OF GOVERNMENT’s
authority under the Abatement Law to carry out its obligation in this
Agreement is repealed, becomes null and void or otherwise becomes
invalid. The DEVELOPER shall have no recourse against the affected UNIT
OF GOVERNMENT(s) in such event and such affected UNIT(s) OF
GOVERNMENT shall have no recourse against the DEVELOPER.

No amendment to, or modification of, this Agreement shall be effective
unless and until it is in writing and approved by the authorized



454988 2

representative of the DEVELOPER and by each of the UNITS OF
GOVERNMENT's corporate authorities, and executed and delivered by the
authorized representatives of each Party.

If, during the term of this Agreement, any lawsuits or other proceedings are
filed or initiated against any Party before any court, commission, board,
bureau, agency, unit of government or sub-unit thereof, arbitrator, or other
instrumentality, that may materially affect or inhibit the ability of any Party
to perform its obligations under, or otherwise to comply with, this Agreement
(“Litigation”), the Party against which the Litigation is filed or initiated shall
promptly deliver a copy of the complaint or charge related thereto to the
other Parties and shall thereafter keep the other Parties fully informed
concerning all aspects of the Litigation. Each Party shall, to the extent
necessary, cooperate with the other Parties in this event. The Parties each
agree to use their respective best efforts to defend the validity of this
Agreement and the Abatement Ordinances / Resolutions adopted pursuant
to this Agreement, including every portion thereof and every approval given,
and every action taken, pursuant thereto.

The DEVELOPER shall and hereby agrees to defend, hold harmless and
indemnify the UNITS OF GOVERNMENT, and their respective elected
officials, appointed officials, employees, agents and attorneys (collectively
the “UNITS OF GOVERNMENT Affiliates”) from and against any and all
third-party claims, demands, suits, damages, liabilities, losses, expenses,
and judgments against any UNITS OF GOVERNMENT Affiliates resulting
from the DEVELOPER’s breach of its obligations hereunder. The obligation
of the DEVELOPER in this regard shall include, but shall not be limited, to
all costs and expenses, including reasonable attorneys' fees, incurred by
the UNITS OF GOVERNMENT Affiliates in responding to, defending
against, or settling any such claims, demands, suits, damages, liabilities,
losses, expenses or judgments. The DEVELOPER covenants that it will
reimburse the UNITS OF GOVERNMENT Affiliates, or pay over to the
UNITS OF GOVERNMENT Affiliates, all sums of money the UNITS OF
GOVERNMENT Affiliates pays, or becomes liable to pay to any such third
party, by reason of any of the foregoing; provided, however, that the
DEVELOPER's liability under this Section 5.M. shall be limited to the total
amount of Tax Abatement that the DEVELOPER has been received
pursuant to this Agreement as of the date of any such claim, demand, suit,
damage, liability, loss, expense, or judgment. In any suit or proceeding
brought hereunder, the UNITS OF GOVERNMENT Affiliates shall have the
right to appoint counsel of their own choosing to represent it, the reasonable
costs and expenses of which shall be paid by the DEVELOPER.

The DEVELOPER shall maintain the Subject Property, and operate the

Project, in compliance with all Federal, State, County, and UNITS OF
GOVERNMENT laws, ordinances, resolutions, rules and regulations.

10



NOTICES. Notice or other writings which any Party is required to, or may wish to,

serve upon any other Party in connection with this Agreement shall be in writing
and shall be delivered personally or sent by registered or certified mail, return
receipt requested, postage prepaid, addressed as follows:

454988_2

A. If to the CITY:

City of West Chicago

475 Main Street

West Chicago, lllinois 60185
Attn: Mayor

With copies to:

City of West Chicago

475 Main Street

West Chicago, lllinois 60185
Attn: City Administrator

Bond, Dickson & Associates
400 Knoll Street

Wheaton, lllinois 60187
Attn: Patrick Bond

. If to the ELEMENTARY SCHOOL

DISTRICT:

West Chicago Elementary
School District 33

312 East Forest Avenue
West Chicago, lllinois 60185
Attn: President

With copies to:

West Chicago Elementary
School District 33

312 East Forest Avenue
West Chicago, lllinois 60185
Attn: Superintendent

Robbins Schwartz

55 W. Monroe Street, Suite 800
Chicago, lllinois 60603

Attn: Kenneth M. Florey

11

B. If to the LIBRARY:

West Chicago Library District
118 West Washington Street
West Chicago, lllinois 60185
Attn: President

With copies to:

West Chicago Library District
118 West Washington Street
West Chicago, lllinois 60185
Attn: Executive Director

Peregrine, Stime, Newman,
Ritzman, & Bruckner, Ltd.
221 East lllinois Street
Wheaton, lllinois 60187
Attn: Mark Ritzman

D. If to the HIGH SCHOOL

DISTRICT:

Community High School
District 94

157 West Washington Street
West Chicago, lllinois 60185
Attn: President

With copies to:

Community High School
District 94

157 West Washington Street
West Chicago, lllinois 60185
Attn: Superintendent

Hauser, lzzo, Petrarca, Gleason
& Stillman, LLC

19730 Governors Hwy, Suite 10
Flossmor, lllinois 60422

Attn: John lzzo



E. If to the DUPAGE AIRPORT F. If to the DEVELOPER:

AUTHORITY:

DuPage Airport Authority Scannell Properties #371, LLC

2700 International Drive, Suite 200 8801 River Crossing Boulevard,

West Chicago, lllinois 60185 Suite, 300

Attn: Chairman Indianapolis, Indiana 46240
Attn: Drew Strobel

With copies to With a copy to:

DuPage Airport Authority Rosanova & Whitaker, Ltd.

2700 International Drive, Suite 200 127 Aurora Avenue

West Chicago, lllinois 60185 Naperville, lllinois 60540

Attn: Executive Director Attn: Russ Whitaker

Luetkehans, Brady, Garner & Armstrong, LLC
105 E. Irving Park Rd.

Itasca, lllinois 60143

Attn: Phillip A. Luetkehans

G. If to the FIRE PROTECTION
DISTRICT:

West Chicago Fire Protection District
200 Freemont Street

West Chicago, lllinois 60185

Attn: President

With copies to:

West Chicago Fire Protection District
200 Freemont Street

West Chicago, lllinois 60185

Attn: Fire Chief

Ottosen Britz Kelly Cooper Gilbert
& DiNolfo, Ltd.

1804 N. Naper Boulevard #350
Naperville, lllinois 60563

Attn: Joseph Miller

or to such other address, or additional individuals/entities, as any Party may from

time to time designate in a written notice to the other Parties. Service by personal
delivery shall be deemed given when delivery occurs, and service by certified or

454088 2 12



registered mail shall be deemed given three (3) days after depositing same in the
mail.

h 4 COUNTERPARTS. This Agreement may be executed simultaneously in up to
seven (7) counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which
shall constitute one and the same Agreement.

8. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement contains the entire understanding
between the Parties and supersedes any prior understanding or written or oral
agreements between them regarding the within subject matter. There are no
representations, agreements, arrangements or understandings, oral or written,
between and among the Parties hereto relating to the subject matter of this
Agreement which are not fully expressed herein.

9. EFFECTIVE DATE. This Agreement shall be deemed dated and become effective
on the date the last of the Parties executes this Agreement as set forth below,
which date shall be filled in on page 1 hereof.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the CITY, pursuant to authority granted by the adoption
of a Motion/Resolution by its City Council, has caused this Agreement to be executed by
its Mayor and attested by its Clerk; the AIRPORT, pursuant to authority granted by the
adoption of a Motion/Resolution by its Board of Commissioners, has caused this
Agreement to be signed by its Chairman and attested by its Secretary; the LIBRARY,
pursuant to the authority granted by the adoption of a Motion/Resolution by its Board of
Trustees, has caused this Agreement to be signed by its President and attested by its
Secretary; the FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT, pursuant to the authority granted by the
adoption of a Motion/Resolution by its Board of Trustees, has caused this Agreement to
be signed by its President and attested by its Secretary; the ELEMENTARY SCHOOL
DISTRICT, pursuant to the authority granted by the adoption of a Motion/Resolution by
its Board of Education, has caused this Agreement to be signed by its President and
attested by its Secretary; the HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT, pursuant to the authority

granted by the adoption of a Motion/Resolution by its Board of Education, has caused this

454988 _2 13



Agreement to be signed by its President and attested by its Secretary; and DEVELOPER,
pursuant to proper authority granted in accordance with its organizational documents, has

caused this Agreement to be executed by its President and attested by its Secretary.

[THIS SPACE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]

454988_2 14



CITY OF WEST CHICAGO
By:
, Mayor
ATTEST:
, City Clerk
Dated:

WEST CHICAGO ELEMENTARY

SCHOOL DISTRICT 33
By:
, President
ATTEST:
, Secretary
Dated:

DUPAGE AIRPORT AUTHORITY

By:
, Chairman
ATTEST:
, Secretary
Dated:

454988_2

15

WEST CHICAGO PUBLIC LIBRARY
DISTRICT

By:
, President
ATTEST:
, Secretary
Dated:

WEST CHICAGO COMMUNITY HIGH

SCHOOL DISTRICT 94
By:

, President
ATTEST:

, Secretary
Dated:

SCANNELL PROPERTIES #371, LLC

By:

ATTEST:

Dated:




WEST CHICAGO FIRE PROTECTION
DISTRICT

By:
, President
ATTEST:
, Secretary
Dated:

454988_2 16



STATE OF ILLINOIS )
) SS
COUNTY OF DUPAGE )

|, the undersigned, a Notary Public, in and for the County and State aforesaid, DO
HEREBY CERTIFY that the above-named and .
personally known to me to be the Mayor and City Clerk of the City of West Chicago, and
also known to me to be the same persons whose names are subscribed to the foregoing
instrument as such Mayor and City Clerk, respectively, appeared before me this day in
person and severally acknowledged that, as such Mayor and City Clerk, they signed and
delivered the signed instrument, pursuant to authority given by the City of West Chicago,
as their free and voluntary act, and as the free and voluntary act and deed of said City of
West Chicago, for the uses and purposes therein set forth.

GIVEN under my hand and Notary Seal, this day of
2020.

Notary Public

My Commission Expires:

454988_2 17



STATE OF ILLINOIS )
) SS
COUNTY OF DUPAGE )

|, the undersigned, a Notary Public, in and for the County and State aforesaid, DO
HEREBY CERTIFY that the above-named and ,
personally known to me to be the President and Secretary of the West Chicago Public
Library District, and also known to me to be the same persons whose names are
subscribed to the foregoing instrument as such President and Secretary, respectively,
appeared before me this day in person and severally acknowledged that, as such
President and Secretary, they signed and delivered the signed instrument, pursuant to
authority given by the West Chicago Public Library District, as their free and voluntary
act, and as the free and voluntary act and deed of said West Chicago Public Library
District, for the uses and purposes therein set forth.

GIVEN under my hand and Notary Seal, this day of
2020.

Notary Public

My Commission Expires:

454988_2 18



STATE OF ILLINOIS )
) SS
COUNTY OF DUPAGE )

|, the undersigned, a Notary Public, in and for the County and State aforesaid, DO
HEREBY CERTIFY that the above-named and ,
personally known to me to be the President and Secretary of the West Chicago Fire
Protection District, and also known to me to be the same persons whose names are
subscribed to the foregoing instrument as such President and Secretary, respectively,
appeared before me this day in person and severally acknowledged that, as such
President and Secretary, they signed and delivered the signed instrument, pursuant to
authority given by the West Chicago Fire Protection District, as their free and voluntary
act, and as the free and voluntary act and deed of said West Chicago Fire Protection
District, for the uses and purposes therein set forth.

GIVEN under my hand and Notary Seal, this day of
2020.

Notary Public

My Commission Expires:

454988 _2 19



STATE OF ILLINOIS )
) §S
COUNTY OF DUPAGE )

I, the undersigned, a Notary Public, in and for the County and State aforesaid, DO
HEREBY CERTIFY that the above-named and
personally known to me to be the President and Secretary of the West Chlcago
Elementary School District 33, and also known to me to be the same persons whose
names are subscribed to the foregoing instrument as such President and Secretary,
respectively, appeared before me this day in person and severally acknowledged that, as
such President and Secretary, they signed and delivered the signed instrument, pursuant
to authority given by the West Chicago Elementary School District 33, as their free and
voluntary act, and as the free and voluntary act and deed of said West Chicago
Elementary School District 33, for the uses and purposes therein set forth.

GIVEN under my hand and Notary Seal, this day of .

2020.

Notary Public

My Commission Expires:

454988_2 20



STATE OF ILLINOIS )
) SS
COUNTY OF DUPAGE )

|, the undersigned, a Notary Public, in and for the County and State aforesaid, DO
HEREBY CERTIFY that the above-named and ,
personally known to me to be the President and Secretary of the West Community High
School District 94, and also known to me to be the same persons whose names are
subscribed to the foregoing instrument as such President and Secretary, respectively,
appeared before me this day in person and severally acknowledged that, as such
President and Secretary, they signed and delivered the signed instrument, pursuant to
authority given by the West Chicago Community High School District 94, as their free and
voluntary act, and as the free and voluntary act and deed of said West Chicago
Community High School District 94, for the uses and purposes therein set forth.

GIVEN under my hand and Notary Seal, this day of ;
2020.

Notary Public

My Commission Expires:

454988 2 21



STATE OF ILLINOIS )
) SS
COUNTY OF DUPAGE )

I, the undersigned, a Notary Public, in and for the County and State aforesaid, DO
HEREBY CERTIFY that the above-named and )
personally known to me to be the Chairman and Secretary of the DuPage Airport
Authority, and also known to me to be the same persons whose names are subscribed to
the foregoing instrument as such Chairman and Secretary, respectively, appeared before
me this day in person and severally acknowledged that, as such Chairman and Secretary,
they signed and delivered the signed instrument, pursuant to authority given by the
DuPage Airport Authority, as their free and voluntary act, and as the free and voluntary
act and deed of said DuPage Airport Authority, for the uses and purposes therein set
forth.

GIVEN under my hand and Notary Seal, this day of
2020.

Notary Public

My Commission Expires:

454988_2 22



STATE OF )
) SS

COUNTY OF )

I, the undersigned, a Notary Public, in and for the County and State aforesaid, DO
HEREBY CERTIFY that the above-named and y
personally known to me to be the Manager and of Scannell Properties #371,
LLC, and also known to me to be the same persons whose names are subscribed to the
foregoing instrument as such Manager and , respectively, appeared before me
this day in person and severally acknowledged that, as such Manager and , they
signed and delivered the signed instrument, pursuant to authority given by said limited
liability company, as their free and voluntary act, and as the free and voluntary act and
deed of said limited liability company, for the uses and purposes therein set forth.

GIVEN under my hand and Notary Seal, this day of X
2020.

Notary Public

My Commission Expires:

454988 _2 23



EXHIBIT A-1
Legal Description of Subject Property

(attached)

454988_2 24



THAT PART OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 7, TOWNSHIP 39
NORTH, RANGE 9 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, DESCRIBED AS

FOLLOWS:

COMMENCING AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID NORTHWEST QUARTER,
PER MONUMENT RECORD R2003-137779; THENCE NORTH 00 DEGREES 02
MINUTES 50 SECONDS EAST ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID QUARTER
SECTION (BEARING BASED ON THE ILLINOIS STATE PLANE COORDINATE
SYSTEM EAST ZONE NAD-83) 1317.29 TO THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF THE
PROPERTY CONVEYED TO THE STATE OF ILLINOIS, DEPARTMENT OF
TRANSPORTATION PER QUIT CLAIM DEED RECORDED NOVEMBER 21, 2012 AS
DOCUMENT NUMBER R2012-165678; THENCE SOUTH 83 DEGREES 02 MINUTES
30 SECONDS EAST ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID PROPERTY, 400.65 FEET,
SAID LINE ALSO BEING THE SOUTH LINE OF ILLINOIS ROUTE 38 (AKA
ROOSEVELT ROAD) FOR THIS AND THE NEXT (3) COURSES; (1) THENCE NORTH
84 DEGREES 43 MINUTES 13 SECONDS EAST 310.43 FEET, (2) THENCE NORTH
05 DEGREES 16 MINUTES 46 SECONDS WEST 50.00 FEET; (3) THENCE NORTH 84
DEGREES 43 MINUTES 13 SECONDS EAST 158.63 FEET TO THE POINT OF
BEGINNING; THENCE CONTINUING NORTH 84 DEGREES 43 MINUTES 13
SECONDS EAST ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE 755.57 FEET TO A KINK POINT;
THENCE SOUTH 81 DEGREES 19 MINUTES 46 SECONDS EAST ALONG SAID
SOUTH LINE 221.43 FEET TO A POINT ON THE WEST LINE OF LOT 3 IN DUPAGE
NATIONAL TECHNOLOGY PARK NORTH ASSESSMENT PLAT LOT 3, ACCORDING
TO THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED OCTOBER 10, 2007 AS DOCUMENT NUMBER
R2007-184625; THENCE SOUTH 00 DEGREES 18 MINUTES 30 SECONDS WEST
ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID LOT 3, A DISTANCE OF 881.15 FEET TO THE
NORTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 2 IN DUPAGE NATIONAL TECHNOLOGY PARK
NORTH ASSESSMENT PLAT LOT 2, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF
RECORDED JULY 10, 2007 AS DOCUMENT NUMBER R2007-127454; THENCE
SOUTH 89 DEGREES 54 MINUTES 51 SECONDS WEST ALONG THE NORTH LINE
OF SAID LOT 2 A DISTANCE OF 185.89 FEET TO THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF
SAID LOT 2; THENCE SOUTH 21 DEGREES 08 MINUTES 05 SECONDS WEST
ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID LOT 2, A DISTANCE OF 177.30 FEET TO A POINT
ON THE NORTHERLY LINE OF INNOVATION DRIVE DEDICATED PER DOCUMENT
R2007-131936; THENCE ALONG THE NORTHERLY LINE OF SAID INNOVATION
DRIVE FOR THE NEXT (3) COURSES; (1) THENCE NORTHWESTERLY 16.66 FEET
ALONG THE ARC OF A NON-TANGENT CIRCLE TO THE RIGHT HAVING A RADIUS
OF 750.00 FEET AND WHOSE CHORD BEARS NORTH 62 DEGREES 23 MINUTES
13 SECONDS WEST 16.66 FEET TO A POINT OF COMPOUND CURVE; (2) THENCE
NORTHWESTERLY 77.98 FEET ALONG THE ARC OF A TANGENT CIRCLE TO THE
RIGHT HAVING A RADIUS OF 964.92 FEET AND WHOSE CHORD BEARS NORTH 59
DEGREES 26 MINUTES 08 SECONDS WEST 77.95 FEET TO A POINT OF REVERSE
CURVATURE; (3) THENCE WESTERLY 627.77 FEET ALONG THE ARC OF A
TANGENT CIRCLE TO THE LEFT HAVING A RADIUS OF 495.08 FEET AND WHOSE
CHORD BEARS SOUTH 86 DEGREES 33 MINUTES 14 SECONDS WEST 586.55

454988 _2 25



FEET TO A POINT; THENCE NORTH 39 DEGREES 46 MINUTES 18 SECONDS WEST
77.83 FEET; THENCE NORTH 00 DEGREES 01 MINUTES 39 SECONDS EAST 938.73
FEET, TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING; BEGINNING, IN DUPAGE COUNTY, ILLINOIS.

P.I.N.: 04-07-102-018

Common address: 555 Innovation Drive Circle, West Chicago, lllinois 60185

454988 2 26



EXHIBIT A-2
Depiction of Subject Property

(attached)

454988 _2 27



454988 2

28



EXHIBIT B-1
Project Site Plan

(attached)

454988_2 29



i

- SR

g

{
o

Pt ik o
s g

-
W S P w i

VR rnatnar LB
et Liat ]

ANBT NOLVAONN 555

4

-----

: TIINNYDS ~ ¥UNTD SSANISNE 3DVNg|
NYld 3R TWaAD

G

== = = - ==t
i
N i
i
T . .
— T i
R
4 w¢f
] i
|
- =3
L - - -~ Ll
= |
e 1 |
——d acue :
i | [ o )
= 4 b
n ] F. 3
¢ ey i e =3
o L
-y
L' E =
L

30

454988 _2



454988_2 31



EXHIBIT B-2
Project Description and Depiction

The Developer shall construct an approximately two hundred fifty thousand (250,000)
square foot warehouse on approximately twenty-one (21) acres of land purchased from
the DuPage Airport Authority as set forth in the Site Plan and rendering in EXHIBIT B-1.
Sixteen (16) or more full-time employees shall work in the building constructed as part of
the Project with a combined average total compensation of Forty-Three Thousand and
No/100 Dollars ($43,000.00). The tenant of the building shall be Shorr Packaging Corp.,
or another tenant approved by the City of West Chicago in writing, as set forth in Section
2.C. of the Agreement.

454988_2 32



EXHIBIT C

Anticipated Assessed Values

Anticipated
Assessed
Year Valuation
Year 1 $5,197,500.00
Year 2 $5,197,500.00
Year 3 $5,197,500.00
Year 4 $5,301,450.00
Year 5 $5,301,450.00
Year 6 $5,301,450.00
Year7 $5,407,479.00
Year 8 $5,407,479.00
Year 9 $5,515,628.58
Year 10 $5,515,628.58
Year 11 $5,625,941.14
Year 12 $5,625,941.14
Year 13 $5,738,459.97
Year 14 $5,738,459.97
Year 15 $5,853,229.17
Total $81,925,096.59

454988_2 33



EXHIBIT D
Abatement Ordinance / Resolution

(attached)

454988 _2 34



[ORDINANCE / RESOLUTION] PROVIDING FOR REAL ESTATE TAX ABATEMENT

WHEREAS, the lllinois Property Tax Code, 35 ILCS 200/18-165, authorizes any
taxing district to abate its taxes in relation to a specific property; and

WHEREAS, in “An Intergovernmental Agreement Between the City of West
Chicago, DuPage Airport Authority, West Chicago Library District, West Chicago Fire
Protection District, West Chicago Elementary School District 33, Community High School
District 94 and Scannell Properties #371, LLC in Regard to a Property Tax Abatement
Relative to the Development of the Scannell Property,” dated _, 2020
(“IGA"), the [City Council / Board of Trustees / Board of Commissioners / Board of
Education] of the [Unit of Government] previously determined it to be in its best interests
to abate a portion of its taxes on the real estate legally described in Exhibit 1, attached
hereto and made a part hereof (“Subject Property”), in order to encourage a commercial
firm to redevelop the Subject Property; and

WHEREAS, the conditions of the IGA for the abatement of a portion of the taxes
on the Subject Property have been met; and

WHEREAS, in the IGA, this [City Council / Board of Trustees / Board of
Commissioners / Board of Education] previously determined such abatement of taxes to
be in the best interests of its tax payers in order to encourage a commercial firm to
redevelop the Subject Property, increase the tax base, and increase employment
opportunities; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT [ORDAINED / RESOLVED] [by the [Mayor / Chairman
/ President] and [City Council / Board of Trustees / Board of Commissioners / Board of
Education] of the [Unit of Government], DuPage County, lllinois, as follows:

Section 1. This [City Council / Board of Trustees / Board of Commissioners / Board
of Education] hereby finds that all of the recitals contained in the preambles to this
[Ordinance / Resolution] are full, true and correct and does now incorporate the same
herein by reference.

Section 2. The County Clerk of DuPage County, lllinois is hereby ordered to abate
the real estate taxes to be extended on the Subject Property, on behalf of the [Unit of
Government] according to the rate set forth in Section 3 below, but excluding any levy or
levies for debt service (“Abatement Rate”), commencing at the start of the next calendar
year after the year in which this [Ordinance / Resolution] is passed. However, in no event
shall the aggregate abatement of real estate taxes levied against the Subject Property by
the [Unit of Government], together with real estate taxes levied against the Subject
Property and abated in previous and future years by all other taxing districts, exceed the
total of Four Million and No/100 Dollars ($4,000,000.00).

454988_2 35



Section 3. The Abatement Rate shall be Forty Percent (40%) of the real estate
taxes to be extended on the Subject Property on behalf of the [Unit of Government].

Section 4. The [Mayor / Chairman / President] and [Clerk / Secretary] of this [Unit
of Government] are hereby authorized and directed to execute this [Ordinance /
Resolution] and cause a certified copy of the same to be filed with the County Clerk of
DuPage County, lllinois.

Section 5. This [Ordinance / Resolution] shall be in full force and effect upon its
adoption and publication.

ADOPTED this day of , 20___ by a majority
vote of the Corporate Authorities of the [Unit of Government] on a roll call vote as follows:

AYES:

NAYS:

ABSENT:

APPROVED by the [Mayor / Chairman / President] of the [Unit of Government]
on the day of %o M

[Mayor / Chairman / President]

ATTEST:

[Clerk / Secretary]

[Published in pamphlet form / Published in the newspaper, being a newspaper
of general circulation within the [Unit of Government] this ___ day of ;20 ]

454988 _2 36



EXHIBIT 1
LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF THE SUBJECT PROPERTY

(attached)

454988 2 37



THAT PART OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 7, TOWNSHIP 39
NORTH, RANGE 9 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, DESCRIBED AS
FOLLOWS:

COMMENCING AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID NORTHWEST QUARTER,
PER MONUMENT RECORD R2003-137779;: THENCE NORTH 00 DEGREES 02
MINUTES 50 SECONDS EAST ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID QUARTER
SECTION (BEARING BASED ON THE ILLINOIS STATE PLANE COORDINATE
SYSTEM EAST ZONE NAD-83) 1317.29 TO THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF THE
PROPERTY CONVEYED TO THE STATE OF ILLINOIS, DEPARTMENT OF
TRANSPORTATION PER QUIT CLAIM DEED RECORDED NOVEMBER 21, 2012 AS
DOCUMENT NUMBER R2012-165678; THENCE SOUTH 83 DEGREES 02 MINUTES
30 SECONDS EAST ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID PROPERTY, 400.65 FEET.
SAID LINE ALSO BEING THE SOUTH LINE OF ILLINOIS ROUTE 38 (AKA
ROOSEVELT ROAD) FOR THIS AND THE NEXT (3) COURSES: (1) THENCE NORTH
84 DEGREES 43 MINUTES 13 SECONDS EAST 310.43 FEET: (2) THENCE NORTH
05 DEGREES 16 MINUTES 46 SECONDS WEST 50.00 FEET: (3) THENCE NORTH 84
DEGREES 43 MINUTES 13 SECONDS EAST 158.63 FEET TO THE POINT OF
BEGINNING; THENCE CONTINUING NORTH 84 DEGREES 43 MINUTES 13
SECONDS EAST ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE 755.57 FEET TO A KINK POINT:
THENCE SOUTH 81 DEGREES 19 MINUTES 46 SECONDS EAST ALONG SAID
SOUTH LINE 221.43 FEET TO A POINT ON THE WEST LINE OF LOT 3 IN DUPAGE
NATIONAL TECHNOLOGY PARK NORTH ASSESSMENT PLAT LOT 3, ACCORDING
TO THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED OCTOBER 10, 2007 AS DOCUMENT NUMBER
R2007-184625; THENCE SOUTH 00 DEGREES 18 MINUTES 30 SECONDS WEST
ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID LOT 3, A DISTANCE OF 881.15 FEET TO THE
NORTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 2 IN DUPAGE NATIONAL TECHNOLOGY PARK
NORTH ASSESSMENT PLAT LOT 2, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF
RECORDED JULY 10, 2007 AS DOCUMENT NUMBER R2007-127454: THENCE
SOUTH 89 DEGREES 54 MINUTES 51 SECONDS WEST ALONG THE NORTH LINE
OF SAID LOT 2 A DISTANCE OF 185.89 FEET TO THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF
SAID LOT 2; THENCE SOUTH 21 DEGREES 08 MINUTES 05 SECONDS WEST
ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID LOT 2, A DISTANCE OF 177.30 FEET TO A POINT
ON THE NORTHERLY LINE OF INNOVATION DRIVE DEDICATED PER DOCUMENT
R2007-131936; THENCE ALONG THE NORTHERLY LINE OF SAID INNOVATION
DRIVE FOR THE NEXT (3) COURSES; (1) THENCE NORTHWESTERLY 16.66 FEET
ALONG THE ARC OF A NON-TANGENT CIRCLE TO THE RIGHT HAVING A RADIUS
OF 750.00 FEET AND WHOSE CHORD BEARS NORTH 62 DEGREES 23 MINUTES
13 SECONDS WEST 16.66 FEET TO A POINT OF COMPOUND CURVE: (2) THENCE
NORTHWESTERLY 77.98 FEET ALONG THE ARC OF A TANGENT CIRCLE TO THE
RIGHT HAVING A RADIUS OF 964.92 FEET AND WHOSE CHORD BEARS NORTH 59
DEGREES 26 MINUTES 08 SECONDS WEST 77.95 FEET TO A POINT OF REVERSE
CURVATURE; (3) THENCE WESTERLY 627.77 FEET ALONG THE ARC OF A
TANGENT CIRCLE TO THE LEFT HAVING A RADIUS OF 495.08 FEET AND WHOSE
CHORD BEARS SOUTH 86 DEGREES 33 MINUTES 14 SECONDS WEST 586.55
FEET TO A POINT; THENCE NORTH 39 DEGREES 46 MINUTES 18 SECONDS WEST

454988_2 38




77.83 FEET; THENCE NORTH 00 DEGREES 01 MINUTES 39 SECONDS EAST 938.73
FEET, TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING: BEGINNING, IN DUPAGE COUNTY, ILLINOIS.

P.I.N.: 04-07-102-018

Common address: 555 Innovation Drive Circle, West Chicago, lllinois 60185

454988 2 39




EXHIBIT E
ABATEMENT PROCESS

Capitalized terms in this EXHIBIT E shall have the meanings as set forth for said terms
in the “Intergovernmental Agreement Between the City of West Chicago, DuPage Airport
Authority, West Chicago Library District, West Chicago Fire Protection District, West
Chicago Elementary School District 33, Community High School District 94 and Scannell
Properties #371, LLC in Regard to a Property Tax Abatement Relative to the
Development of the Scannell Property” (‘IGA”), unless otherwise defined in this EXHIBIT
E.

As of the Effective Date of the IGA, the process for administering the Tax Abatement is:

j Within sixty (60) days of the Commencement Date, each UNIT OF GOVERNMENT
shall adopt an Abatement Ordinance / Resolution, and send a certified copy of its
Abatement Ordinance / Resolution to the Clerk.

2. The Clerk shall, at the time the tentative tax rates are prepared for each year's
property tax levy, send to the chief executive officer of each of the UNITS OF
GOVERNMENT a letter setting forth, with respect to the Tax Abatement, the parcel(s)
affected, the amount of property taxes to be levied, and the amount of the abatement
attributable to each of the UNITS OF GOVERNMENT (“Abatement Letter”).

3. Each of the UNITS OF GOVERNMENT shall, each year, review the Abatement
Letter from the Clerk, note any changes in the information provided, and then sign and
return the Abatement Letter to the Clerk, all within seven (7) days of receipt of the
Abatement Letter.

4. The Clerk shall track and account for the total Tax Abatement paid to the
DEVELOPER.

5 The Clerk shall calculate the property tax levy for each of the UNITS OF
GOVERNMENT taking the Tax Abatement into account, as approved by each of the
UNITS OF GOVERNMENT with regard to its annual Abatement Letter.

6. The Tax Abatement for the Subject Property abated in previous and future years

by all other taxing districts, shall not exceed the total of Four Million and No/100 Dollars
($4,000,000.00).

454988 2 40



CITY OF WEST CHICAGO

CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

ITEM TITLE:
AGENDA ITEM NUMBER: __O-A.

Resolution No. 20-R-0056 - Elected Official Conduct Policy
FILE NUMBER:

COMMITTEE AGENDA DATE: N/A
COUNCIL AGENDA DATE: 9/8/2020 &

12/7/2020
STAFF REVIEW: SIGNATURE
APPROVED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR: SIGNATURE

ITEM SUMMARY:

In August, staff and the City Attorney were asked to prepare an Elected Official Conduct Policy.
Attached is a draft. The examples of prohibited behavior or conduct under “Eligibility” were taken from
past concerns raised by Aldermen to staff individually outside of public meetings, responses from the City
Administrator’s request for such as well as from other communities’ policies.

As this is a policy that would govern the conduct of the City Council members, staff merely is providing
options and does not have a position on them.

Aldermen suggested two changes since the first draft that have been incorporated into the Policy: (1) any
alleged concerns shall be in writing; and (2) any alleged concerns regarding the Mayor shall be directed
to the Mayor pro tem.

The attached redlined document addresses the issues raised at the September meeting.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

There is no staff recommendation; staff and the City Attorney will modify the draft policy based upon the
feedback from the elected officials.

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION:

This item was directed to the City Council for discussion by Mayor Pineda.




CITY OF WEST CHICAGO © - Formatted: Different first page header

Elected Official Conduct Policy

Purpose

It is the Policy of the City of West Chicago that all Elected Officials of the City conform their
conduct to all State and Federal laws, statutes as well as the ordinances and resolutions of the
City of West Chicago and the general decorum required of the Elected Position held. Upon
entering upon the Office to which they are elected, each Elected Official of the City is required
to take an Oath of Office affirming the faithful discharge of the duties and responsibilities as an
Elected Official of the City of West Chicago.

Any Elected Official who engages in conduct in violation of said responsibility, including
posting information in connection with City business or operations on social media, directly or
indirectly representing that their positions or opinions are those of the City, in any forum, may be
subject to sanctions and as more fully provided for herein.

igibili

When warranted, any Elected Official can file a Complaint against another Elected Official, as
provided for herein, provided said Complaint is grounded in facts to support such a Complaint.
The behavior or conduct prohibited by the Elected Official includes, but is not limited, to the
following type of behavior:

Al Possessing an interest, directly or indirectly, in a matter which may be brought before the
City Council for a final decision.

B. Failing to disclose in writing to the Mayor any interest the Elected Official may have
which could create the appearance of an impropriety in the performance of an official act
by the Elected Official.

C. Disclosing confidential matters discussed in a properly held Executive Session Meeting
outside of the Executive Session, including discussing said matters even in general terms
outside of the Executive Session.

D. Becoming involved in any matter_concerning in-whieh-the adjudicatory authority—duties

and responsibilities of the Elected Official, may-be-required:

E. Engaging in any conduct which could adversely impact the legislative duties and
responsibilities of the Elected Official, including commenting on matters individually and
outside of the collective discussion at a Council or Committee Meeting including, but not
limited _to. zoning matters. special use requests. siting reeulated  facilities and
amendments to the City Code.




GH.

Failing to seek information from City Staff to accuratelv convey matters pertaining to the
City to the public at large: Commenting on City malters in a capacity as a representative
of the City without first obtaining verification of the information or the accuracy thereof
from City Staff.

Speaking on behalf of the Citv, or representing himself or herself to be presenting the
position or views of the City Council without Citv Council authorization to do so,

Engaging in activities, whether on social media or any other forum, which could
constitute conduct unbecoming of an Elected Official. Such activities include, but are not
limited to, making slanderous, libelous, disparaging or demeaning comments about other
Elected Officials of the City or City Staff. Engaging in any conduct_which, in the
determination of the majority of the City Council, that-brings the City in disrepute.

Engaging in commentary on City managed social media platforms without City Council
authorization.

Using the Title or Position of the Elected Official in any correspondence, flyer,
publication, social media platform or other forum to represent or imply that such are the
position or views of the City Council, without authorization to do so or using or
referencing said Title or Position in or at any Meeting, function or activity unrelated to
the Elected Official’s duties with the City.

Failingto-seel-intformation-from-Gity-Stafto-aceuratehyeonvey-matters-pertaining-to-the
Ehv-to-the-public-at-darge:

Misusing City resources, property or personnel.

Using City Facilities, equipment, supplies or personnel for the Elected Official’s private
purposes.

Engaging in disruptive conduct with City Staff. Engaging in frequent or excessive contact
with City Employees, including contacting them outside of business hours for non-
emergency related matters. Leaving harassing or inappropriate voicemails or text
messages to City Employees or other Elected Officials of the City.

Utilizing the services of the Cily Attorney’s Office without advising the City
Administrator of the general nature of the matter, unless such is not feasible or the matter
involves or pertains to the City Administrator. The City Attorney attends the Meetings of
the City Council, certain Committee Meetings and Executive Sessions thereof, as
communications with the City Attorney’s Office in this setting allows input from other
Elected Officials and permits the City Attorney to provide any opinions or directives to
the entire City Council.



RO,

Qr.

RO,

SR.

Engaging in any conduct which will or could have an adverse effect on City operations or
efficiencies.

Using vulgar language in any Public Building or Facility of the City.

Performing an official act with the intent to directly and adversely affect a business
within the City, except in acting in the official capacity of the Elected Official.

Participating with any organization with a matter pending before the City, without
disclosing same in writing to the Mayor.

Failing to disclose in writing to the Mayor any interests or involvement with any
Organization transacting business with the City or in which said Organization is seeking
relief of some type from the City.

Using any City Employee Directory for any reason unrelated to official City business.

Engaging in misconduct in connection with the Elected Office held.

Publicly criticizing City employees or getting involved in administrative functions that
are the responsibility of the City Administrator or other City employees, including, but
not limited to, attending staff meetings as well as getting involved in recruitment and
other employment decisions for which the Elected Officials are not responsible.

Complaint Guidelines

A,

B.

A Complaint against any Elected Official shall be handled as follows:

1. A written Complaint_for possible discipline of an Elected Official shall be
presented to the Mayor. In the event a complaint for possible discipline is directed
at the Mayor, said complaint shall be presented to the Mayor pro temp, this said
complaint shall follow the same Complaint Guidelines. The Council will, as soon
thereafter as practicable, convene an Executive Session, in accordance with the
Illinois Open Meeting Act, 5 ILCS 120/2(c)(3+), for purposes of discussing the
written Complaint and possible discipline of an Elected Official. A majority vote
of the City Council is required to allow the Complaint to move forward for a
Sanctions Hearing and determination. If a majority of the City Council agrees, in
Executive Session, the Complaint shall be presented to the Elected Official
against whom the allegations are directed.

Said Elected Official shall have the following rights in the Complaint process:

1. The opportunity to respond to the Complaint; and
2. The opportunity to participate in any informal resolutions of the Complaint; and



3. The opportunity to have a Hearing on the Complaint; and

4, ‘The opportunity to speak to the nature of anv contemplated the-sSanctions sought
to be imposed in the event the City Council determines sanctions are appropriate,
as provided for herein.

(i Neither the Elected Official making the Complaint, nor the Elected Official against
whom the Complaint is directed, shall be subjected to any unjust treatment as a result of

D. Any extension of time needed to comply with the Complaint procedures set forth herein
will be by agreement of the Pparties, for good cause shown.

E. The Elected Official filing the Complaint may submit a written request to withdraw
his/her Complaint at any time.

Complaint Procedures

Complaints will be processed in the following manner, within the stated time limits:

Step I: Initial Complaint

The Elected Official will be presented, in writing, with the Complaint. The Complaint must be
presented within ten (10) working days from the date of the conduct complained of, or as soon
thereafier as practicable, given the schedule of the City Council Meetings.

Step II: Presentation of Complaint/Hearing with the City Council

The Complaint will be presented to the City Council by the Mayor in a Closed Executive
Session, at a time determined by the Mayor. The accused Elected Official shall be given Notice
of the Complaint and the Meeting scheduled to present the Complaint, no less than forty-eight
(48) hours prior to the conduct of said Executive Session. An informal presentation of the
Complaint shall be made to the whole City Council. The accused Elected Official shall have an
opportunity to respond to the Complaint. Only information pertinent to the Complaint shall be
discussed.

If the matter is not resolved through the information discussion of the City Council and it appears
as though the implementation of discipline may be warranted, the matter shall be advanced for a
Hearing before the City Council, as provided for herein.

Step I1I: Sanction Procedures

When a violation is determined by the City Council to be serious enough to possibly warrant
discipline of the Elected Official, the matter shall be scheduled for a Hearing before the City
Council. The accused Elected Official shall be provided a copy of the written Complaint. A
Hearing, in Executive Session, shall be scheduled by the Mayor at a time and date convenient for



the accused Elected Official, however, in no event shall the Hearing be extended beyond a period
of thirty (30) days, unless good cause is shown for said extension.

The City Council shall present the information and evidence relating to the Complaint. The
accused Elected Official will then be afforded an opportunity to respond to the information
presented in support of the Complaint and to provide and offer any information or evidence in
support of his or her defense to the allegations in the Complaint. Thereafter, the City Council
will deliberate, in the presence of the accused Elected Official, and will determine whether
sufficient information was provided to support the allegations in the Complaint and, if so,
whether discipline of the accused Elected Official is necessary and/or appropriate.

When a violation is determined by a vote of two-thirds (2/3) of the City Council Members
present, including the Mayor, after affording the accused Elected Official an opportunity to be
heard, the City Council may impose discipline, as provided for herein. The discipline imposed
shall be determined based upon the same two-thirds (2/3) vote of the City Council. The City
Council can thereafter determine, by a two-thirds (2/3) vote as to whether any discipline imposed
shall be done in an Open or Closed session Meeting of the City Council.

Discipline Options

Oral Reprimand/Censure

When it is determined that an Elected Official violates a rule, regulation, policy or
procedure of the City Council, which violation or any such conduct impacts City
Council operations, City Council relations or City Council/Staff interaction, after
a Hearing, as provided for above, the City Council may impose an Oral
Reprimand or Censure against the Elected Official found to be in violation of
same. The determination to impose said sanction must be approved by a vote of
two-thirds (2/3) of the City Council Members present, including the Mayor.

Written Reprimand

When it is determined that an Elected Official violates a rule, regulation, policy or
procedure of the City Council, which violation or any such conduct impacts City
operations, City Council relations or City Council/StafT interaction, which is more
serious in nature or which is a continuation of a violation previously determined,
after a Hearing, as provided for above, the City Council may impose a Written
Reprimand against the Elected Official found to be in violation of same. The
determination to impose said sanction must be approved by a vote of two-thirds
(2/3) of the City Council Members present, including the Mayor.

Meeting Suspension

When it is determined that an Elected Official commits a serious violation of a
rule, regulation, policy or procedure of the City, which violation or any such
conduct has a serious impact on City operations, City relations or City



Council/Staff interaction, and which is more serious in nature or which is a repeat
or continuation of a violation previously determined, after a Hearing, as provided
for above, the City Council may impose a Suspension of the Elected Official
found to be in violation of same from a City Council Meeting or Committee of the
Whole Meeting, the date of which Meeting, shall be specifically identified. The
determination to impose said sanction must be approved by a vote of two-thirds
(2/3) of the City Council Members present, including the Mayor.

Step IV: Decisions Final

It is understood that the Decision, as reflected in said vote of two-thirds (2/3) of the City Council
Members present, including the Mayor. shall be a final Decision. The City Council shall
maintain the Meeting Minutes of all Executive and Open Session and-Open-Session-Meetings, as
required by law,

FAPKB\West Chicago\Elected Official Conduct Policy\Elected Official Conduct Policy.docx

6



